RESOLUTION NO. 11-917

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA, TO APPROVE AWARD OF CONTRACTS FOR ITB 2011-08, FOR MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICES, TO ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC.; PRIME ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS, INC.; AND G&R ELECTRIC CORP., FOR THREE (3) YEAR CONTRACTS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED A TOTAL ANNUAL COST OF \$105,000.00; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXPEND BUDGETED FUNDS; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Miami Lakes (the "Town") issued an Invitation to Bid ("ITB") No. 2011-08 on May 19, 2011, for Miscellaneous Electrical Services;

WHEREAS, the Town Manager, has determined that Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.; Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.; and G&R Electric Corp., are the three (3) lowest responsible and responsive bidders, and recommends Award of Contracts for ITB 2011-08 to same; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council approves the recommendations of the Town Manager and authorizes the Town Manager to enter into three (3) year contracts with Electrical Contracting Services, Inc., as primary contractor; Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc., and G&R Electric Corp. as secondary contractors, in an amount not to exceed an annual cost of \$105,000.00, with the Town having the option, upon successful completion of the initial term of the contracts, to exercise up to two additional one (1) year option-to-renew periods, subject to the availability of budgeted funds;.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. Approval of the Contract. The Town Council hereby approves the award of ITB No. 2011-08, for Miscellaneous Electrical Services, to Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.; Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.; and G&R Electric Corp.

Section 3. Authorization of Town Manager. The Town Manager and/or his designee and the Town Attorney are authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the terms and conditions of the Contracts with Bidders: Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.; Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.; and G&R Electric Corp.

<u>Section 4.</u> <u>Authorization of Fund Expenditure</u>. The Town Manager is authorized to expend budgeted funds to implement the terms and conditions of the Contracts.

Section 5. Execution of the Contract. The Town Manager is authorized to execute the Contracts on behalf of the Town, for Miscellaneous Electrical Services, to Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.; Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.; and G&R Electric Corp., for three (3) year contracts, in an amount not to exceed a total annual cost of \$105,000.00, payable from FY 2010-11, 5414610 Street Light Budget; subject to the approval as to form and legality by the Town Attorney

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12 day of July, 2011.

Motion to adopt by Councilmember Daubert, second by Mayor Pizzi.

FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION

Mayor Michael Pizzi	Yes
Vice Mayor Nick Perdomo	Yes
Councilmember Mary Collins	Yes
Councilmember Tim Daubert	Yes
Councilmember Nelson Hernandez	Yes
Councilmember Ceasar Mestre	Yes
Councilmember Richard Pulido	Yes

Michael Pizzi MAYOR

Attest:

Marjorie Tejeda TOWN CLERK

Approve as to Form and Legal Sufficiency

Joseph S. Geller INTERIM TOWN ATTORNEY

INVITATION TO BID MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE ITB No. 2011-08



The Town of Miami Lakes Council:

Mayor Michael Pizzi
Vice Mayor Nick Perdomo
Councilmember Mary Collins
Councilmember Timothy Daubert
Councilmember Nelson Hernandez
Councilmember Ceasar Mestre
Councilmember Richard Pulido

Alex Rey, Town Manager The Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

DATE ISSUED:

May 19, 2011

CLOSING DATE:

June 22, 2011

Miscellaneous Electrical Service

RFP 2011-08

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION/ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
Section 1Notice To Bidders	s	
Section 2 Instructions To B	idders	
2.1Definition of Term	ns	2
2.2General Requiren	nents	4
2.3Preparation of Bio	d	4
2.4Bid Preparation a	nd Related Costs	4
	ce	
2.6 Qualification of B	idders	5
	he Work	
2.8Examination of Co	ontract Documents	5
	nd Clarifications	
	Bid Opening Date	
	jection of Bids	
	t	
	or Default	
	ies Act	
Section 3 General Terms an		
	ence	8
	ons	
	nents	
	tions	
	and Representation	
	ming the Work	
	eck Plans, Specifications and Data	
3.11 Shop Drawings an	nd Submittals	14
	ditions	

3.14 Protection of Property, Utilities, and the Public	15
3.15 Maintenance of Traffic	15
3.16 Coordination of the Work	16
3.17 Access to the Project Site(s)	17
3.18 Contractor's Responsibility For Damages and Accidents	17
3.19Safety Precautions	18
3.20Labor and Materials	18
3.21Vehicles and Equipment	18
3.22Supervision of the Work	18
3.23Subcontractors	. 19
3.24 Authority of the Project Manager	19
3.25Town Licenses, Permits and Fees	19
3.26Taxes	20
3.27Removal of Unsatisfactory Personnel	20
3.28Inspection of the Work	
3.29Defective Work	20
3.30 Change Orders	. 21
3.31 Force Majeure	22
3.32 Extension of Time	. 22
3.33 Excusable Delay, Non-Compensable	23
3.34Claims	24
3.35Disputes and Mediation	. 25
3.36Continuing the Work	. 26
3.37Fraud and Misrepresentation	
3.38Stop Work Order	26
3.39Hurricane Preparedness	27
3.40Cleaning Up; Town's Right To Clean Up	27
3.41Set-Offs, Withholding, and Deductions	. 28
3.42Contractor Default	
3.43Termination for Convenience	. 29
3.44Town May Avail Itself of All Remedies	30
3.45Compliance with Applicable Laws	. 30
3.46Nondiscrimination, Equal Employment Opportunity,	
And Americans with Disabilities Act	30
3.47Independent Contractor	. 30
3.48Third Party Beneficiaries	31
3.49Assignment or Sale of Contract	
3.50Materiality and Waiver of Breach	31
3.51Defense of Claims	
3.52Funds Availability	
3.53Access To and Review of Records	
3.54Royalties and Patents	32
3.55Time in Which To Bring Action Against The Town	
3.56Contract Extension	

3.57Applicable Law and Venue of Litigation	32
3.58Non-Exclusive Contract	32
3.59Severability	33
3.60Contract Documents Contains All Terms	33
3.61Entire Agreement	. 33
Section 4Special Terms and Conditions	
4.1Scope of Work	. 34
4.2Contract Term/Estimated Expenditure	34
4.3Option(s) to Renew	34
4.4Hours for Performing Work	. 34
4.5Response Time	35
4.6Compensation	. 35
4.7 Estimated Hours	. 36
4.8 Line Item Pricing	. 36
4.9 Reimbursable Expenses	. 36
4.10 Award of Projects	. 36
4.11 Payments	. 38
4.12 Liquidated Damages	38
4.13 Purchase and Delivery, Storage and Installation	38
4.14 Town Furnished Drawings	39
4.15 Substitutions	. 39
4.16 Request For Information	39
4.17 Warranty	. 39
4.18 Access to Water and Utilities	. 40
4.19 Staging Site	. 40
4.20 Substantial Completion, Punch List, & Final Completion	
4.21 Ownership of the Work	
Section 5 Bid Form	
Section 6 Attachments	48
Section 8Specifications	. 60

SECTION 1

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE

ITB 2011-08

The Town of Miami Lakes (the "Town") will be accepting sealed Bids for the Town's <u>Miscellaneous Electrical Services</u> ("Projects") for Work to be performed on an as needed basis. Bidders are to submit three (3) Bids, with original signatures together with a copy of the Bid on a CD-ROM. Sealed Bids, including the CD-ROM <u>must</u> be received by the Town of Miami Lakes, Town Clerk at 15150 NW 79th Court, Miami Lakes, Florida by 2:00 P.M. on June 22, 2011.

Scope of Work:

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways, which includes but is not limited to poles, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, photocells, various types of lighting (including street lighting), welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar Work.

Minimum Qualification Requirements:

Prospective Bidder shall hold a current certified license as a Electrical Contractor or from the State of Florida, and at a minimum must have a licensed journeyman who will be assigned to the Work Crew. Bidder must also possess a minimum of seven (7) years experience as an electrical contractor. No Work can be subcontracted under the Contract.

The Town will consider a Bid as responsive where a Bidder has less than the stipulated minimum number of years of experience solely where the Bidder has undergone a name change and such change of name has been filed with the State of Florida.

Bid Documents may be obtained by visiting the Town's website at www.miamilakes-fl.gov and selecting "Contractual Opportunities". Any further inquiries regarding the Project may be directed to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov.

All Bids shall be submitted in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. Any Bids received after the specified time and date will not be considered. The responsibility for submitting a Bid before the stated time and date is solely and strictly the responsibility of the Bidder.

Pursuant to subsection (t) "Cone of Silence" of Section 2-11.1 "Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance" of Miami Dade County, public notice is hereby given that a "Cone of Silence" is imposed concerning this purchase.

SECTION 2

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

2.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

Bid means the Submittal tendered by a Bidder in response to this solicitation, which includes the price, authorized signature and all other information or documentation required by the Invitation to Bid ("ITB") at the time of submittal.

Bid Form means the form that contains the goods or services to be purchased and that must be completed and submitted with the Bid.

Bidder means any person, firm or corporation, or its duly authorized representative tendering a Submittal in response to this solicitation.

Change Order means a written document ordering a change in the Contract price or Contract time or a material change in the Work.

Contract means the ITB and the Bid documents that have been executed by the Bidder and the Town subsequent to approval of award by the Town.

Contract Documents means the Contract as may be amended from time to time, any and plans, specification, bonds. addendum, clarifications, directives, Work Orders, Work Order Proposals, change orders, payments and other such documents issued under or relating to the Contract.

Contractor means the person, firm, or corporation with whom the Town has contracted and who will be responsible for the acceptable performance of any Work and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the Work under the Contract.

Critical Service means service that is required to mitigate circumstances that affect the ability of the Town to provide services or perform necessary operations.

Cure means the action taken by the Contractor promptly, after receipt of written notice from the Town of a breach of the Contract Documents, which shall be performed at no cost to the Town, to repair, replace, correct, or remedy all material, equipment, or other elements of the Work or the Contract Documents affected by such breach, or to otherwise make good and eliminate such breach.

Cure Period means the period of time in which the Contractor is required to remedy deficiencies in the Work or compliance with the Contract Documents after receipt of a written Notice to Cure from the Town identifying the deficiencies and the time to Cure.

Days mean calendar days.

Emergency Service means service that involves mitigating circumstances that threatens the health, life, safety, or welfare of the public or employees of the Town.

Final Completion means the date subsequent to the date of Substantial Completion at which time the Contractor has completed all the Work under a Work Order and submitted all documentation required by the Contract Documents.

Inspector means an authorized representative of the Town assigned to make necessary inspections of materials and Work performed by the Contractor.

Materials mean goods or equipment incorporated in a Project, or used or consumed in the performance of the Work.

Notice of Award means the written letter to the Contractor notifying the Contractor that it has been awarded the Contract.

Notice to Proceed means a written letter or directive issued by the Town Manager or designee acknowledging that all conditions precedent to award have been met and directing that the Contractor may begin Work.

Plans Drawings, and/or Sketch means a graphic representation of a Project issued as part of a Work Order.

Project means a task or series of tasks assigned by Town through the issuance of a Work Order that the Contractor must complete in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Project Manager means the individual assigned by the Town Manager to manage a Project issued through a Work Order under the Contract.

Request For Information (RFI) means a request from the Contractor seeking an interpretation or clarification relative to the Contract Documents. The RFI, which shall be clearly marked RFI, shall clearly and concisely set forth the issue(s) or item(s) requiring clarification or interpretation and why the response is required. The RFI must set forth the Contractor's interpretation or understanding of the document(s) in question, along with the reason for such understanding.

Subcontractor means a person, firm or corporation having a direct contract with Contractor, including one who furnishes material worked to a special design according to the Contract Documents, but does not include one who merely furnishes materials not so worked.

Substantial Completion means that point at which the Work is at a level of completion in substantial compliance with the Contract such that the Town can use the completed Work for its intended purpose. Substantial Compliance shall not be deemed to have occurred until any and all governmental entities, which regulate or have jurisdiction over the Work, have inspected, and approved the Work.

Submittal means the documents prepared and submitted by the Bidder in response to this ITB.

Town means the Town Council of the Town of Miami Lakes or the Town Manager, if applicable.

Town Manager means the duly appointed chief administrative officer of the Town of Miami Lakes or his designee.

Work as used herein refers to all reasonably necessary and inferable labor, material, equipment, and services, whether or not specifically stated, required by the Contract Documents for the Contractor to fulfill its obligations, under the Contract Documents.

Work Crew means the employees assigned by the Contractor to perform Work under a Work Order. At least one of the crew must possess an active journeyman's license from the State of Florida.

Work Order means a document issued by the Town awarding a specific Project to a Contractor.

Work Order Proposal means a document prepared by the Contractor, at the request of the Town for Work to be performed on a Project.

2.2 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The ITB and any addendum that may be issued constitute the complete set of specification requirements and Bid forms. The Bid Form page(s), and all forms contained in the ITB shall be completed, signed, and submitted in accordance with the requirements of Section 1. All bids must be typewritten or filled in with pen and ink, and must be signed in blue ink by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm. Errors, corrections, or changes on any document must be initialed by the signatory of the Bid. Bidders shall not be allowed to modify their bids after the opening time and date.

2.3 PREPARATION OF BID

The Bid Form contains multiple line items and the Bidder must provide prices for all line items and must provide the price for the total annual bid amount. Failure to include pricing on all line items as well as the total annual bid amount shall result in the Bid being found non-responsive.

Bidder must use the blank Town forms provided herein. The Bid must be signed and acknowledged by the Bidder in accordance with the directions on the ITB. Failure to utilize the Town's forms, or fully complete said forms will result in a determination that the Bid is non-responsive.

A Bid will be considered non-responsive if it is conditioned on modifications, changes, or revisions to the terms and conditions of the ITB.

The Bid is to include the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment, all overhead/indirect expenses and profit, necessary for the completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents.

Joint venture firms must complete and submit with their Bid the Form JV titled "Information for Determining Joint Venture Eligibility", (Form JV) and submit a copy of the signed formal agreement between all joint-venture parties. This joint venture agreement must indicate each of the party's respective roles, responsibilities and levels of participation for the Contract. Failure to timely submit Form JV, along with an attached written copy of the joint venture agreement may result in disqualification of the Bid. All joint venture firms must meet the requirements stipulated in the Florida Statutes.

2.4 BID PREPARATION AND RELATED COSTS

All cost involved with the preparation and submission of Bid to the Town or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder(s). No payment shall be made for any Bid received, or for any other effort required of or made by the Bidder prior to commencement of Work as defined by a contract duly approved by the Town Council or Town Manager, as applicable. The Town shall bear no responsibility for any cost associated with any judicial proceedings resulting from the ITB process.

2.5 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

A pre-bid conference will be held not be held for this ITB.

2.6 QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

Bidder must meet the minimum qualification requirements stated in Section 1 and must be capable of performing the primary trade Work under the Contract. Bidders shall submit a completed Qualification Statement utilizing the form attached.

2.7 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK

Bidder must be capable of self- performing all of the Work under this Contract. By submitting a Bid the Bidder certifies that it will meet this requirement. As part of the Bid the Bidder are to include the form entitled "Questionnaire". Failure to complete and submit this form or to meet this requirement shall result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive. Where the Contractor is deemed to not meeting this requirement during the performance of the Work the Contractor shall be in default of the Contract Documents.

2.8 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

It is the responsibility of each Bidder, before submitting a Bid in response to this ITB to:

- Carefully review the ITB, including any Addendum and notify the Town of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies.
- Take into account federal, state and local (Town and Miami-Dade County) including, without limitation the Town's Code, and Miami-Dade County and the State of Florida's statutes laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may affect a Bidder's ability to perform the Work.
- Study and carefully correlate Contractor's observations with the requirements of the ITB.

The submission of a Bid in response to this solicitation shall constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that it will comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents and that without exception, the Bid is premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required under the Contract Documents and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

2.9 INTERPRETATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the ITB and specifications shall be directed in writing by e-mail to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at 15150 NW 79th Court; Miami Lakes, FL 33016, Email: fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov. Interpretation or Clarifications considered necessary by the Town in response to such questions will be issued by means of addenda. All addenda will be posted on the Town's website, www.miamilakes-fl.gov and it is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to obtain all addenda. Written questions must be received no less than ten (10) days prior to bid opening. Only questions answered by written addenda shall be binding. Oral and other interpretation or clarifications shall be without legal effect.

2.10 POSTPONEMENT OF BID OPENING DATE

The Town reserves the right to postpone the date for receipt and opening of Bids and will make a reasonable effort to give at least five (5) calendar days notice prior to the Bid opening date, of any such postponement to prospective Bidders.

2.11 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS

The Town reserves the right to reject any and all Bids or any portion of a Bid, with or without cause, to waive technical errors and informalities, or to cancel or re-issue this solicitation. The Town also reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder who has failed to previously perform under a contract or who is in arrears to the Town.

Reasonable efforts will be made to either award the Contract or reject all Bids within ninety (90) calendar days after Bid opening date. A Bidder may not withdraw its Bid unilaterally nor change its Bid before the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of bid opening.

2.12 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

A Bidder may withdraw its Bid after the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of Bid opening by delivering written notice of withdrawal to the Town's Procurement Manager prior to award of the Contract by the Town Council or Town Manager, applicable. Once the Town makes the award, the Bid cannot be withdrawn under this Article.

2.13 OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the appointed time and place stated in the ITB. Late Bids will not be opened. No responsibility will be attached to any Town Staff for the premature opening of a Bid not properly addressed and identified. Bidders or their authorized agents are invited to be present at the bid opening. The lowest Bid identified at the Bid opening does not establish or determine the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder who may be awarded the Contract.

2.14 AWARD OF CONTRACT(S)

The Town anticipates awarding of the a Contract to the Bidder who is determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. However, the Town may, in its sole discretion makes an award(s) that are determined to be in the best interest of the Town. Should the Town elect to award more than one Contract the lowest responsive and responsible bidder will be designated as the Primary Contractor.

The Town may require demonstration of competency and, at its sole discretion, conduct site visit(s) and inspections of the Bidder's place(s) of business, require the Bidder to furnish documentation and/or require the Bidder to attend a meeting to determine the Bidder's qualifications and ability to meet the terms and conditions of this Contract. The Town shall consider, but not be limited to, such factors as financial capability, labor force, equipment, experience, knowledge of the trade work to be performed, the quantity of Work being performed by the Contractor and past performance on Town and other contracts. In no case will the Award be made until all necessary investigations have been made into the responsibility of the Bidder(s) and the Town Manager is satisfied that the Bidders are qualified to perform the Work.

Any Bidder who, at the time of submission, is involved in an ongoing bankruptcy as a debtor, or in a reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver has been appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of the Bidder under federal bankruptcy law or any state insolvency, the Bid may be declared non-responsive. Any Bidder

who has filed a lawsuit against the Town or where the Town has filed a lawsuit or won a court judgment against a Bidder, such Bidder may be declared non-responsible.

If the Town accepts a Bid, the Town will notify the Bidder that it is the apparent awardee and that award is conditioned upon executing the Contract, and submission and approval of the required insurance certificates. The Town will provide a written notice of award upon the Bidder meeting these requirements.

If the successful Bidder to whom a Contract is proposed to be awarded forfeits the Award by failing to meet the conditions as stated above, the Town may, at the Town's sole option, award the Contract to the next lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder or reject all Bids or readvertise the ITB.

2.15 COLLUSION

Where two (2) or more related parties, as defined in this Article, each submit a response to an ITB, such submissions shall be presumed to be collusive. The foregoing presumption may be rebutted by the presentation of evidence as to the extent of ownership, control and management of such related parties in preparation and submission under such ITB. Related parties shall mean employees, officers or the principals thereof which have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another firm or in which a parent company or the principals thereof of one Bidder have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another Bidder for the same project(s). ITB responses found to be collusive shall be rejected.

2.16 BIDDER IN ARREARS OR DEFAULT

The Bidder represents and warrants that the Bidder is not in arrears to the Town and is not a defaulter as a surety or otherwise upon any obligation to the Town. In addition the Bidder warrants that the Bidder has not been declared "not responsible" or "disqualified" by or debarred from doing business with any state or local government entity in the State of Florida, the Federal Government or any other State/local governmental entity in the United States of America, nor is there any proceeding pending pertaining to the Bidder's responsibility or qualification to receive public agreements. The Bidder considers this warrant as stated in this Article to be a continual obligation and shall inform the Town of any change during the term of the Contract.

2.17 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT

In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, (Section 287.133, Florida Statutes) a person or affiliate who is a contractor, who had been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to the Town, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases or real property to the Town, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with the Town in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.917, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Violation of this section by the Contractor shall result in rejection of the Bid, termination of the contract, and may cause Contractor debarment.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 3

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Contractor will promptly perform its duties under the Contract and will give the Work as much priority as is necessary to cause the Work to be completed on a timely basis in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The date and period of time set forth in the Notice to Proceed for the commencement, commencement and completion of the Work was included because of its importance to the Town.

3.2 NOTICES

Whenever either party desires to give written notice to the other relating to the Contract, such must be addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place specified below; and the place for giving the notice shall remain until it shall have been changed by written notice in compliance with the provisions of this Article. Notice shall be deemed given on the date received or within 3 days of mailing, if mailed through the United States Postal Service. Notice shall be deemed given on the date sent via e-mail or facsimile. Notice shall be deemed given via courier/delivery service upon the initial delivery date by the courier/delivery service. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice:

For Town:

Mr. Alex Rey Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016 reya@miamilakes-fl.gov

Mr. Gary Fabrikant
Procurement Manager
Town of Miami Lakes
15150 NW 79th Court
Miami Lakes, Florida 33016
fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov

For Contractor: Mr. Gonzalo Planas, Jr. Vice President G&R Electric Corp. 4450 East 10th Court Hialeah, Florida 33013 (305) 558-0217 grelect@bellsouth.net

During the Work the Contractor shall maintain continuing communications with designated Town representative (s). The Contractor shall keep the Town fully informed as to the progress of the Work under the Contract.

3.3 PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS

If there is a conflict or inconsistency between any term, statement requirement, or provision of any exhibit attached hereto, any document or events referred to herein, or any document incorporated into the Contract Documents by reference and a term, statement, requirement, the specifications or any plans, or provision of the Contract Documents the following order of precedence shall apply:

In the event of conflicts in the Contract Documents the priorities stated below shall govern;

- Revisions and Change Orders to the Contract shall govern over the Contract
- The Contract Documents shall govern over the Contract
- The Special Conditions shall govern over the General Conditions of the Contract
- Addendum to an ITB shall govern over a ITB

In the event that Drawings and specifications are provided with a Work Order the priorities stated below shall govern:

- Scope of Work and Specifications shall govern over plans and drawings
- Schedules, when identified as such shall govern over all other portions of the plans
- Specific notes shall govern over all other notes, and all other portions of the plans, unless specifically stated otherwise
- Larger scale drawings shall govern over smaller scale drawings
- Figured or numerical dimensions shall govern over dimensions obtained by scaling
- Where provisions of codes, manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive or higher quality shall govern

3.4 INDEMNIFICATION-

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, agents and employees from and against all liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs at both trial an appellate levels arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work under this Contract, caused by negligence, recklessness, intentional misconduct, or any act or omission of the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Contract or otherwise provided by Contractor shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Town or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as herein provided.

The Contractor agrees and recognizes that the Town shall not be held liable or responsible for any claims which may result from any actions or omissions of the Contractor in which the Town participated either through review or concurrence of the Contractor's actions. In reviewing, approving or rejecting any submissions by the Contractor or other acts of the Contractor, the Town in no way assumes or shares any responsibility or liability of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor, under this Agreement. The Contractor shall defend the Town or provide for such defense at its own expense, at the Town's option.

This indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

The Town has provided specific consideration for the indemnification of \$10.00 from the sums due to the Contractor under this Contract.

3.5 INSURANCE

Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract, insurance of such type and in such amounts necessary to protect its interest and the interest of the Town against hazards or risks of loss as specified below. The underwriter of such insurance shall be qualified to do business in Florida, be rated B as to management and "Class V" as to strength or better as rated by the latest edition of Best's Insurance Guide, published by A.M. Best Company, Oldwick, New Jersey, or its equivalent, The insurance carrier shall have agents upon whom service of process may be made in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute to the Contractor's insurance. The insurance coverages shall include a minimum of:

- a. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance: Coverage to apply for all employees for statutory limits as required by the State of Florida's Statutory Workers' Compensation Law" and all applicable Federal laws. The policy(ies) must include Employer's Liability with minimum limits of \$500,000.00 each accident and a waiver of subrogation.
- b. Comprehensive Automobile and Vehicle Liability Insurance: This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to property of others arising from the Contractor's use of motor vehicles or any other equipment and shall cover operation with respect to onsite and offsite operations and insurance coverage shall extend to any motor vehicles or other equipment irrespective of whether the same is owned, non-owned, or hired. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive that the latest edition

- of the Business Automobile Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsement, as filed by the Insurance Services Office.
- <u>c.</u> <u>Commercial General Liability.</u> This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims arising from injuries to members of the public or damage to property of others arising out of any act or omission to act of the Contractor or any of its agents, employees, or subcontractors. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$500,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a primary and non contributory basis and with a coverage form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Commercial General Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include: (1) Premises and/or Operations; (2) Independent contractors and Products and/or completed Operations; (3) Broad Form Property Damage, Personal Injury and a Contractual Liability Endorsement, including any hold harmless and/or indemnification agreement.
- d. Certificate of Insurance: Contractor shall provide the Town Manager or designee with Certificates of Insurance for all required policies within fifteen (15) days of notification of a conditional award by the Town. The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also shall refer specifically to this Contract and shall state that such insurance is as required by this Contract. The Town reserves the right to require the Contractor to provide a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town. Each policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice shall be provided to the Town before any policy or coverage is cancelled, restricted, or a material change is made. Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the Town Manager or designee.
- e. Additional Insured The Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured for the liability of the Town resulting from operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor in performance of this Contract. Contractor's insurance, including that applicable to the Town as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to Contractor's insurance. Contractor's insurance shall contain a severability of interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each.

All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be approved by the Town Manager. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim.

3.6 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The employee(s) of the Contractor shall be considered to be at all times its employee(s), and not employee(s) or agent(s) of the Town or any of its departments.

The Contractor agrees that the Contractor will at all times employ, maintain and assign to the performance of the Work a sufficient number of competent and qualified personnel to meet the requirements of the Work to be performed.

The Contractor agrees to adjust staffing levels or to replace any staff personnel if so requested by the Town Manager or designee, should the Town Manager or designee make a determination that said staffing is unacceptable or that any individual is not performing in a manner consistent with the requirements for such a position.

The Contractor represents that its staff personnel have the proper skills, training, background, knowledge, experience, rights, authorizations, integrity, character and licenses as necessary to perform the Work, in a competent and professional manner.

The Contractor shall at all times cooperate with the Town and coordinate its respective Work efforts to most effectively and efficiently progress the performance of the Work.

The Town and other agencies authorized by the Town, shall have full access to the Project site at all times.

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only best practices are to prevail and only materials and workmanship of the best quality are to be used in the performance of the Work.

3.7 RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to provision of services specified in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be familiar with all federal, state and local laws that affect the Work.

3.8 SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION

The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the nature and location(s) of the Work under the Contract Documents subsequent to receiving a Work Order and prior to commencement of Work on the site, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing upon availability of installation, transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, and all other matters which can in any way affect the Work or the cost thereof under the Contract Documents.

Work site(s) may have existing utilities, such as, but not limited to, irrigation, phone, water and sewer, CATV, traffic signals, electrical, and storm sewer. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to verify the location of all such utilities, structures, etc., by hand excavation or other appropriate measures before performing any Work. The Contractor shall call Sunshine State One Call and other appropriate agencies, as applicable, to determine the locations of existing utilities prior to the commencement of

any Work. The Contractor is responsible for any and all claims resulting from the damage caused to any utilities, identified or not.

Should the Contractor identify any utilities, structures, etc., which will or may be encountered during the performance of the Work, the Town shall be consulted immediately in order for a decision to be made on the potential relocation or other action(s) to be taken as it relates to the work.

Should the Town direct the Contractor to relocate any utilities that would be impacted by any Work then the Town shall compensate the Contractor for such relocation in accordance with the Chang Order provisions of the Contract.

The Contractor shall not purposefully disrupt or disconnect any type of utility whatsoever without first obtaining the prior written approval of the Town or applicable utility owner. Requests for any disconnection, including those required of other utilities must be in writing and received by the Town at least 72 hours prior to the time of the requested interruption. The Town may require that the Contractor notify in writing any property owners to be impacted by service interruptions to their utilities.

Any failure by the Contractor to familiarize itself with any utilities that may impact the performance of the Work shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for properly estimating the difficulty or cost of performing the Work and shall not entitle the Contractor to any additional compensation.

3.9 METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, and interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be made upon that basis.

The Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's requirements for the handling, deliver and storage of all equipment and materials. Contractor shall inspect all equipment and materials immediately prior to installation and shall not install any damaged or defective materials or equipment.

Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's applicable instructions and recommendations for the performance of the Work, to the extent that these instructions and recommendations are more explicit or more stringent than requirements indicated in the Contract Documents or applicable Work Order.

The Work to be performed shall be done in such a manner so as not to interfere with the normal Town operations of the Project site. The manner in which the Work is performed shall be subject to the approval of the Project Manager, whom if necessary, shall have the authority to require changes in the manner in which the Work is performed. There shall be no obstruction of Town services without the prior written approval of the Project Manager. All requests for such interruption or obstruction must

be given in writing to the Project Manager 24 hours in advance of the interruption of Town operations.

The Contractor shall familiarize itself with normal Town operations where the Work is to be performed so that it can conduct the Work in the best possible manner to the complete satisfaction of the Project Manager.

Depending on the nature of the Work the Project Manager may require a staging plan be submitted to and approved by the Project Manager prior to the start of construction and issuance of the Notice to Proceed (NTP). Such staging plan shall be revised and resubmitted as necessary during construction.

3.10 CONTRACTOR TO CHECK PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND DATA

Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities and details shown on any plans, drawings, or sketches (if provided), specifications or other data received from Project Manager (if any) and shall notify the Project Manager of all errors, omissions and discrepancies found therein within three (3) calendar days of discovery. Contractor will not be allowed to take advantage of any error, omission or discrepancy, as full instructions will be furnished the Project Manager. Contractor shall not be liable for damages resulting from errors, omissions or discrepancies in the Contract Documents unless Contractor recognized such error, omission or discrepancy and knowingly failed to report it to Project Manager.

3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS

Contractor may be required, based on the Scope of Work of a Project, to submit shop drawings, sketches, samples or product data. A Work Order will state if shop drawings or other submittals are required.

Contractor is responsible to timely submit such documents or samples in a timely manner for review by the Project Manager. Shop Drawings that are to be complete in every detail and reflect clearly identify any deviation from what is required by the Contract Documents. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to submit sufficient information to allow the Project Manager to properly evaluate and approve the submittal or shop drawing.

Where professional calculations and/or certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, and or equipment are required, the Project Manager and/or Consultant are entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications submitted by the Contractor. Calculations, when required, shall be submitted in a neat clear and easy format to follow.

Contractor is solely responsible for the accuracy of all shop drawings and submittals and any approval by Project Manager shall in no way relieve the Contractor from said responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents.

3.12 SUBSTITUTIONS

Substitution of any specified material or equipment shall require the prior written acceptance of the Project Manager. It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to provide sufficient information and documentation to the Project Manager to allow for a thorough review and determination on the acceptability of the substitution. Approval of a substitution does not waive or mitigate the Contractor's sole responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents and a Work Order.

3.13 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

In the event that during the course of the Work on a Project the Contractor encounters subsurface or concealed conditions at the Project site which differ materially from those shown in the Contract Documents or Work Order, and from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character called for in the Contract Documents, Contractor, without disturbing the conditions and before performing any Work affected by such conditions, shall, within twenty-four (24) hours of its discovery, notify the Project Manager and/or Consultant in writing of the existence of the aforesaid conditions. Project Manager or the Consultant shall, within two (2) business days after receipt of Contractor's written notice, investigate the site conditions identified by Contractor. If, in the sole opinion of Project Manager or the Consultant, the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work, whether or not charged as a result of the conditions, Project Manager or Consultant shall recommend an equitable adjustment to cost of the Work or the time to complete the Work, or both. If the Project Manager and Contractor cannot agree on an adjustment in the Contract Price and/or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be referred to the Town's Procurement Manager for determination. Should the Town's Procurement Manager determine that the conditions of the Project site are not so materially different to justify a change in the terms of the Contract Documents, the Director shall so notify the Project Manager, Consultant, and Contractor in writing, stating the reasons, and such determination shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto.

No request by Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the Contract Documents under this provision shall be allowed unless Contractor has given written notice in strict accordance with the provisions of this Article. No request for an equitable adjustment or change to the Contract Price or Contract Time for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after the date certified by Consultant or Project Manager as the date of substantial completion.

3.14 PROTECTION OF PROPERTY, UTILITIES, AND THE PUBLIC

The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all its Work from damage and shall protect public and private property, and utilities from injury or loss arising in connection with the Work, and take all necessary precautions to prevent accidents, injuries, or damage to persons or property on or near the Work.

The Contractor shall be completely responsible for, and shall replace and make good all loss, injury, or damage to any property (including landscaping, irrigation, walks, drives, structures or utilities.

3.15 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

Any Work performed in the public right-of-way shall require the prior approval of the appropriate public agencies. These public agencies include, but are not limited to, the Town, Miami-Dade County Public Works Department, and FDOT. Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for Work performed in the public right-of-way, except for the cost of any required use of police officers, which reimbursement is addressed in Article 4.8.

Prior to commencing any Work the Contractor must install warning signs and any other warning and safety devices advising motorist and pedestrians of Work being performed. All signs shall be temporary and shall be removed at the end of the day or at the end of the completion of the Work, whichever is shorter.

The following guidelines must be followed during each maintenance operation:

1. When no lanes are blocked:

- a. All Contractor vehicles must have beacons and flashes on.
- b. "MEN WORKING" signs must be set up before starting operations.
 - On two lane roads: one (1) sign must be posted at each end of site, for each direction of travel (total of two (2) signs).
 - On four lane roads two (2) signs at each end of site (one on median and one on shoulder) for each direction of travel (total of four (4) signs.
 - Orange safety cones shall be set at edges of travel lanes in the immediate area of work.
- c. Vehicles shall be parked next to median at the transition area of left turn lanes. Orange traffic cones must be placed from the start of transition of the left turn lane to the front of vehicle at fifteen feet (15') intervals.

2. When a lane is to be blocked:

- a. No traffic lane shall be blocked for any period between the hours of 7:00 to 10:00 AM and 3:30 to 7:00 PM.
- b. No traffic lanes may be blocked for a period longer than fifteen (15) minutes, unless a Maintenance of Traffic (M.O.T.) Plan has been approved at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
- c. A traffic lane may be blocked for up to fifteen (15) minutes, if absolutely necessary. However, the following M.O.T. must be followed:
 - Flagmen shall be posted at the edge of the travel lane at least five hundred (500) feet prior to start of transition.

 There shall be a minimum of two hundred (200) feet transition with traffic cones, prior to lane closure. It is recommended that vehicle-blocking lane have a flashing arrow board.

Failure by the Contractor to comply with the Maintenance of Traffic requirements will result in the Town issuing a stop work order until corrective action is taken. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional time resulting in any delays due to issuance of a stop work order.

3.16 COORDINATION OF THE WORK

Prior to the commencement of the Work the Project Manager will make every effort, based on available information, to notify the Contractor of any ongoing project(s) or project(s) scheduled to commence during the Work on a Project that may require coordination. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for coordinating the Work with any other project(s) to minimize any potential adverse impact. Contractor shall not be entitled to any days of delay for failure to properly coordinate the Work. The Consultant and the Project Manager may assist the Contractor in coordinating the Work. However, any such assistance, or lack thereof shall form the basis for any claim for delay or increased cost.

If any part of Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any other persons, Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to Project Manager any defects in such work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other person's work as fit and proper for the reception of Contractor's Work, except as to defects which may develop in other contractor's work after the execution of Contractor's Work.

Contractor shall conduct its operations and take all reasonable steps to coordinate the prosecution of the Work so as to create no interference or impact on any other contractor on the site. Should such interference or impact occur, Contractor shall be liable to the affected contractor for the cost of such interference or impact.

To ensure the proper execution of subsequent Work, Contractor shall inspect the Work already in place and shall at once report to Project Manager and Consultant any discrepancy between the executed Work and the requirements of the Contract Documents.

3.17. ACCESS TO THE PROJECT SITE(S)

Town shall provide, as may be indicated in the Contract Documents or Work Order, the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and such other lands as are designated by Town for the use of Contractor.

Contractor shall provide, at Contractor's own expense and without liability to Town, any additional and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities, or for storage of materials. Contractor shall furnish to the Town copies of written permission obtained by Contractor from the owners of such facilities.

3.18 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES AND ACCIDENTS

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town Manager or designee, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

3.19 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees in the performance of the Work on, about or adjacent to the premises, and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State, and local laws, including, but not limited to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, and amendments thereto, to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the Work is being performed.

The Contractor shall comply with the OSHA "Federal Right to Know' Regulation regarding informing employees of toxic substances in the workplace, providing training, and emergency procedures.

Contractor must adhere to applicable environmental protection guidelines for the duration of the Work. The Contractor shall comply with all codes, ordinances, rules, orders and other legal requirements of public authorities (including OSHA, EPA, DERM, the Town, Miami-Dade County, State of Florida), which bear on the performance of the Work

The Contractor shall provide such equipment and facilities as are necessary or required, in the case of accidents, for first aid service to person who may be injured during the Project(s) duration.

3.20 LABOR AND MATERIALS

Unless otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, water, tools, equipment, light, power, transportation and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work. All materials shall be new unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

3.21 VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

Contractor shall have on hand at all times clean and in good working order such vehicles, machinery, tools, accessories, and other items necessary to perform the Work under this Contract. The Town may require the repair or replacement of equipment as reasonably necessary.

3.22 SUPERVISION OF THE WORK

Contractor shall have competent English speaking supervisor who shall represent Contractor and all directions given to the supervisor shall be as binding as if given to Contractor. Contractor will provide properly licensed personnel where such personnel are required by any rule, regulations, or law. Contractor shall give efficient supervision to the Work, using its best skill and attention.

3.23 SUBCONTRACTORS

Subcontracting of Work is not permitted under this Contract

3.24 <u>AUTHORITY OF THE PROJECT MANAGER</u>

The Town Manager hereby authorizes the Project Manager designated in the Work Order to determine, all questions of any nature whatsoever arising out of, under or in connection with, or in any way relating to or on account of the Work, and questions as to the interpretation of the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall be bound by all determinations or orders of the Project Manager and shall promptly respond to requests of the Project Manager, including the withdrawal or modification of any previous order, and regardless of whether the Contractor agrees with the Project Manager's determination or requests. Where requests are made orally, the Project Manage will follow up in writing, as soon thereafter as is practicable.

The Project Manager shall have authority to act on behalf of the Town to the extent provided by the Contract, unless otherwise modified in writing by the Town. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued in writing. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued through the Town Manager or the Project Manager.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, and will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

All interpretations and recommendations of the Project Manager shall be consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.

3.25 TOWN LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES

In accordance with the Public Bid Disclosure Act, 218.80, Florida Statutes, each license, permit, or fee the Contractor will have to pay the Town before or during the Work or the percentage method or unit method of all licenses, permits and fees required by the Town and payable to the Town by virtue of the Work as part of the Contract are as follows:

- Contractor shall have and maintain during the term of this Contract all appropriate Town licenses. Fees for which shall be paid in full in accordance with the Town's Fee structure for such licenses. THERE WILL NOT BE ANY PERCENTAGE REDUCTION OR WAIVING OF TOWN LICENSE FEES.
- 2) During the performance of this Contract there may be times when the Contractor will be required to obtain a Town permit for such Work. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to insure that he has the appropriate Town permits to perform such work as may become necessary during the performance of the Work. Any fees related to Town required permits in connection with this Contract will be the responsibility of the Contractor and will be reimbursed by the Town.

Licenses, permits, and fees that may be required by County, State or Federal entities are not included in the above list.

3.26 TAXES

Contractor shall pay all applicable sales, consumer, use and other taxes required by law. Contractor is responsible for reviewing the pertinent state statutes involving state taxes and complying with all requirements.

3.27 REMOVAL OF UNSATISFACTORY PERSONNEL

The Town may make written request to the Contractor for the prompt removal and replacement of any personnel employed or retained by the Contractor, or any or Subcontractor engaged by the Contractor to provide and perform services or Work pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall respond to the Town within five (5) calendar days of receipt of such request with either the removal and replacement of such personnel or written justification as to why that may not occur. The Town shall make the final determination as to the removal of unsatisfactory personnel from the Work. The Contractor agrees that the removal of any of such individual(s) does not require the termination or demotion of said individual(s).

3.28 INSPECTION OF THE WORK

The Town Manager or designee, other Town representatives, and inspectors representing the Town and other public entities having jurisdiction over the Work shall at all times have access to the Work

Inspectors shall have no authority to permit deviations from, or to relax any of the provisions of the Contract Documents or to delay the Work by failure to inspect the materials and Work with reasonable promptness without the written permission or instruction of Project Manager.

3.29 DEFECTIVE OR NON-COMPLIANT WORK

The Town Manager and Project Manager shall have the authority to reject or disapprove Work that is found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of the Contract. If required Contractor shall promptly either correct all defective or non-compliant Work or remove such defective Work and replace it with non-defective/non-

compliant Work. Contractor shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal or corrections.

Re-examination of any of the Work may be ordered by the Project Manager, and if so ordered, the Work must be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town shall pay the cost of reexamination and replacement by means of a Change Order. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall pay such cost.

Should Contractor fail or refuse to remove or correct any defective or non-compliant Work or to make any necessary repairs in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents within the time indicated in writing by the Town Manager of designee, the Town Manager or designee shall have the authority to cause the defective/non-compliant Work to be removed or corrected, or make such repairs or corrections as may be necessary at Contractor's expense. Any expense incurred by the Town in making such removals, corrections or repairs, shall be paid for out of any monies due or which may become due to Contractor. In the event of failure of Contractor to make all necessary repairs promptly and fully, the Town Manager or designee may declare the Contractor in default.

If, within the warranty period required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract, any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor, after receipt of written notice from Town, shall promptly correct such defective or nonconforming Work within the time specified by Town without cost to Town. Should the Contractor fail to take such action the Town may take any necessary and appropriate action and hold the Contractor liable and responsible for all costs. The Town may take any action allowed under this Contract or in law to recover all such costs. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which Contractor might have under the Contract Documents including but not limited to any claim regarding latent defects.

Failure to reject any defective Work or material shall not in any way prevent later rejection when such defect is discovered, or obligate Town to accept.

3.30 CHANGE ORDERS

The Town reserves the right to order changes which may result in additions to or reductions from the amount, type or value of the Work shown in the Contract and which are within the general scope of the Contract Documents and all such changes shall be authorized only by a Change Order approved in advance, and issued in accordance with provisions of the Town.

Any changes to the Contract must be contained in a written document, executed by the both parties. However, under circumstances determined necessary by Town, Change Orders may be issued unilaterally by Town.

In the event satisfactory adjustment cannot be reached and a Change Order has not been issued, the Town reserves the right, at its sole option to direct the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis or make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the proposed additional Work.

Where the Town directs the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis, Contractor shall maintain detailed records of all labor and material costs for review of the Town. In addition, the Contractor shall be entitled a combined profit and overhead rate that shall not be in excess of ten (10%) percent of the direct labor and material costs, unless the Procurement Manager determines that the complexity and risk of the Change Order Work is such that an additional factor is appropriate. The final amount to be paid to the Contract for Change Order Work shall be subject to negotiation between the Town and the Contractor.

Failure by the Contractor to proceed with Change Order Work when so directed by the Town Manager or designee may result in the Contractor being found in default of the Contract.

3.31 FORCE MAJEURE

Should any failure to perform on the part of Contractor be due to a condition of force majeure as that term is interpreted under Florida law, then, the Town may allow an extension of time reasonably commensurate with the cause of such failure to perform or cure.

If the Contractor is delayed in performing any obligation under the Contract Documents due to a force majeure condition, the Contractor shall request a time extension from the Town within two (2) working days of said force majeure occurrence. Any time extension shall be subject to mutual agreement and shall not be cause for any claim by the Contractor for extra compensation unless additional services are required. **Do Not Include** inclement weather except as permitted by Florida law and may not include the acts or omissions of Subcontractors.

3.32 EXTENSION OF TIME

Any reference in this section to the Contractor shall be deemed to include suppliers, and permitted Subcontractors, whether or not in privities of contract with the Contractor for the purpose of this article.

If the Contractor is delayed at any time during the progress of the Work beyond the Contract Time and/or Notice to Proceed (NTP) by the neglect or failure of the Town or by a Force Majeure, then the Contract Time set forth in the Contract shall be extended by the Town subject to the following conditions:

- The cause of the delay arises after issuance of the NTP and could not have been anticipated by the Contractor by reasonable investigation before proceeding with the Work;
- The Contractor demonstrates that the completion of the Work will be actually and necessarily delayed;

 The effect of such cause cannot be avoided or mitigated by the exercise of all reasonable precautions, efforts and measures whether before or after the occurrence of the cause of delay.

Note: A delay meeting all the conditions of the above, shall be deemed an Excusable Delay.

The Town reserves the right to rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if subsequently, the Project Manager determines that any information provided by the Contractor in support of a request for an extension of time was erroneous; provided however, that such information or facts, if known, would have resulted in a denial of the request for an Excusable Delay. Notwithstanding the above, the Project Manager will not rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if the Contractor acted in reliance upon the granting of such extension and such extension was based on information which, although later found to have been erroneous, was submitted in good faith by the Contractor.

The request for an Excusable Delay shall be made within five (5) calendar days after the time when the Contractor knows or should have known of any cause for which it may claim an extension of time and shall provide any actual or potential basis for an extension of time, identifying such causes and describing, as fully as practicable at that time, the nature and expected duration of the delay and its effect on the completion of that part of the Work identified in the request. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to furnish such additional information or documentation, as the Project Manager shall reasonably deem necessary or helpful in considering the requested extension.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time unless the Contractor affirmatively demonstrates that it is entitled to such extension.

The Project Manager shall endeavor to review and respond to the Contractor's request for Excusable Delays in a reasonable period of time; however, the Contractor shall be obligated to continue to perform the Work required regardless of whether the Project Manager has issued a decision or whether the Contractor agrees or disagrees with that decision.

With regard to an injunction, strike or interference of public origin which may delay the Project, the Contractor shall promptly give the Project Manager a copy of the injunction or other orders and copies of the papers upon which the same shall have been granted. The Town shall be afforded the right to intervene and become a party to any suit or proceeding in which any such injunction shall be obtained and move to dissolve the same or otherwise, as the Town may deem proper.

The permitting of the Contractor to proceed with the Work subsequent to the date specified in the Contract (as such date may have been extended by a change order), the making of any payment to the Contractor, the issuance of any Change Order, shall not waiver the Town's rights under the Contract, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidated damages or declaring Contractor in default.

3.33 EXCUSABLE DELAY, NON-COMPENSABLE

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers and vendors, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its subcontractors, suppliers or vendors and by the Town. Then Contractor shall be entitled only to a time extension and no compensation for the delay.

Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor shall document its claim for any time extension as provided in the Contract.

Failure of Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Contract, as to any particular event of delay shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver, abandonment or relinquishment of any and all claims resulting from that particular event of delay.

3.34 CLAIMS

Any claim for a change in the Contract time for completion of any Work, the Contract Term, or Contract price shall be made by written notice by Contractor to the Town Manager or designee and to within ten (10) business days of the commencement of the event giving rise to the claim and stating the general nature and cause of the claim. Thereafter, within twenty (20) calendar days of the termination of the event giving rise to the claim, written notice of the extent of the claim with supporting information and documentation shall be provided unless the Town Manager or designee allows an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. The written notice must be accompanied by Contractor's written notarized statement that the adjustment(s) claimed is the entire adjustment to which the Contractor has reason to believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. All claims and disputes shall be determined in accordance with the Contract. It is expressly and specifically agreed that any and all claims for changes to to the Contract shall be waived if not submitted in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

The Contract time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost on critical Work items due to delays beyond the control of and through no fault or negligence of Contractor if a claim is made as provided in this Article. Such delays shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by own, fires, floods, labor disputes beyond the control of the Contractor, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions (if applicable), or acts of God.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from the Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by

Contractor for actual delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active interference on the part of Town. Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract time for completion of the Work, as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting excusable delay.

The Contractor agrees to make no claim for damages for delay of any kind in the performance of the Contract Documents whether occasioned by any act or omission of the Town or any of its representatives and the Contractor agrees that any such claim shall be compensated solely by an extension of time to complete performance of the Work due to an excusable delay as defined in this Article. The Contractor alone specifically assumes the risk of such delays, including without limitation: delays in processing or approving any submittals to the Town, or the failure to render determinations, approvals, replies, inspections, in a timely manner. Contractor shall not receive monetary compensation for Town delay(s).

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its Subcontractors, suppliers, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its Subcontractors, suppliers and by the Town. Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor must document its claim for any time extension as provided herein.

Failure of Contractor to comply with this Article as to any particular event of claim shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver of any and all claims resulting from that particular event.

3.35 DISPUTES AND MEDIATION

Contractor understands and agrees that all disputes between it and the Town upon an alleged violation of the terms of this Contract by the Town shall be submitted for resolution in the following manner.

Initial effort(s) should be made by the Contractor to resolve any issues with the Town representative(s) it works within in the coordination and performance of the Work.

Should the initial efforts at resolution not end in a mutual resolution then the Contractor notify in writing the Procurement Manager identified in Article 3.2, Notices, of the claim or dispute

The Contractor shall submit its dispute in writing, with all supporting documentation, to the Procurement Manager, as identified in Article 3.2, Notices. Upon receipt of said notification the Procurement Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Should the Contractor and the Procurement Manager fail to resolve the claim or dispute the Contractor shall submit their dispute in writing within five (5) calendar days of the written finding being issued by the Procurement Manager to the Town Manager. Failure to submit such appeal in the stated timeframe of the written finding shall constitute acceptance of the finding by the Contractor. Upon receipt of said notification

the Town Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Appeal to the Town Manager for his/her resolution, is required prior to Contractor being entitled to seek judicial relief in connection therewith. Should the Contractor be entitled to compensation hereunder, the Town Manager's decision may be subject to approval by the Town Council. Contractor shall not be entitled to seek judicial relief unless:

- it has first received Town Manager's written decision, approved by the Town Council if applicable, or
- (ii) a period of sixty (60) days has expired after submitting to the Town Manager a detailed statement of the dispute, accompanied by all supporting documentation, or a period of (90) days has expired where Town Manager's decision is subject to Town Council for approval; or
- (iii) Town has waived compliance with the procedure set forth in this Article by written instrument(s) signed by the Town Manager.

In the event the determination of a dispute under this Article is unacceptable to either party hereto, the party objecting to the determination must notify the other party in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the written determination. The notice must state the basis of the objection and must be accompanied by a statement that any Contract price or Contract time adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the objecting party has reason to believe it is entitled to as a result of the determination. Within sixty (60) calendar days after completion of the Work or expiration of the Contract Term, the parties shall participate in mediation to address all objections to any determinations hereunder and to attempt to prevent litigation. A certified Mediator, who the parties find mutually acceptable, will conduct any mediation proceedings in Miami-Dade County, State of Florida. The costs of a certified Mediator shall be shared on a 50/50 basis. Should claim or dispute not be resolved in mediation, the parties retain all their legal rights and remedies provided under State law. A party objecting to a determination specifically waives all of its rights provided hereunder, including its rights and remedies under State law, if said party fails to comply in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

3.36 CONTINUING THE WORK

Contractor shall continue to perform all Work under the Contract Documents during all disputes or disagreements with Town, including disputes or disagreements concerning a request for a Change Order and no Work shall not be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements.

3.37 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

The Town may terminate this Contract or any other contracts with the Town with any person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate that attempts to meet its contractual obligations with the Town through fraud, misrepresentation or material misstatement. Such person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate shall be responsible for all direct or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation.

3.38 STOP WORK ORDER

The Town may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop all, or any part, of the Work for a period of up to ninety (90) days (or any lesser period), commencing no sooner than the date the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree. Any such order shall be specifically identified as a "Stop Work Order" issued pursuant to this paragraph. Within the period of ninety (90) days (or the lesser period specified) after a Stop Work Order is delivered to the Contractor, or within any extension to which the parties have agreed the Town shall either:

- Cancel the Stop Work Order; or
- Terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in Article 3.34, Termination for Convenience.

If a Stop Work Order issued under this Article is canceled or the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the Contractor shall resume the Work without compensation to the Contractor for such suspension other than extending the time to complete any Work under the Contract or extending the Contract Term to the extent that, in the opinion of the Town Manager or designee, the Contractor may have been delayed by such suspension. In the event the Town Manger or designee determines that the suspension of Work was necessary due to Contractor's defective or incorrect Work, unsafe Work conditions caused by the Contractor, or any other reason caused by Contractor's fault or omission, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time or Contract Term or (Time) as a result of the issuance of a Stop Work Order.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.39 HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS

During such periods of time as are designated by the United States Weather Bureau as being a hurricane warning, the Contractor, at no cost to the Town, shall take all precautions necessary to secure any Work in response to all threatened storm events, regardless of whether the Contractor has given notice of same.

Compliance with any specific hurricane warning or alert precautions will not constitute additional work.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.40 CLEANING UP; TOWN'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

Contractor shall at all times keep the Work site(s) free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by its operations. At the completion of a Work at a work

site(s), Contractor shall remove all its waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project(s) as well as any tools, equipment, machinery and surplus materials or supplies. If Contractor fails to clean up during the performance of the Work or at the completion of the Work, Town may do so and the cost incurred shall be charged to Contractor. Any combustible waste materials must be removed from the work site(s) at the end of each day.

Should the Contractor leave any open trenches at any time that Work is not being performed the Town may have the open trenches covered and deduct any cost incurred from any outstanding payments due or to become due to the Contractor. The Town may also invoice the Contractor for the incurred costs.

3.41 SET-OFFS, WITHHOLDING, AND DEDUCTIONS

The Town may set-off, deduct or withhold from any payment due the Contractor, such sums as may be specifically allowed in the Contract or by applicable law including, without limitation, the following:

- Any amount of any claim by a third party;
- Any Liquidated Damages, and/or;
- Any unpaid legally enforceable debt owed by the Contractor to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor in writing of any such withholdings.

Any withholding, which is ultimately held to have been wrongful, shall be paid to the Contractor in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act

3.42 CONTRACTOR DEFAULT

a. Event of Default

An event of default shall mean a breach of the Contract by the Contractor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in addition to those instances referred to herein as a breach, an Event of Default, shall include but not limited to, the following:

- The Contractor has not performed the Work in a timely manner;
- The Contractor has refused or failed to supply properly skilled staff or provided sufficient quantities of staff to perform the Work;
- The Contractor has failed to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or suppliers for any services or materials, or supplies they have provided;
- The Contractor has become insolvent or has assigned the proceeds received for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors, or the Contractor has taken advantage of any insolvency statute or debtor/creditor law or if the Contractor's affairs have been put in the hands of a receiver;
- The Contractor has failed to obtain the approval of the Town where required by the Contract Documents;
- The Contractor has failed in the representation of any warranties stated herein;

 When, in the opinion of the Town, reasonable grounds for uncertainty exist with respect to the Contractor's ability to perform the Work.

b. Notice of Default-Opportunity to Cure

Where an Event of Default ("Default") occur under the Contract, the Town may at its sole discretion notify the Contractor, specifying the basis for such Default, and advising the Contractor that such Default must be cured within a time frame specified by the Town or the Contract with the Town may be terminated. The Town is under no obligation to issue such notification. The Town may grant an extension to the cure period if the Town deems it appropriate and in the best interest of the Town, without waiver of any of the Town's rights hereunder. The Town, at its sole discretion, may have a default corrected by its own forces or another contractor and any such costs incurred will be deducted from any sums due the Contractor under any contract with the Town.

The Town Manager or designee may also suspend any payment or part thereof or order a Work stoppage until such time as the issues concerning compliance are resolved.

c. Termination for Default

Where a Default is not cured within the time specified to cure the Default, the Town Manager in addition to all remedies available by law, may immediately, upon written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract. Contractor understands and agrees that termination of this Contract under this Article shall not release Contractor from any obligation accruing prior to the effective date of termination.

In the event of termination by the Town Manager or designee, the Town Manager or designee may immediately take possession of all applicable documentation and data, material, equipment, and supplies to which it is entitled to under the Contract or by law.

Where the Town erroneously terminates the Contract for default, the terminations shall be converted to a Termination for Convenience, and the Contractor shall have no further recourse of any nature for wrongful termination.

3.43 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

In addition to cancellation or termination as otherwise provided for in the Contract, the Town may at any time, in its sole discretion, with or without cause, terminate the Contract by written notice to the Contractor. Such Written Notice shall state the date upon which Contractor shall cease all Work under the Contract, and if applicable vacate the Project(s) site(s).

The Contractor shall, upon receipt of such notice, unless otherwise directed by the Town:

Stop all Work on the date specified in the notice ("the Effective Date");

- Take such action as may be necessary for the protection and preservation of the Town's materials and property;
- Cancel all cancelable orders for materials and equipment; and assign to the Town and deliver to the Town, at a site(s) specified by the Town, any noncancelable orders for materials and equipment that can not otherwise be used by the Contactor on other work;
- Take no action that shall increase the amounts payable by the Town under the Contract Documents; and take reasonable measures to mitigate the Town's liability under the Contract Documents; and
- All documents, including electronic documents, related to Work authorized under the Contract, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Town.
 Failure to timely deliver the documentation shall be cause to withhold any payments due without recourse by Contractor until all documentation is delivered to the Town.

In the event that the Town exercises its right to terminate the Contract pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Town will pay the Contractor:

- For the actual cost or the fair and reasonable value, whichever of any noncancelable material(s) and equipment than cannot be used elsewhere by the Contractor in the performance of its work.
- In no event, shall any payments under this Paragraph exceed the maximum cost set forth in the Contract and the amount due hereunder may be offset by payments made to the Contractor or any claims made against the Contractor.
- Contractor shall not be entitled to lost profits, overhead or consequential damages as a result of a Termination for Convenience.

3.44 TOWN MAY AVAIL ITSELF OF ALL REMEDIES

The Town may avail itself of each and every remedy stated in the Contract Documents or existing at law or in equity. The exercise or the beginning of the exercise, of one remedy shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to exercise, at the same time or thereafter, of any other remedy.

3.45 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Contractor shall comply with the most recent editions and requirements of all applicable laws, rule, regulations, codes, and ordinances of the Federal government, the State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and the Town.

3.46 NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate against any person, shall provide equal opportunities for employment, and comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act in its performance of the Work under the Contact. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules regulations, laws, and ordinance as applicable.

3.47. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The Contractor is engaged as an independent business and agrees to perform Work as an independent contractor. In accordance with the status of an independent contractor, the Contractor covenants and agrees that the Contractor will conduct business in a manner consistent with that status, that the Contractor will not claim to be an officer or employee of the Town for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the Town, including, but not limited to: worker's compensation coverage; unemployment insurance benefits; social security coverage; retirement membership, or credit.

3.48. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Neither Contractor nor Town intends to directly or substantially benefit a third party by this Contract. Therefore, the parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract and that no third party shall be entitled to assert a claim against either of them based upon this Contract.

3.49 ASSIGNMENT OR SALE OF CONTRACT

The performance of this Contract shall not be transferred pledged, sold, delegated or assigned, in whole or in part, by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the Town. It is understood that a sale of the majority of the stock or partnership shares of the Contractor, a merger or bulk sale, an assignment for the benefit of creditors shall each be deemed transactions that would constitute an assignment or sale hereunder. The Town may request any information it deems necessary to review any request for assignment or sale of the Contract.

Any transference without Town approval shall be cause for the Town to terminate this Contract for default and the Contractor shall have no recourse from such termination.

Nothing herein shall either restrict the right of the Contractor to assign monies due to, or to become due or be construed to hinder, prevent or affect any assignment by the Contractor for the benefit of its creditors, made pursuant to applicable law.

3.50 MATERIALITY AND WAIVER OF BREACH

Town and Contractor agree that each requirement, duty, and obligation set forth in the Contract Documents is substantial and important to the formation of the Contract Documents and, therefore, is a material term hereof. The Town's failure to enforce any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of such provision or modification of the Contract Documents. A waiver of any breach of a provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Contract Documents.

3.51 DEFENSE OF CLAIMS

Should any claim be made or any legal action brought in any way relating to the Work under the Contract, the Contractor shall diligently render to the Town any and all assistance which the Town may require of the Contractor.

3.52 FUNDS AVAILABILITY

Funding for this Contract is contingent on the availability of funds and the Contract is subject to amendment or termination due to lack of funds, reduction of funds and/or change in regulations, upon thirty (30) days notice.

3.53 ACCESS TO AND REVIEW OF RECORDS

Town shall have the right to inspect and copy, at Town's expense, the books and records and accounts of Contractor which relate in any way to the Contract. The Contractor agrees to maintain an accounting system that provides for accounting records that are supported with adequate documentation and adequate procedures for determining allowable costs.

The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Town shall have the right to immediately terminate this Contract for the refusal by the Contractor to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall retain all records associated with this Contract for a period of five (5) years from the date of termination.

3.54 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

All fees, royalties, and claims for any invention, or pretended inventions, or patent of any article, material, arrangement, appliance, or method that may be used upon or in any manner be connected with the construction of the Work or appurtenances, are hereby included in the prices stipulated in the Contract for said Work.

3.55 TIME IN WHICH TO BRING ACTION AGAINST THE TOWN

In the event the Contractor may be deemed to have a cause of action against the Town, no action shall lie or be maintained by the Contractor against the Town upon any claim arising out of or based upon the Contract Documents by reason of any act or omission or requirement of the Town or its agents, unless such action shall be commenced within six (6) months after the date of issuance of a final payment under the Contract, or if the Contract is terminated under the provisions of the Contract unless such action is commenced within six (6) months after the date of such termination by the Town.

3.56 CONTRACT EXTENSION

The Town reserves the right to exercise its option to extend the Contract for up to ninety (90) calendar days beyond the original Contract period, inclusive of any Options to Renew exercised by the Town. In such event, the Town will notify the Contractor in writing of such extensions.

3.57 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE OF LITIGATION

This Contract shall be enforceable in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and if legal action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or conditions the sole venue shall be Miami-Dade County, Florida.

3.58 NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

It is the intent of the Town to enter into a Contract with all successful Bidder(s) that will satisfy its needs as described herein. However, the Town reserves the right, as deemed in its best interest, to perform, or cause to be performed, the Work and services, or any portion the reof, as it sees fit, including but not limited to: award of other contracts, use of another contractor, or perform the Work with its own employees.

3.59 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of the Contract Documents is determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then such unenforceable or unlawful provision shall be excised from this Contract, and the remainder of the Contract Documents shall continue in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the result of the deletion of such provision will materially and adversely affect the rights of either party, such party may elect, at its option, to terminate the Contract in its entirety. An election to terminate the Contract based upon this provision shall be made within seven (7) calendar days after the finding by the court becomes final.

3.60 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTAINS ALL TERMS

The Contract Documents and all documents incorporated herein by reference contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of the Contract Documents shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto, or to vary any of the terms contained herein.

3.61 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract Documents, as they may be amended from time to time, represent the entire and integrated Contract between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral. This Contract may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered in any respect, at any time after the execution hereof, except by a written document executed with the same formality and equal dignity herewith. Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 4

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 SCOPE OF WORK

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement, maintenance or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways. Compressors and generators are required equipment and the Town will not pay a rental cost for such equipment. This work may include high and low voltage equipment such as, but is not limited to street lights, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, various types of lighting, welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar work. Maintenance includes in addition to parts replacement, miscellaneous paint touch up and pole ID number stickers. In addition, the contractor will be responsible to occasionally remove small branches/ shrubs that may be blocking the street lights.

4.2 CONTRACT TERM/ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE

This Contract shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue for a term of three (3) years from the date of execution by the Town or until the Contract value has been expended. No Work shall commence until a written Notice to Proceed is issued.

4.3 OPTION(S) TO RENEW

Prior to or upon completion of the initial term of the Contract or the expenditure of available dollar capacity under the Contract the Town, at its sole discretion, shall have an option to renew this Contract upon the same terms and conditions for two (2) additional one (1) year extensions (the "Option"). The Town may at its sole discretion, exercise the Option to renew when the total value of the Contract for the initial term or Option year has been fully expended. Any Option shall be effective upon receipt of a written notice from the Town Manager to the Contractor. The Town may, at its sole discretion allow for price increases during the Option years due to extraordinary changes in market conditions and pricing.

4.4 HOURS FOR PERFORMING WORK

All Work shall be performed in accordance with the hours set forth in the Town's noise Ordinance No. 04-50 unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

Any Work to be performed outside these hours will require the prior written approval of the Town Manager. A Work Order may establish different working hours than those stated herein.

4.5 RESPONSE TIME

Contractors shall respond to request for Work based on the requirements established in Article 4.9, Award of Projects. Contractor must provide and keep current the name(s) and telephone number(s) of the Contractor's staff who can be reached twenty-four hours, seven (7) days a week for Emergency Service.

The maximum timeframe for response shall be as stated below except where the Project Manager determines that a Project requires a shorter timeframe for response.

Emergency Service	2 hours from NTP	
Critical Service	1 day from NTP	
Routine Service	3 days from NTP	

4.6 COMPENSATION

All Work will be issued based on a time and materials basis and the Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. The Price Proposal submitted by the Contractor shall establish the maximum not to exceed cost for the Work to be performed under a Work Order.

Normal working hours for purposes of compensation will be from 8:00 am until 5:00 pm, Monday through Saturday. Overtime rates shall apply to any work performed outside of these hours or on Sunday. The maximum overtime rate the Contractor may charge is 1.5 times the regular hourly rate. No overtime rates are permitted on equipment.

Contractor shall provide the Town with one invoice within thirty (30) days of the date services were rendered. At a minimum the invoice must contain the following information: Multiple invoices will not be accepted and the Town will not make payment based on statements of accounts.

- Name and address of the Contractor
- Contract number
- Date of invoice
- Invoice number (Invoice numbers cannot be repeated)
- Description of Work performed or installed, including location(s) where the Work was performed
- Hours and cost by trade classification
- Cost of materials
- Extended prices
- Total value of the invoice
- Copies of receipts for all materials purchased for the Work

Failure to include the above information will delay payment. Payments will not be made based on statements of accounts.

The Town will take action to pay, reject or make partial payment on an invoice in accordance with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act. No payments shall

be due or payable for Work not performed or materials not furnished or where the Work has not been accepted by the Town. If there is a dispute with regard to an invoice, the Town will pay the amount not in dispute and reject the remainder that is in dispute.

The Contractor shall be compensated based on the hourly rates and mark-up on materials specified in the Proposal/Bid Form of the Contract.

4.7 ESTIMATED HOURS

The hours per trade classification stated on the Bid Form are solely estimates of what the Town anticipated its need to be for the initial term of the Contract. The stated hours do not reflect the actual hours that the Town will actually require and the Town has not established any minimum quantities and no guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to the Contractor. The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make adjustment to the required number of hours. The failure of the Town to order any minimum hours per trade classification shall not form any basis for a claim by the Contractor for lost work or profits.

4.8 LINE ITEM PRICING

Line item pricing shall include all costs, both direct and indirect to perform the Work, except for any costs specifically identified as reimbursable costs under the Contract..

The Bid Form contains line item prices and the Bidder is required to Bid on all lime items. Should a Bidder fail to provide a line item price the Bid will rejected as non-responsive.

Should a Bidder include a line item price that the Town determines is not a fair and unreasonable price the Town, in its sole discretion, may determine that the Bid is an unbalanced Bid and reject the Bid as non-responsive. These types of prices include prices that are too low a price at which to perform the Work or too high a price based on market conditions.

4.9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Certain Project expenses may, or will not be know at the time of award of a Project. The Town shall reimburse the Contractor for such costs, which includes:

- Permits
- Police Officer costs when not provided by the Town

Where a permit or the Town requires the Contractor to use a police officer(s) during the performance of the Work the Town will make every effort to furnish police officers at no cost to the Contractor. Where the Town is not able to provide the required police officers the Town will reimburse the Contractor based on the actual cost to the Contractor and the cost is not include in the unit price per item. To be reimbursed the Contractor must submit a copy of documentation substantiating both the cost as well as proof of payment.

4.10 AWARD OF PROJECTS

Should more than one award be made under this ITB the Primary Contractor will be afforded the first opportunity to be issued a Work Order for a Project. However, the Project Manager may issue a Work Order to the Secondary Contractor include, but not be limited to the following:

- The Town and the Primary Contractor cannot agree on the cost/scope of the Project.
- The Primary Contractor cannot perform the Work in the specified timeframe.
- The Primary Contractor does not respond to the Work Order Proposal in the stated timeframe.
- The Project Manager determines that the Primary Contractor has too much Work
- There is insufficient capacity remaining in the Primary Contractor's Contract.
- The Primary Contractor has failed to successfully perform on previous Work Orders or under other Contracts with the Town.

The determination on using the Secondary Contractor shall rest solely with the Project Manager and the Town.

The Town will utilize a Work Order process for issuing Work under the Contract. However, where the Project Manager determines that the Work to be performed falls within either the Emergency or Critical Repair categories, as defined by the Contract he Project Manager may issue a Notice To Proceed in writing that the Contractor proceed with the Work. Where an emergency situation exists, which affects life/safety that does not allow time to issue written notice To proceed the Project Manager shall issue a verbal Notice to Proceed and follow-up as soon as possible with written verification.

The Project Manager will provide the Contractor a written work proposal (Proposal) for a Project, which will include the scope of work and, the timeframe for completing the Project, and available drawings (if any), and any additional contract terms and conditions specific to the Project, including but not limited to additional insurance, liquidated damages, etc. The Contractor will also be provided a deadline to respond to the Project Manager concerning the Project.

The Contractor is responsible to visit the site, review any drawings and scope of work, and the site conditions. The Contractor is required to respond to the Project Manager, within the specified timeframe, with its price proposal (Price Proposal) and confirmation that they can perform the Work in the stipulated timeframe. The Price Proposal must include a breakdown of the maximum number of labor hours by trade classification to perform the Work and the maximum estimated cost of materials and equipment required to perform the Work. The Project Manager will review any recommended revisions and in its sole discretion accept or reject, in writing, the proposed revisions. The Contractor will have twenty-four (24) hours to accept or reject the award of the Project.

Upon written acceptance of the Work Order Proposal, the Project Manager will issue a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed for the Project. Where the Contractor

rejects the Proposal or where the Contractor fails to respond within the stipulated timeframes the Project Manager may award the Project to another Contractor, or utilize other means available to the Town. Contractor shall not commence any Work without receiving a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed from the Town.

The Town, in its sole discretion, may terminate for default any Contractor who fails to accept three Projects within a one (1) year period.

4.11 PAYMENTS

Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. Payment for Projects shall be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act, upon Final Completion of a Project.

4.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Town may establish liquidated damages on a Project by Project basis. Where the Town determines that liquidated damages shall apply to a Project the amount established will be set forth in the Work Order.

The Contractor is obligated and guarantees to complete the Project in the time set forth in the Work Order or any approved extension of time the Contractor may be granted by the Town. In the event of a delay in completion beyond the date set forth in the Work Order the Contractor shall pay to the Town for each and every calendar day of unexcused delay, the sum stipulated in the Proposal, which is hereby agreed upon not as a penalty but as liquidated damages. The Contractor will be notified of any exceptions. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the value of the Project.

The Town shall have the right to deduct liquidated damages assessments from any payment due or which may thereafter become due to the Contractor under any contract the Contractor has with the Town. In case the amount, which may become due hereunder, shall be less than the amount of liquidated damages due the Town, the Contractor shall pay the difference upon demand by the Town. Should the Contractor fail to compensate the Town for any liquidated damages, the Town shall consider this as a form of indebtedness and may deny any future Work under the Contract or any other Town contract until such indebtedness is paid in full to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor that it is incurring liquidated damages.

4.13 PURCHASE AND DELIVERY, STORAGE AND INSTALLATION

All materials shall be F.O.B. delivered. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the purchase, delivery, and installation of all equipment and material(s). Contractor shall make all arrangement for delivery. Contractor shall be liable for replacing and damaged equipment or material(s) and filing any and all claims with suppliers. All transportation must comply with all federal, FDOT, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules and regulations.

Contractor is responsible for the protection of all equipment and material(s) from adverse weather conditions, damage, deterioration, and theft until the Work has been accepted by the Town.

4.14 TOWN FURNISHED DRAWINGS

The Town, in its sole discretion, may furnish design drawings. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to bring to the immediate attention of the Project Manager any discrepancies between the drawings and existing conditions, excluding hidden or unforeseen conditions, discovered prior to commencing and during the Work. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for verifying the accuracy of any Town provided drawings prior to commencing the Work, and shall be responsible for any errors or revisions of the Work, which might have been avoided by notifying the Town prior to commencement. This shall also apply to any revisions or omissions identified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit all requests for information entitled Request for Information (RFI).

The Project Manager will clarify in writing the intent of the drawings and the Contractor agrees to abide by the Project Manager's interpretation and perform the Work in accordance with the decision of the Project Manager. In such event, the Contractor will be held to have included in its Contract Price the best materials suitable for the purpose and/or methods of construction.

The Contractor shall have no basis for any claim for additional costs resulting from their failure to identify any required revisions, omissions and/or errors, not identified in writing to the Project Manager prior to commencing the Work.

4.15 SUBSTITUTIONS

The Contractor may request the Town to approve substitution where the specified materials are not available. Such requests must be submitted in writing to the Project Manager in advance with sufficient information to evaluate the substitution. The Contractor must provide the substitute materials plant designation, type, grade, quality, and size. Acceptance of substitutions shall be at the sole discretion of the Town. The Town may require an adjustment in price based on any proposed substitution.

4.16 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

The Contractor shall submit a Request for Information (RFI) where the Contractor believes that the Contract Document's specifications are unclear or conflict. All requests must be submitted in a manner that clearly identifies the specification section or drawing detail, if furnished, where clarification or interpretation is being requested. As part of the RFI, Contractor shall include its recommendation for resolution. The Town shall respond in writing.

4.17 WARRANTY

All Work have a one (1) year warranty on labor from the date of final acceptance and the Contractor shall provide a such written warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment. Contractor shall provide a minimum written warranty of one (1) year on all equipment, parts, or material unless the Work Order specifies a longer warranty. Where the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or material provides a warranty greater than one (1) year or the time frame stipulated in a Work Order, then the manufacturer's warranty term shall take precedence. Contractor shall be required to

provide the Project Manager a copy of the manufacturer's warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment.

Should the Contractor fail to perform any required warranty work the Town, at its sole discretion, may have the work performed by others, an deduct such costs from any monies due the Contractor from the Town. Where such funds are not available the Town will bill the Contractor and Contractor shall reimburse the Town within thirty (30) calendar days. The Town may take any necessary and appropriate action provided under this Contract or with law to collect such payment due the Town.

4.18 ACCESS TO UTILITIES

The Contractor is responsible for providing power required for the performance of the Work, including the use of a generator. The use of a generator may be subject to the prior approval of the Town's representative should the Work be in a primarily residential neighborhood.

The Town may at its sole discretion provide access to Town utilities and/or water should such be available at the Work site. However, the Contractor is responsible to ascertain the location and accessibility of any utilities sources necessary to perform the Work. The ability of the Town to make utilities available to the Contractor shall not form any basis for a change order of claim by the Contractor.

4.19 STAGING SITE

The Contractor is solely responsible for making all arrangements for any staging site(s) that may be necessary for the performance of the Work and the Contractor shall be responsible for all site security and any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Town at its sole discretion may make a staging site available for use by the Contractor. If such site is made available by the Town, the Town assumes no responsibility or liability, and the Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Contractor shall also be responsible for restoring the site to its pre-existing condition prior to the Contractor's use of the site.

4.20 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, PUNCH LIST, & FINAL COMPLETION

Depending on the scope of a Project the Work may require a Substantial Completion inspection. If required the Work shall be substantially complete when the Project Manager, in the reasonable exercise of his/her discretion determines that the Work is complete and there are no material and/or substantial variations from the Contract Documents and the Work is fit for its intended purpose. Upon Substantial Completion, the Project Manager and the Contractor shall sign the Substantial Completion Inspection Form. The signing of this form shall not relieve the Contractor from its obligation to complete the Project.

When the Contractor believes that the Work is substantially complete, the Contractor shall request in writing that the Project Manager inspect the Work to determine if Substantial Completion has been achieved. Where the Work requires the Contractor to obtain a Certificate of Completion no request for Substantial Completion inspection is to be submitted until the Contractor has obtained the Certificate(s) of Completion. The

Project Manager or Consultant shall schedule the date and time for any inspection and notify the Contractor and any other parties deemed necessary. During this inspection, the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form will be completed as necessary. Any remaining Construction Work shall be identified on this form and shall be known as Punch List Work. The Punch List shall be signed by the Project Manager and the Contractor confirming that the Punch List contains the item(s) necessary to complete the Work. The failure or refusal of the Contractor to sign the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form or Punch List shall not relieve the Contractor from complying with the findings of the Project Substantial Completion Inspection and completing the Project to the satisfaction of the Town.

The Project Manager and the Contractor shall agree on the time reasonably required to complete all remaining Work included in the Punch List.

Upon Substantial Completion and the receipt and acceptance of any required documentation, including warranty documents, the Project Manager shall determine that a Project has achieved Final Completion and authorize final payment.

The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by Contractor, except those previously made in strict accordance with the provisions of the Contract and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the application for final payment.

4.21 OWNERSHIP OF THE WORK

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all Work including materials, supplies, and or equipment prior to final written acceptance. Contractor shall be liable for all damage, theft, maintenance, health and safety until such time as the Town issues final acceptance. The Contractor is responsible for the protection, and maintenance of all of its own tools, equipment, and vehicles.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 5 -

BID FORM

Bid submittal of		G&R Electric Corp.	
_		(Name of Bidder)	
	4450 East	10 th Court, Hialeah, Fl 33013	
1 la 1		(Address)	
Submitted on:	June 22, 2011		
	(Date)	14 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	

to furnish all Work as stated in the ITB and Contract Documents for the

Miscellaneous Electrical Service Bid No: 2011-08

To: Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Attn: Town Clerk Town Hall 15150 NW 79th Court

Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only person or persons interested in this Bid, as principal(s) are named herein and that no other person than herein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the Contract to be entered into or which the Work pertains; that this Bid is made without connection with any other person, company, firm, or parties making a Bid; and that the Bid is, in all respects, made fairly and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

The Bidder further declares that it has performed sufficient investigations, and informed itself fully of the suitability of the Work and all conditions pertaining to the place where the Work is to be done; that it has examined the ITB and all of the Contract Documents and all addenda thereto issued prior to Bid opening, as acknowledged in its Bid; and that it has satisfied itself about the Work to be performed; and that it has submitted the Bid Guaranty, if required; and all other required information with the Bid; and that this Bid is submitted voluntarily and willingly.

The Bidder agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to timely execute a contract with the Town, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and to furnish all necessary materials,

equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation, and all labor necessary to complete the Work.

The undersigned further agrees that the Bid guaranty, if required, accompanying the Bid shall be forfeited if Bidder fails to execute said Contract, or fails to furnish the required Performance Bond,

BID FORM: (Page 2 of 6)

Our **BID AMOUNTS** includes the total hourly rates and mark-up for the Work to be performed under this solicitation, including all direct and indirect costs such as supervision, mobilization, overhead, profit, etc. in accordance with the Contract Documents.

if required by the Contract Documents, or fails to furnish the required Certificate(s) of Insurance within fifteen (15) calendar days after being notified of the award of the Contract.

In the event of arithmetical errors, the Bidder agrees that these errors are errors which may be corrected by the Town. In the event of a discrepancy between the price Bid in figures and the price Bid in words, the price in words shall govern. Bidder agrees that any unit price listed in the Bid is to be multiplied by the stated quantity requirements in order to arrive at the extended value and the unit price shall prevail over the extended value.

Trade/Equipment	Hourly Rates
Master Electrician	\$65.00
Journeyman ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$38.50
Journeyman/Supervisor ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$38.50
Apprentice	A 100 M
Apprentice 1 st Year	\$29.50
Apprentice 2 nd Year	\$29.50
Apprentice 3 Years or greater	\$29.50
Laborer	\$23.75
Bucket Truck (Daily operations, less than 50 foot)	\$70.00
Bucket Truck (minimum 50 foot, on call, or emergency)	\$125.00
Crane (for 30 & 40 foot light poles)	\$85.00
Emergency Response	\$85.00
THE STATE OF	Percentage
Material Mark-up (see notes below)	10%
TOTAL	Edge Real Way

BID FORM: (Page 3 of 6)

Notes:

- Bidders are bidding on a lump sum basis for the purpose of determining the lowest responsive and responsible Bidders. However, Contractors will be paid based on the line item breakdown, contained in the Bid Form, with payments based on actual Work performed.
- The percentage mark-up for materials the Town will pay under the Contract shall not exceed 10%. Where a mark-up for materials is submitted that is greater than 10% the Town will automatically reduce the percentage to 10% and shall calculate the extended price to reflect the 10% value. The Town will not pay a mark-up on equipment rentals.
- 3. The number of hours for the Apprentice category covers the total amount to be used by all of the sub-trade categories for the Apprentice trade.
- The Journeyman/Supervisor category will be used where the Journeyman is supervising apprentices or laborers. The Journeyman category will used when a second Journeyman is required for a Project.

Firm's Name: G\notin R	Electric Corp.
Signature:	
Printed Name/Title: _ C70n7ala	o Planas Jr. Vice-President
Town/State/Zip: Higleah	FL 33013
Telephone No.: (305) SS	8-0217
Facsimile No.: 305-688-5025	E-Mail Address: grelect@bellsouth.net
Social Security No. or Federal I.D.No.: 592680671	Dun and Bradstreet No.: (if applicable)

END OF SECTION

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Part I: Listed b	elow are the dates of issue f	or each Addendum rec	eived in connection with this Bid:
	Addendum No	Dated	
	Addendum No,	Dated	
	Addendum No,	Dated	
	Ad <mark>d</mark> endum No,	Dated	
	Ad <mark>dendum No,</mark>	Dated	
	Ad <mark>dendum No,</mark>	Dated	
	Ad <mark>dendum No</mark> ,	Dated	
	Ad <mark>dendum No,</mark>	Dated	
	Ad <mark>dendum No</mark> ,	Dated	
	No	Addendum issued for	this ITB
Firm's Name:	GER Elec	ctric Corp.	
Printed Name/	Title: Gonzalo F	lahas Tr.	Vice-President

BID FORM: (Page 5 of 6)

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF CORPORATION)

HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Electric Corp. State of Florida, held on the Ilday of Augest, On, a resolution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) Gonzalo Planas Tr. as (Title) Vice-President of the corporation to execute bids on behalf of the corporation and providing that his/her execution thereof, attested by the secretary of the corporation, shall be the official act and deed of the corporation. I further certify that said resolution remains in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my based this consission of the Consistion of the Consission of the Consistion of
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
(IF PARTNERSHIP) I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of a partnership organized and existing under the laws of the State of, held on theday of, a resolution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) as (Title) of the to execute bids on behalf of the partnership and provides that his/her execution thereof, attested by a partner, shall be the official act and deed of the partnership.
I further certify that said partnership agreement remains in full force and effect.
Trurtier certify that said partnership agreement remains in foliotee and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20
Partner: Print:
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY IF JOINT VENTURE)
Joint ventures must submit their joint venture agreement indicating that the person signing this Bid is authorized to sign Bid documents on behalf of the joint venture and submit the appropriate Certificate of Authority (corporate, partnership, or individual).
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF INDIVIDUAL)
I HEREBY CERTIFY that, I (Name), individually and doing business as (d/b/a) (If Applicable) have executed and am bound by the terms of the
Bid to which this attestation is attached.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20
With East Wile Research Secting Hand this, day of
Signed:

NOTARIZATION

STATE OF TLORIDA	
COUNTY OF MANNIN DADE) SS:	
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged	d before me this day of, who is personally known to
me or who has produced	as identification and who (did / did
not) take an oath.	
SIGNATURE OF NOTARY BEIC MARIA E. HERNANDEZ	
STATE OF FLORIDA * MY COMMISSION # EE 047206 EXPIRES: April 7, 2015 Boxded Thru Budget Notery Services	
PRINTED, STAMPED OR TYPED	
NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC	

Section 6

Attachments

QUESTIONNAIRE

This Completed Form <u>Must</u> Be Submitted With The Bid, The Town May, At Its Sole Discretion, Require That The Bidder Submit <u>Additional</u> Information Not Included In The Submitted Form. Such Information Must Be Submitted Within Seven (7) Calendar Days of the Town's Request. Failure To Submit The Form Or Additional Information Upon Request By The Town Shall Result In The Rejection Of The Bid As Non-Responsive. Additional Pages May Be Used Following The Same Format And Numbering. Some Information May Not Be Applicable Apply. In Such Instances Insert "N/A".

By submitting its Bid the Bidder certifies the truth and accuracy of all information contained herein.

A.	Business Information
1.	How many years has your company been in business under its current name and ownership? 25 years
	a. Professional Licenses/Certifications (include name and number)* Issuance Date
70nzalo Planas	- Electrical Contractor - EC13002165 9/21/04
	- Electrical Contractor - EC 1300 3998 10/16/08
onzalo Planas Jr.	General Confractor - CGC 1511532 7/3/06 (*include active certifications of small or disadvantage business & name of certifying entity)
	b. Date company licensed by the State of Florida or Miami-Dade County: 5/5/1986
	c. State and Date of Incorporation: Florida 5/5/1986
	c. What is your primary business? Electrical Contractor (This answer should be specific
	d. Name of Qualifier, license number, and relationship to company: Gonzalo Planas - EC13002165 - President
ε	Names of previous Qualifiers during the past five (5) years including, license numbers, relationship to company and years as qualifier for the company
2.	Name and Licenses of any prior companies Name of Company License No. Issuance Date
	11//3

	Corporatio executing a	ns will b	e required	on LLC L to provide a	Sole Propri copy of th	etorship neir corp	Oth	er: resolution	prior to
4.	Company O	wnership							
	a. identify a	all owners	of the compa	any					
	Name	•		Title			% of	ownership)
	(<u>70n</u>	ralo F	Ígnas	Presi	dent			100%	6
	-								
									_
	If yes,	identify tl	he name of th	e an owner in a ne owner, other C7P Bu	company r	names, ar	nd % ov	vnership	_
	- 1 - 1 O - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -			ized to sign for other provide spe		thority)		the level	of their
						All	Cost	No-Cost	Other
Cyonza Yonzal	lo Plando Pland			lent - Presiden		口区区区			
		-						Ш	
	Explanation	for Other							
5.	Employee In								
	Total No. of	Employee	s:	Number of Ma	anagerial/A	dmin. En	ployee	s:3	-
				otal number per or each classification		ion:			

Type of Company:

3.

Journeyman - 3
Apprentice - 10
Helpers - 11
Has any owner or employee of the company ever been convicted of a federal offense or moral turpitude: If yes, please explain:
Insurance & Bond Information a. Insurance Carrier name & address: Fereira Insurance 11411 SW 109 Bd, Miani FL 33176
b. Insurance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:
c. Insurance Experience Modification Rating (EMR):
d. Number of Insurance Claims paid out in last 5 years & value:
e. Bond Carrier name & address: 5BAI
10131 SW 40th St, Miami FL 3
f. Bond Carrier Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:
g. Number of Bond Claims paid out in last 5 years & value:
Have any claims lawsuits been file against your company in the past 5 years, If yes, identify where your company has either settle or an adverse judgment has been issued against company. Identify the year basis for the claim or judgment & settlement unless the value of settlement is covered by a written confidentiality agreement.
To the best of your knowledge is your company or any officers of your company currently u investigation by any law enforcement agency or public entity. If yes, provide details:

10.		ny been assessed liquidated damages or defaulted on a project in the past five es \mathbb{M}No (If yes, provide an attachment that provides an explanation of the xplanation.			
11.		ny been cited for any OSHA violations in the past five (5) years? If yes, please hment including all details on each citation,			
12.	Provide an attachment listing all of the equipment, with a value of \$3,000 or greater, owned by your company.				
13.		hment listing of all equipment that your company does not own but plans to prrow for the performance of the Work			
B.	Project Manager	ment & Subcontract Details			
1.	Project Manager	for this Project: onzalo Planas Jr.			
	b. Years with Co	mpany: 10			
	c Licenses/Certif	ications: Etectrical Contractor & General Contractor			
	d. Last 3 projects	with the company including role, scope of work, & value of project:			
City of Miami Beach JOC Contract - Etectrical - 1,00					
	miami	Heights Elementary - New PA System - 358,000			
	Milanda	r Auditorium - New Const 398,000			
2. Subcontractors:					
	Name	Trade/Work to % of Work License No. be performed			
	$\frac{n}{n}$	/A			
	-				
	of the work: (This work items)	wal Work to be performed by your company and the corresponding percentage does not include such items as insurance * bonds, dumpsters, trailers, and other similar non-construction			
		TOFFICAL 100 76			

C. Current and Prior Experience:

- Current Experience including current under projects or contracts, recently awarded, or pending award (Provide an attachment to this questionnaire that lists all such contracts or projects, including the owner's name, title and value of project, scope of work, projected or actual start date, projected completion date.
- 2. Prior contracts or projects of a similar size, scope, and complexity: Provide an attachment to this Questionnaire that includes contracts or projects the Bidder considers of a similar, size, scope and complexity that the Town should consider in determining the Bidders responsiveness and responsibility. This attachment must include the contracts or projects that meet the minimum number of contracts or projects identified by the bid solicitation. Information provided must include the owner's name, address and contract person, including telephone & e-mail, title of contract or project, location of project, scope, initial value and final cost of the contract or project, projected and final timeframes for completion in calendar days. A reference letter is to be completed by the owner of the Project and submitted as part of the Bid submission.

D. Bidder's References

Bidders are to include a minimum of five (5) references from contracts or projects listed in C.2 above. The attached form is to be used and is to be included with the Bid submission. The Town, at its sole discretion may allow the Bidder to submit the references after the specified date for Bid submission.

ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA	} SS:
COUNTY OF MIAM	
bid will be paid	rsigned, hereby duly sworn, depose and say that no portion of the sum herein to any employees of the Town of Miami Lakes, its elected officials, and or its design consultants, as a commission, kickback, reward or gift, directly or any member of my firm or by an officer of the corporation.
or maneetry by me	By:
	Title: Vice- President
Sworn and subscri	bed before this
22 day of	18
Notary Public, Stat	e of Florida
(Printed Name)	MARIA E. HERNANDEZ MY COMMISSION # EE 047206 EXPIRES: April 7, 2015 Bonded Thru Budget Notary Services
My commission ex	nires:

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

State of Florida } SS:
County of Dade }
Gonzalo Planas Jr. being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:
a) He/she is the Vice-President (Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of GRE Electric Corp. the Bidder that has submitted the attached Proposal; b) He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Proposal and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Proposal; c) Such Proposal is genuine and is not collusive or a sham Proposal; d) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the Work for which the attached Proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from proposing in connection with such work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by person to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposal or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Proposal price or the Proposal price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed work;
The price or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: By:
Vice - President (Title)

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (CONTINUED)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of Florida)
County of Pade) SS:
country of
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared foncato Manato me well
known and known by me to be the person described herein and who executed the foregoing
Affidavit and acknowledged to and before me thatexecuted said Affidavit for the purpose therein expressed.
therein expressed.
WITNESS, my hand and official seal this 22 day of fore 2011.
Mu Commission Funitors
My Commission Expires: MARIA E. HERNANDEZ MY COMMISSION # EE 047206
EXPIRES: April 7, 2015 Bonded Thru Budget Notary Services
Cop Fig.
Notary Public State of Florida at Large
()

SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

This sworn statement is submitted to the Town of Miami Lakes
by Gonzalo Planas Tr. Vice-President
[print individual's name and title]
for CTER Electric Corp.
[print name of entity submitting sworn statement]
whose business address is
4450 E 10th Ct.
Hialeah FL 33013
and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is 592 680071
(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual
signing this sworn statement:)
2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)9g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods and services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction or a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
4. I understand than an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:

a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or

b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.

1.

The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an entity.
- 6. Based on information and belief, the statement that I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.]

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, not any affiliate of the entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

____ This entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order]

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO

UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017,

FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.	TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION
Signa	ature of Entity Submitting Sworn Statement
Sworn to and subscribed before me this _	22 day of fre , 2011.
Personally known	
OR produced identification	Notary Public – State of
(type of identification)	MARIA E. HERNANDEZ MY COMMISSION # EE 047206 EXPIRES: April 7, 2015 Bonded Thru Budget Notary Services (Printed, typed or stamped commissioned name notary public)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 7

SPECIFICATIONS

7.1 License

a. Contractor must be licensed by the State of Florida as an electrical contractor and the qualifier must be an owner or employee of the Contractor.

7.2 Work Crew

- a. The Contractor shall provide work crews on an as needed, when needed basis.
- Employees shall be physically able to perform strenuous labor in the South Florida environment.
- c. At least 1 Journeyman shall be assigned to each Project, whom shall act as the as the crew supervisor. The supervisor must be fluent in English.
- d. At a minimum, one of the Work Crew must possess a valid State of Florida Drivers License for the type of vehicle(s) being driven and used as part of a Project.

7.3 <u>Transportation</u>

- a. Each Work Crew shall have suitable transportation in the form of a one-half ton (minimum size) full size pickup truck and/or other appropriate vehicle(s) necessary to complete the Project. The truck should be capable of transporting items up to eight foot (8') in length.
- b. All vehicles must meet the requirements of the Contract, including but not limited to the truck must be in good working order, with current license, registration, and insurance. The vehicle(s) must also be substantially free of body damaged and must be painted uniformly
- c. All vehicles must include the name of the Contractor, Contractor's license number, business telephone number. Rented or borrowed vehicles should properly identify the name and telephone number of the rental company or company from whom is was obtained.

7.4 Materials

- The Town may, at its sole discretion, furnish materials to be used for a Project.
 Materials may include but not be limited to signs, posts, and mounting brackets.
- b. All materials and equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be new and unused in their original sealer wrapper or container prior to use on a Project. Materials may be subject to inspection prior to use on a Project. Where materials or equipment are, as determined by the Project Manager, not to new, unused, or in their original wrapper, or container, the Project Manager may reject their equipment or materials and requires its replacement prior to use on a Project.

7.5 Disaster Response

- a. The Contractor shall be available, at the Town's request, to assist the Town and/or its designee at the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) during emergency situations, including but not limited to hurricane preparedness and recovery.
- b. On a first priority basis Contractor shall be immediately available to clear roadways or access areas in the event of an Act of God, terrorism or other large scale event.

7.6 Utility Coordination

a. As determined by the Town, Contractor shall meet with utility companies prior to their excavation of underground lines to serve as the Town's representative to avoid any potential issue to the Town and damage to exiting power lines.

SECTION 8

CONTRACT EXECUTION FORM

This Contract 2011-08GR made this 12th day of July in the year 2011 is for Work to be performed on an as needed basis by and between the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida, hereinafter called the "Town," and Electrical Contracting Services, Inc. G&R Electrical Corp. is one of two secondary Contractors under contract with the Town for the Work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Attest:

TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES

By: The state of t

Marjorie Tejeda, Town Clerk

By:

Alex Rey, Town Manages

Toutle Add

Signed, sealed and witnessed in the presence of:

As to the Contractor:

G&R Electrical Corp.

y:

Name: Gonzalo Plar

Title: Vice - President

(*) In the event that the Contractor is a corporation, there shall be attached the original of the corporate resolution in the form contained in this Section, of the board of the corporation, authorizing the officer who signs the Contract to do so in its behalf.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, <u>G&R Electric Corp.</u> desires to enter into a contract with the Town of Miami Lakes for the purpose of performing the work described in the contract to which this resolution is attached; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors at a duly held corporate meeting has considered the matter in accordance with the By-Laws of the corporation;

(Corporate Seal)

INVITATION TO BID MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE ITB No. 2011-08



The Town of Miami Lakes Council:

Mayor Michael Pizzi
Vice Mayor Nick Perdomo
Councilmember Mary Collins
Councilmember Timothy Daubert
Councilmember Nelson Hernandez
Councilmember Ceasar Mestre
Councilmember Richard Pulido

Alex Rey, Town Manager The Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

DATE ISSUED:

May 19, 2011

CLOSING DATE:

June 22, 2011

Miscellaneous Electrical Service

RFP 2011-08

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION/ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
Section 1Notice To Bidders		
Section 2Instructions To Bid	iders	
	S	
2.2General Requireme	ents	4
2.3Preparation of Bid.		4
2.4Bid Preparation an	d Related Costs	4
	e	
2.6 Qualification of Bio	dders	5
	e Work	
2.8Examination of Cor	ntract Documents	5
2.9Interpretations and	d Clarifications	5
	Bid Opening Date	
2.11 Acceptance or Reje	ection of Bids	6
2.13Opening of Bids		6
2.14Award of Contract.		6
2.15Collusion		7
2.16Bidder in Arrears o	r Default	7
2.17Public Entity Crime	s Act	7
Section 3 General Terms and	Conditions	
3.1Time is of the Esser	nce	8
3.3Priority of Provision	ns	9
3.5Insurance		10
3.6General Requireme	ents	11
3.7Rules and Regulation	ons	12
3.8Site Investigation a	nd Representation	12
3.9Method of Perform	ning the Work	13
3.10 Contractor to Chec	k Plans, Specifications and Data	14
3.11 Shop Drawings and	Submittals	14
3.13 Differing Site Cond	itions	15

3.14 Protection of Property, Utilities, and the Public	15
3.15 Maintenance of Traffic	
3.16Coordination of the Work	16
3.17Access to the Project Site(s)	. 17
3.18 Contractor's Responsibility For Damages and Accidents	. 17
3.19Safety Precautions	18
3.20Labor and Materials	18
3.21Vehicles and Equipment	18
3.22Supervision of the Work	18
3.23Subcontractors	19
3.24 Authority of the Project Manager	19
3.25Town Licenses, Permits and Fees	19
3.26Taxes	20
3.27Removal of Unsatisfactory Personnel	20
3.28Inspection of the Work	20
3.29Defective Work	
3.30 Change Orders	. 21
3.31 Force Majeure	22
3.32 Extension of Time	22
3.33 Excusable Delay, Non-Compensable	23
3.34Claims	24
3.35Disputes and Mediation	. 25
3.36Continuing the Work	. 26
3.37Fraud and Misrepresentation	26
3.38Stop Work Order	26
3.39Hurricane Preparedness	
3.40Cleaning Up; Town's Right To Clean Up	27
3.41Set-Offs, Withholding, and Deductions	
3.42Contractor Default	
3.43Termination for Convenience	. 29
3.44Town May Avail Itself of All Remedies	30
3.45Compliance with Applicable Laws	
3.46Nondiscrimination, Equal Employment Opportunity,	
And Americans with Disabilities Act	30
3.47Independent Contractor	. 30
3.48Third Party Beneficiaries	
3.49Assignment or Sale of Contract	
3.50Materiality and Waiver of Breach	31
3.51Defense of Claims	
3.52Fu <mark>nds Availability</mark>	
3.53Access To and Review of Records	
3.54Royalties and Patents	
3.55Time in Which To Bring Action Against The Town	
3.56Contract Extension	

3.57Applicable Law and Venue of Litigation	32
3.58Non-Exclusive Contract	. 32
3.59Severability	
3.60Contract Documents Contains All Terms	. 33
3.61Entire Agreement	33
Section 4Special Terms and Conditions	
4.1Scope of Work	
4.2Contract Term/Estimated Expenditure	34
4.3Option(s) to Renew	.34
4.4Hours for Performing Work	34
4.5Response Time	.35
4.6Compensation	35
4.7 Estimated Hours	36
4.8 Line Item Pricing	36
4.9 Reimbursable Expenses	36
4.10 Award of Projects	36
4.11 Payments	
4.12 Liquidated Damages	38
4.13 Purchase and Delivery, Storage and Installation	38
4.14 Town Furnished Drawings	39
4.15 Substitutions	39
4.16 Request For Information	
4.17 Warranty	39
4.18 Access to Water and Utilities	40
4.19 Staging Site	40
4.20 Substantial Completion, Punch List, & Final Completion	40
4.21 Ownership of the Work	41
Section 5Bid Form	
Section 6Attachments	48
Section 9 Specifications	60

SECTION 1

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES

MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE

ITB 2011-08

The Town of Miami Lakes (the "Town") will be accepting sealed Bids for the Town's <u>Miscellaneous Electrical Services</u> ("Projects") for Work to be performed on an as needed basis. Bidders are to submit three (3) Bids, with original signatures together with a copy of the Bid on a CD-ROM. Sealed Bids, including the CD-ROM <u>must</u> be received by the Town of Miami Lakes, Town Clerk at 15150 NW 79th Court, Miami Lakes, Florida by 2:00 P.M. on June 22, 2011.

Scope of Work:

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways, which includes but is not limited to poles, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, photocells, various types of lighting (including street lighting), welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar Work.

Minimum Qualification Requirements:

Prospective Bidder shall hold a current certified license as a Electrical Contractor or from the State of Florida, and at a minimum must have a licensed journeyman who will be assigned to the Work Crew. Bidder must also possess a minimum of seven (7) years experience as an electrical contractor. No Work can be subcontracted under the Contract.

The Town will consider a Bid as responsive where a Bidder has less than the stipulated minimum number of years of experience solely where the Bidder has undergone a name change and such change of name has been filed with the State of Florida.

Bid Documents may be obtained by visiting the Town's website at www.miamilakes-fl.gov and selecting "Contractual Opportunities". Any further inquiries regarding the Project may be directed to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov.

All Bids shall be submitted in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. Any Bids received after the specified time and date will not be considered. The responsibility for submitting a Bid before the stated time and date is solely and strictly the responsibility of the Bidder.

Pursuant to subsection (t) "Cone of Silence" of Section 2-11.1 "Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance" of Miami Dade County, public notice is hereby given that a "Cone of Silence" is imposed concerning this purchase.

SECTION 2

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

2.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

Bid means the Submittal tendered by a Bidder in response to this solicitation, which includes the price, authorized signature and all other information or documentation required by the Invitation to Bid ("ITB") at the time of submittal.

Bid Form means the form that contains the goods or services to be purchased and that must be completed and submitted with the Bid.

Bidder means any person, firm or corporation, or its duly authorized representative tendering a Submittal in response to this solicitation.

Change Order means a written document ordering a change in the Contract price or Contract time or a material change in the Work.

Contract means the ITB and the Bid documents that have been executed by the Bidder and the Town subsequent to approval of award by the Town.

Contract Documents means the Contract as may be amended from time to time, any and plans, specification, bonds. addendum, clarifications, directives, Work Orders, Work Order Proposals, change orders, payments and other such documents issued under or relating to the Contract.

Contractor means the person, firm, or corporation with whom the Town has contracted and who will be responsible for the acceptable performance of any Work and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the Work under the Contract.

Critical Service means service that is required to mitigate circumstances that affect the ability of the Town to provide services or perform necessary operations.

Cure means the action taken by the Contractor promptly, after receipt of written notice from the Town of a breach of the Contract Documents, which shall be performed at no cost to the Town, to repair, replace, correct, or remedy all material, equipment, or other elements of the Work or the Contract Documents affected by such breach, or to otherwise make good and eliminate such breach.

Cure Period means the period of time in which the Contractor is required to remedy deficiencies in the Work or compliance with the Contract Documents after receipt of a written Notice to Cure from the Town identifying the deficiencies and the time to Cure.

Days mean calendar days.

Emergency Service means service that involves mitigating circumstances that threatens the health, life, safety, or welfare of the public or employees of the Town.

Final Completion means the date subsequent to the date of Substantial Completion at which time the Contractor has completed all the Work under a Work Order and submitted all documentation required by the Contract Documents.

Inspector means an authorized representative of the Town assigned to make necessary inspections of materials and Work performed by the Contractor.

Materials mean goods or equipment incorporated in a Project, or used or consumed in the performance of the Work.

Notice of Award means the written letter to the Contractor notifying the Contractor that it has been awarded the Contract.

Notice to Proceed means a written letter or directive issued by the Town Manager or designee acknowledging that all conditions precedent to award have been met and directing that the Contractor may begin Work.

Plans Drawings, and/or Sketch means a graphic representation of a Project issued as part of a Work Order.

Project means a task or series of tasks assigned by Town through the issuance of a Work Order that the Contractor must complete in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Project Manager means the individual assigned by the Town Manager to manage a Project issued through a Work Order under the Contract.

Request For Information (RFI) means a request from the Contractor seeking an interpretation or clarification relative to the Contract Documents. The RFI, which shall be clearly marked RFI, shall clearly and concisely set forth the issue(s) or item(s) requiring clarification or interpretation and why the response is required. The RFI must set forth the Contractor's interpretation or understanding of the document(s) in question, along with the reason for such understanding.

Subcontractor means a person, firm or corporation having a direct contract with Contractor, including one who furnishes material worked to a special design according to the Contract Documents, but does not include one who merely furnishes materials not so worked.

Substantial Completion means that point at which the Work is at a level of completion in substantial compliance with the Contract such that the Town can use the completed Work for its intended purpose. Substantial Compliance shall not be deemed to have occurred until any and all governmental entities, which regulate or have jurisdiction over the Work, have inspected, and approved the Work.

Submittal means the documents prepared and submitted by the Bidder in response to this ITB.

Town means the Town Council of the Town of Miami Lakes or the Town Manager, if applicable.

Town Manager means the duly appointed chief administrative officer of the Town of Miami Lakes or his designee.

Work as used herein refers to all reasonably necessary and inferable labor, material, equipment, and services, whether or not specifically stated, required by the Contract Documents for the Contractor to fulfill its obligations, under the Contract Documents.

Work Crew means the employees assigned by the Contractor to perform Work under a Work Order. At least one of the crew must possess an active journeyman's license from the State of Florida.

Work Order means a document issued by the Town awarding a specific Project to a Contractor.

Work Order Proposal means a document prepared by the Contractor, at the request of the Town for Work to be performed on a Project.

2.2 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The ITB and any addendum that may be issued constitute the complete set of specification requirements and Bid forms. The Bid Form page(s), and all forms contained in the ITB shall be completed, signed, and submitted in accordance with the requirements of Section 1. All bids must be typewritten or filled in with pen and ink, and must be signed in blue ink by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm. Errors, corrections, or changes on any document must be initialed by the signatory of the Bid. Bidders shall not be allowed to modify their bids after the opening time and date.

2.3 PREPARATION OF BID

The Bid Form contains multiple line items and the Bidder must provide prices for all line items and must provide the price for the total annual bid amount. Failure to include pricing on all line items as well as the total annual bid amount shall result in the Bid being found non-responsive.

Bidder must use the blank Town forms provided herein. The Bid must be signed and acknowledged by the Bidder in accordance with the directions on the ITB. Failure to utilize the Town's forms, or fully complete said forms will result in a determination that the Bid is non-responsive.

A Bid will be considered non-responsive if it is conditioned on modifications, changes, or revisions to the terms and conditions of the ITB.

The Bid is to include the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment, all overhead/indirect expenses and profit, necessary for the completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents.

Joint venture firms must complete and submit with their Bid the Form JV titled "Information for Determining Joint Venture Eligibility", (Form JV) and submit a copy of the signed formal agreement between all joint-venture parties. This joint venture agreement must indicate each of the party's respective roles, responsibilities and levels of participation for the Contract. Failure to timely submit Form JV, along with an attached written copy of the joint venture agreement may result in disqualification of the Bid. All joint venture firms must meet the requirements stipulated in the Florida Statutes.

2.4 BID PREPARATION AND RELATED COSTS

All cost involved with the preparation and submission of Bid to the Town or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder(s). No payment shall be made for any Bid received, or for any other effort required of or made by the Bidder prior to commencement of Work as defined by a contract duly approved by the Town Council or Town Manager, as applicable. The Town shall bear no responsibility for any cost associated with any judicial proceedings resulting from the ITB process.

2.5 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

A pre-bid conference will be held not be held for this ITB.

2.6 QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

Bidder must meet the minimum qualification requirements stated in Section 1 and must be capable of performing the primary trade Work under the Contract. Bidders shall submit a completed Qualification Statement utilizing the form attached.

2.7 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK

Bidder must be capable of self- performing all of the Work under this Contract. By submitting a Bid the Bidder certifies that it will meet this requirement. As part of the Bid the Bidder are to include the form entitled "Questionnaire". Failure to complete and submit this form or to meet this requirement shall result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive. Where the Contractor is deemed to not meeting this requirement during the performance of the Work the Contractor shall be in default of the Contract Documents.

2.8 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

It is the responsibility of each Bidder, before submitting a Bid in response to this ITB to:

- Carefully review the ITB, including any Addendum and notify the Town of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies.
- Take into account federal, state and local (Town and Miami-Dade County) including, without limitation the Town's Code, and Miami-Dade County and the State of Florida's statutes laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may affect a Bidder's ability to perform the Work.
- Study and carefully correlate Contractor's observations with the requirements of the ITB.

The submission of a Bid in response to this solicitation shall constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that it will comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents and that without exception, the Bid is premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required under the Contract Documents and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

2.9 INTERPRETATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the ITB and specifications shall be directed in writing by e-mail to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at 15150 NW 79th Court; Miami Lakes, FL 33016, Email: fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov. Interpretation or Clarifications considered necessary by the Town in response to such questions will be issued by means of addenda. All addenda will be posted on the Town's website, www.miamilakes-fl.gov and it is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to obtain all addenda. Written questions must be received no less than ten (10) days prior to bid opening. Only questions answered by written addenda shall be binding. Oral and other interpretation or clarifications shall be without legal effect.

2.10 POSTPONEMENT OF BID OPENING DATE

The Town reserves the right to postpone the date for receipt and opening of Bids and will make a reasonable effort to give at least five (5) calendar days notice prior to the Bid opening date, of any such postponement to prospective Bidders.

2.11 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS

The Town reserves the right to reject any and all Bids or any portion of a Bid, with or without cause, to waive technical errors and informalities, or to cancel or re-issue this solicitation. The Town also reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder who has failed to previously perform under a contract or who is in arrears to the Town.

Reasonable efforts will be made to either award the Contract or reject all Bids within ninety (90) calendar days after Bid opening date. A Bidder may not withdraw its Bid unilaterally nor change its Bid before the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of bid opening.

2.12 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

A Bidder may withdraw its Bid after the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of Bid opening by delivering written notice of withdrawal to the Town's Procurement Manager prior to award of the Contract by the Town Council or Town Manager, applicable. Once the Town makes the award, the Bid cannot be withdrawn under this Article.

2.13 OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the appointed time and place stated in the ITB. Late Bids will not be opened. No responsibility will be attached to any Town Staff for the premature opening of a Bid not properly addressed and identified. Bidders or their authorized agents are invited to be present at the bid opening. The lowest Bid identified at the Bid opening does not establish or determine the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder who may be awarded the Contract.

2.14 AWARD OF CONTRACT(S)

The Town anticipates awarding of the a Contract to the Bidder who is determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. However, the Town may, in its sole discretion makes an award(s) that are determined to be in the best interest of the Town. Should the Town elect to award more than one Contract the lowest responsive and responsible bidder will be designated as the Primary Contractor.

The Town may require demonstration of competency and, at its sole discretion, conduct site visit(s) and inspections of the Bidder's place(s) of business, require the Bidder to furnish documentation and/or require the Bidder to attend a meeting to determine the Bidder's qualifications and ability to meet the terms and conditions of this Contract. The Town shall consider, but not be limited to, such factors as financial capability, labor force, equipment, experience, knowledge of the trade work to be performed, the quantity of Work being performed by the Contractor and past performance on Town and other contracts. In no case will the Award be made until all necessary investigations have been made into the responsibility of the Bidder(s) and the Town Manager is satisfied that the Bidders are qualified to perform the Work.

Any Bidder who, at the time of submission, is involved in an ongoing bankruptcy as a debtor, or in a reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver has been appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of the Bidder under federal bankruptcy law or any state insolvency, the Bid may be declared non-responsive. Any Bidder

who has filed a lawsuit against the Town or where the Town has filed a lawsuit or won a court judgment against a Bidder, such Bidder may be declared non-responsible.

If the Town accepts a Bid, the Town will notify the Bidder that it is the apparent awardee and that award is conditioned upon executing the Contract, and submission and approval of the required insurance certificates. The Town will provide a written notice of award upon the Bidder meeting these requirements.

If the successful Bidder to whom a Contract is proposed to be awarded forfeits the Award by failing to meet the conditions as stated above, the Town may, at the Town's sole option, award the Contract to the next lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder or reject all Bids or readvertise the ITB.

2.15 COLLUSION

Where two (2) or more related parties, as defined in this Article, each submit a response to an ITB, such submissions shall be presumed to be collusive. The foregoing presumption may be rebutted by the presentation of evidence as to the extent of ownership, control and management of such related parties in preparation and submission under such ITB. Related parties shall mean employees, officers or the principals thereof which have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another firm or in which a parent company or the principals thereof of one Bidder have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another Bidder for the same project(s). ITB responses found to be collusive shall be rejected.

2.16 BIDDER IN ARREARS OR DEFAULT

The Bidder represents and warrants that the Bidder is not in arrears to the Town and is not a defaulter as a surety or otherwise upon any obligation to the Town. In addition the Bidder warrants that the Bidder has not been declared "not responsible" or "disqualified" by or debarred from doing business with any state or local government entity in the State of Florida, the Federal Government or any other State/local governmental entity in the United States of America, nor is there any proceeding pending pertaining to the Bidder's responsibility or qualification to receive public agreements. The Bidder considers this warrant as stated in this Article to be a continual obligation and shall inform the Town of any change during the term of the Contract.

2.17 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT

In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, (Section 287.133, Florida Statutes) a person or affiliate who is a contractor, who had been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to the Town, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases or real property to the Town, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with the Town in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.917, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Violation of this section by the Contractor shall result in rejection of the Bid, termination of the contract, and may cause Contractor debarment.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 3

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Contractor will promptly perform its duties under the Contract and will give the Work as much priority as is necessary to cause the Work to be completed on a timely basis in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The date and period of time set forth in the Notice to Proceed for the commencement, commencement and completion of the Work was included because of its importance to the Town.

3.2 NOTICES

Whenever either party desires to give written notice to the other relating to the Contract, such must be addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place specified below; and the place for giving the notice shall remain until it shall have been changed by written notice in compliance with the provisions of this Article. Notice shall be deemed given on the date received or within 3 days of mailing, if mailed through the United States Postal Service. Notice shall be deemed given on the date sent via e-mail or facsimile. Notice shall be deemed given via courier/delivery service upon the initial delivery date by the courier/delivery service. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice:

For Town:

Mr. Alex Rey Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016 reya@miamilakes-fl.gov

Mr. Gary Fabrikant
Procurement Manager
Town of Miami Lakes
15150 NW 79th Court
Miami Lakes, Florida 33016
fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov

For Contractor: Mr. Stanley Jordan President Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc. 1609 NW 79th Street Miami, Florida 33147 (305) 693-1963

prime.electrical@gmail.com

During the Work the Contractor shall maintain continuing communications with designated Town representative (s). The Contractor shall keep the Town fully informed as to the progress of the Work under the Contract.

3.3 PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS

If there is a conflict or inconsistency between any term, statement requirement, or provision of any exhibit attached hereto, any document or events referred to herein, or any document incorporated into the Contract Documents by reference and a term, statement, requirement, the specifications or any plans, or provision of the Contract Documents the following order of precedence shall apply:

In the event of conflicts in the Contract Documents the priorities stated below shall govern;

- Revisions and Change Orders to the Contract shall govern over the Contract
- The Contract Documents shall govern over the Contract
- The Special Conditions shall govern over the General Conditions of the Contract
- Addendum to an ITB shall govern over a ITB

In the event that Drawings and specifications are provided with a Work Order the priorities stated below shall govern:

- Scope of Work and Specifications shall govern over plans and drawings
- Schedules, when identified as such shall govern over all other portions of the plans
- Specific notes shall govern over all other notes, and all other portions of the plans, unless specifically stated otherwise
- Larger scale drawings shall govern over smaller scale drawings
- Figured or numerical dimensions shall govern over dimensions obtained by scaling
- Where provisions of codes, manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive or higher quality shall govern

3.4 INDEMNIFICATION-

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, agents and employees from and against all liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs at both trial an appellate levels arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work under this Contract, caused by negligence, recklessness, intentional misconduct, or any act or omission of the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Contract or otherwise provided by Contractor shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Town or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as herein provided.

The Contractor agrees and recognizes that the Town shall not be held liable or responsible for any claims which may result from any actions or omissions of the Contractor in which the Town participated either through review or concurrence of the Contractor's actions. In reviewing, approving or rejecting any submissions by the Contractor or other acts of the Contractor, the Town in no way assumes or shares any responsibility or liability of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor, under this Agreement. The Contractor shall defend the Town or provide for such defense at its own expense, at the Town's option.

This indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

The Town has provided specific consideration for the indemnification of \$10.00 from the sums due to the Contractor under this Contract.

3.5 **INSURANCE**

Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract, insurance of such type and in such amounts necessary to protect its interest and the interest of the Town against hazards or risks of loss as specified below. The underwriter of such insurance shall be qualified to do business in Florida, be rated B as to management and "Class V" as to strength or better as rated by the latest edition of Best's Insurance Guide, published by A.M. Best Company, Oldwick, New Jersey, or its equivalent, The insurance carrier shall have agents upon whom service of process may be made in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute to the Contractor's insurance. The insurance coverages shall include a minimum of:

- a. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance: Coverage to apply for all employees for statutory limits as required by the State of Florida's Statutory Workers' Compensation Law" and all applicable Federal laws. The policy(ies) must include Employer's Liability with minimum limits of \$500,000.00 each accident and a waiver of subrogation.
- b. Comprehensive Automobile and Vehicle Liability Insurance: This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to property of others arising from the Contractor's use of motor vehicles or any other equipment and shall cover operation with respect to onsite and offsite operations and insurance coverage shall extend to any motor vehicles or other equipment irrespective of whether the same is owned, non-owned, or hired. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive that the latest edition

- of the Business Automobile Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsement, as filed by the Insurance Services Office.
- c. Commercial General Liability. This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims arising from injuries to members of the public or damage to property of others arising out of any act or omission to act of the Contractor or any of its agents, employees, or subcontractors. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$500,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a primary and non contributory basis and with a coverage form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Commercial General Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include: (1) Premises and/or Operations; (2) Independent contractors and Products and/or completed Operations; (3) Broad Form Property Damage, Personal Injury and a Contractual Liability Endorsement, including any hold harmless and/or indemnification agreement.
- d. Certificate of Insurance: Contractor shall provide the Town Manager or designee with Certificates of Insurance for all required policies within fifteen (15) days of notification of a conditional award by the Town. The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also shall refer specifically to this Contract and shall state that such insurance is as required by this Contract. The Town reserves the right to require the Contractor to provide a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town. Each policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice shall be provided to the Town before any policy or coverage is cancelled, restricted, or a material change is made. Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the Town Manager or designee.
- e. Additional Insured The Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured for the liability of the Town resulting from operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor in performance of this Contract. Contractor's insurance, including that applicable to the Town as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to Contractor's insurance. Contractor's insurance shall contain a severability of interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each.

All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be approved by the Town Manager. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim.

3.6 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The employee(s) of the Contractor shall be considered to be at all times its employee(s), and not employee(s) or agent(s) of the Town or any of its departments.

The Contractor agrees that the Contractor will at all times employ, maintain and assign to the performance of the Work a sufficient number of competent and qualified personnel to meet the requirements of the Work to be performed.

The Contractor agrees to adjust staffing levels or to replace any staff personnel if so requested by the Town Manager or designee, should the Town Manager or designee make a determination that said staffing is unacceptable or that any individual is not performing in a manner consistent with the requirements for such a position.

The Contractor represents that its staff personnel have the proper skills, training, background, knowledge, experience, rights, authorizations, integrity, character and licenses as necessary to perform the Work, in a competent and professional manner.

The Contractor shall at all times cooperate with the Town and coordinate its respective Work efforts to most effectively and efficiently progress the performance of the Work.

The Town and other agencies authorized by the Town, shall have full access to the Project site at all times.

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only best practices are to prevail and only materials and workmanship of the best quality are to be used in the performance of the Work.

3.7 RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to provision of services specified in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be familiar with all federal, state and local laws that affect the Work.

3.8 SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION

The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the nature and location(s) of the Work under the Contract Documents subsequent to receiving a Work Order and prior to commencement of Work on the site, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing upon availability of installation, transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, and all other matters which can in any way affect the Work or the cost thereof under the Contract Documents.

Work site(s) may have existing utilities, such as, but not limited to, irrigation, phone, water and sewer, CATV, traffic signals, electrical, and storm sewer. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to verify the location of all such utilities, structures, etc., by hand excavation or other appropriate measures before performing any Work. The Contractor shall call Sunshine State One Call and other appropriate agencies, as applicable, to determine the locations of existing utilities prior to the commencement of

any Work. The Contractor is responsible for any and all claims resulting from the damage caused to any utilities, identified or not.

Should the Contractor identify any utilities, structures, etc., which will or may be encountered during the performance of the Work, the Town shall be consulted immediately in order for a decision to be made on the potential relocation or other action(s) to be taken as it relates to the work.

Should the Town direct the Contractor to relocate any utilities that would be impacted by any Work then the Town shall compensate the Contractor for such relocation in accordance with the Chang Order provisions of the Contract.

The Contractor shall not purposefully disrupt or disconnect any type of utility whatsoever without first obtaining the prior written approval of the Town or applicable utility owner. Requests for any disconnection, including those required of other utilities must be in writing and received by the Town at least 72 hours prior to the time of the requested interruption. The Town may require that the Contractor notify in writing any property owners to be impacted by service interruptions to their utilities.

Any failure by the Contractor to familiarize itself with any utilities that may impact the performance of the Work shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for properly estimating the difficulty or cost of performing the Work and shall not entitle the Contractor to any additional compensation.

3.9 METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, and interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be made upon that basis.

The Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's requirements for the handling, deliver and storage of all equipment and materials. Contractor shall inspect all equipment and materials immediately prior to installation and shall not install any damaged or defective materials or equipment.

Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's applicable instructions and recommendations for the performance of the Work, to the extent that these instructions and recommendations are more explicit or more stringent than requirements indicated in the Contract Documents or applicable Work Order.

The Work to be performed shall be done in such a manner so as not to interfere with the normal Town operations of the Project site. The manner in which the Work is performed shall be subject to the approval of the Project Manager, whom if necessary, shall have the authority to require changes in the manner in which the Work is performed. There shall be no obstruction of Town services without the prior written approval of the Project Manager. All requests for such interruption or obstruction must

be given in writing to the Project Manager 24 hours in advance of the interruption of Town operations.

The Contractor shall familiarize itself with normal Town operations where the Work is to be performed so that it can conduct the Work in the best possible manner to the complete satisfaction of the Project Manager.

Depending on the nature of the Work the Project Manager may require a staging plan be submitted to and approved by the Project Manager prior to the start of construction and issuance of the Notice to Proceed (NTP). Such staging plan shall be revised and resubmitted as necessary during construction.

3.10 CONTRACTOR TO CHECK PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND DATA

Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities and details shown on any plans, drawings, or sketches (if provided), specifications or other data received from Project Manager (if any) and shall notify the Project Manager of all errors, omissions and discrepancies found therein within three (3) calendar days of discovery. Contractor will not be allowed to take advantage of any error, omission or discrepancy, as full instructions will be furnished the Project Manager. Contractor shall not be liable for damages resulting from errors, omissions or discrepancies in the Contract Documents unless Contractor recognized such error, omission or discrepancy and knowingly failed to report it to Project Manager.

3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS

Contractor may be required, based on the Scope of Work of a Project, to submit shop drawings, sketches, samples or product data. A Work Order will state if shop drawings or other submittals are required.

Contractor is responsible to timely submit such documents or samples in a timely manner for review by the Project Manager. Shop Drawings that are to be complete in every detail and reflect clearly identify any deviation from what is required by the Contract Documents. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to submit sufficient information to allow the Project Manager to properly evaluate and approve the submittal or shop drawing.

Where professional calculations and/or certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, and or equipment are required, the Project Manager and/or Consultant are entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications submitted by the Contractor. Calculations, when required, shall be submitted in a neat clear and easy format to follow.

Contractor is solely responsible for the accuracy of all shop drawings and submittals and any approval by Project Manager shall in no way relieve the Contractor from said responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents.

3.12 SUBSTITUTIONS

Substitution of any specified material or equipment shall require the prior written acceptance of the Project Manager. It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to provide sufficient information and documentation to the Project Manager to allow for a thorough review and determination on the acceptability of the substitution. Approval of a substitution does not waive or mitigate the Contractor's sole responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents and a Work Order.

3.13 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

In the event that during the course of the Work on a Project the Contractor encounters subsurface or concealed conditions at the Project site which differ materially from those shown in the Contract Documents or Work Order, and from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character called for in the Contract Documents, Contractor, without disturbing the conditions and before performing any Work affected by such conditions, shall, within twenty-four (24) hours of its discovery, notify the Project Manager and/or Consultant in writing of the existence of the aforesaid conditions. Project Manager or the Consultant shall, within two (2) business days after receipt of Contractor's written notice, investigate the site conditions identified by Contractor. If, in the sole opinion of Project Manager or the Consultant, the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work, whether or not charged as a result of the conditions, Project Manager or Consultant shall recommend an equitable adjustment to cost of the Work or the time to complete the Work, or both. If the Project Manager and Contractor cannot agree on an adjustment in the Contract Price and/or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be referred to the Town's Procurement Manager for determination. Should the Town's Procurement Manager determine that the conditions of the Project site are not so materially different to justify a change in the terms of the Contract Documents, the Director shall so notify the Project Manager, Consultant, and Contractor in writing, stating the reasons, and such determination shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto.

No request by Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the Contract Documents under this provision shall be allowed unless Contractor has given written notice in strict accordance with the provisions of this Article. No request for an equitable adjustment or change to the Contract Price or Contract Time for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after the date certified by Consultant or Project Manager as the date of substantial completion.

3.14 PROTECTION OF PROPERTY, UTILITIES, AND THE PUBLIC

The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all its Work from damage and shall protect public and private property, and utilities from injury or loss arising in connection with the Work, and take all necessary precautions to prevent accidents, injuries, or damage to persons or property on or near the Work.

The Contractor shall be completely responsible for, and shall replace and make good all loss, injury, or damage to any property (including landscaping, irrigation, walks, drives, structures or utilities.

3.15 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

Any Work performed in the public right-of-way shall require the prior approval of the appropriate public agencies. These public agencies include, but are not limited to, the Town, Miami-Dade County Public Works Department, and FDOT. Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for Work performed in the public right-of-way, except for the cost of any required use of police officers, which reimbursement is addressed in Article 4.8.

Prior to commencing any Work the Contractor must install warning signs and any other warning and safety devices advising motorist and pedestrians of Work being performed. All signs shall be temporary and shall be removed at the end of the day or at the end of the completion of the Work, whichever is shorter.

The following guidelines must be followed during each maintenance operation:

1. When no lanes are blocked:

- a. All Contractor vehicles must have beacons and flashes on.
- b. "MEN WORKING" signs must be set up before starting operations.
 - On two lane roads: one (1) sign must be posted at each end of site, for each direction of travel (total of two (2) signs).
 - On four lane roads two (2) signs at each end of site (one on median and one on shoulder) for each direction of travel (total of four (4) signs.
 - Orange safety cones shall be set at edges of travel lanes in the immediate area of work.
- c. Vehicles shall be parked next to median at the transition area of left turn lanes. Orange traffic cones must be placed from the start of transition of the left turn lane to the front of vehicle at fifteen feet (15') intervals.

2. When a lane is to be blocked:

- a. No traffic lane shall be blocked for any period between the hours of 7:00 to 10:00 AM and 3:30 to 7:00 PM.
- b. No traffic lanes may be blocked for a period longer than fifteen (15) minutes, unless a Maintenance of Traffic (M.O.T.) Plan has been approved at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
- c. A traffic lane may be blocked for up to fifteen (15) minutes, if absolutely necessary. However, the following M.O.T. must be followed:
 - Flagmen shall be posted at the edge of the travel lane at least five hundred (500) feet prior to start of transition.

 There shall be a minimum of two hundred (200) feet transition with traffic cones, prior to lane closure. It is recommended that vehicle-blocking lane have a flashing arrow board.

Failure by the Contractor to comply with the Maintenance of Traffic requirements will result in the Town issuing a stop work order until corrective action is taken. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional time resulting in any delays due to issuance of a stop work order.

3.16 COORDINATION OF THE WORK

Prior to the commencement of the Work the Project Manager will make every effort, based on available information, to notify the Contractor of any ongoing project(s) or project(s) scheduled to commence during the Work on a Project that may require coordination. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for coordinating the Work with any other project(s) to minimize any potential adverse impact. Contractor shall not be entitled to any days of delay for failure to properly coordinate the Work. The Consultant and the Project Manager may assist the Contractor in coordinating the Work. However, any such assistance, or lack thereof shall form the basis for any claim for delay or increased cost.

If any part of Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any other persons, Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to Project Manager any defects in such work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other person's work as fit and proper for the reception of Contractor's Work, except as to defects which may develop in other contractor's work after the execution of Contractor's Work.

Contractor shall conduct its operations and take all reasonable steps to coordinate the prosecution of the Work so as to create no interference or impact on any other contractor on the site. Should such interference or impact occur, Contractor shall be liable to the affected contractor for the cost of such interference or impact.

To ensure the proper execution of subsequent Work, Contractor shall inspect the Work already in place and shall at once report to Project Manager and Consultant any discrepancy between the executed Work and the requirements of the Contract Documents.

3.17. ACCESS TO THE PROJECT SITE(S)

Town shall provide, as may be indicated in the Contract Documents or Work Order, the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and such other lands as are designated by Town for the use of Contractor.

Contractor shall provide, at Contractor's own expense and without liability to Town, any additional land and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities, or for storage of materials. Contractor shall furnish to the Town copies of written permission obtained by Contractor from the owners of such facilities.

3.18 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES AND ACCIDENTS

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town Manager or designee, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

3.19 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees in the performance of the Work on, about or adjacent to the premises, and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State, and local laws, including, but not limited to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, and amendments thereto, to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the Work is being performed.

The Contractor shall comply with the OSHA "Federal Right to Know' Regulation regarding informing employees of toxic substances in the workplace, providing training, and emergency procedures.

Contractor must adhere to applicable environmental protection guidelines for the duration of the Work. The Contractor shall comply with all codes, ordinances, rules, orders and other legal requirements of public authorities (including OSHA, EPA, DERM, the Town, Miami-Dade County, State of Florida), which bear on the performance of the Work

The Contractor shall provide such equipment and facilities as are necessary or required, in the case of accidents, for first aid service to person who may be injured during the Project(s) duration.

3.20 LABOR AND MATERIALS

Unless otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, water, tools, equipment, light, power, transportation and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work. All materials shall be new unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

3.21 VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

Contractor shall have on hand at all times clean and in good working order such vehicles, machinery, tools, accessories, and other items necessary to perform the Work under this Contract. The Town may require the repair or replacement of equipment as reasonably necessary.

3.22 SUPERVISION OF THE WORK

Contractor shall have competent English speaking supervisor who shall represent Contractor and all directions given to the supervisor shall be as binding as if given to Contractor. Contractor will provide properly licensed personnel where such personnel are required by any rule, regulations, or law. Contractor shall give efficient supervision to the Work, using its best skill and attention.

3.23 SUBCONTRACTORS

Subcontracting of Work is not permitted under this Contract

3.24 <u>AUTHORITY OF THE PROJECT MANAGER</u>

The Town Manager hereby authorizes the Project Manager designated in the Work Order to determine, all questions of any nature whatsoever arising out of, under or in connection with, or in any way relating to or on account of the Work, and questions as to the interpretation of the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall be bound by all determinations or orders of the Project Manager and shall promptly respond to requests of the Project Manager, including the withdrawal or modification of any previous order, and regardless of whether the Contractor agrees with the Project Manager's determination or requests. Where requests are made orally, the Project Manage will follow up in writing, as soon thereafter as is practicable.

The Project Manager shall have authority to act on behalf of the Town to the extent provided by the Contract, unless otherwise modified in writing by the Town. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued in writing. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued through the Town Manager or the Project Manager.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, and will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

All interpretations and recommendations of the Project Manager shall be consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.

3.25 TOWN LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES

In accordance with the Public Bid Disclosure Act, 218.80, Florida Statutes, each license, permit, or fee the Contractor will have to pay the Town before or during the Work or the percentage method or unit method of all licenses, permits and fees required by the Town and payable to the Town by virtue of the Work as part of the Contract are as follows:

- Contractor shall have and maintain during the term of this Contract all appropriate Town licenses. Fees for which shall be paid in full in accordance with the Town's Fee structure for such licenses. THERE WILL NOT BE ANY PERCENTAGE REDUCTION OR WAIVING OF TOWN LICENSE FEES.
- 2) During the performance of this Contract there may be times when the Contractor will be required to obtain a Town permit for such Work. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to insure that he has the appropriate Town permits to perform such work as may become necessary during the performance of the Work. Any fees related to Town required permits in connection with this Contract will be the responsibility of the Contractor and will be reimbursed by the Town.

Licenses, permits, and fees that may be required by County, State or Federal entities are not included in the above list.

3.26 TAXES

Contractor shall pay all applicable sales, consumer, use and other taxes required by law. Contractor is responsible for reviewing the pertinent state statutes involving state taxes and complying with all requirements.

3.27 REMOVAL OF UNSATISFACTORY PERSONNEL

The Town may make written request to the Contractor for the prompt removal and replacement of any personnel employed or retained by the Contractor, or any or Subcontractor engaged by the Contractor to provide and perform services or Work pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall respond to the Town within five (5) calendar days of receipt of such request with either the removal and replacement of such personnel or written justification as to why that may not occur. The Town shall make the final determination as to the removal of unsatisfactory personnel from the Work. The Contractor agrees that the removal of any of such individual(s) does not require the termination or demotion of said individual(s).

3.28 INSPECTION OF THE WORK

The Town Manager or designee, other Town representatives, and inspectors representing the Town and other public entities having jurisdiction over the Work shall at all times have access to the Work

Inspectors shall have no authority to permit deviations from, or to relax any of the provisions of the Contract Documents or to delay the Work by failure to inspect the materials and Work with reasonable promptness without the written permission or instruction of Project Manager.

3.29 DEFECTIVE OR NON-COMPLIANT WORK

The Town Manager and Project Manager shall have the authority to reject or disapprove Work that is found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of the Contract. If required Contractor shall promptly either correct all defective or non-compliant Work or remove such defective Work and replace it with non-defective/non-

compliant Work. Contractor shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal or corrections.

Re-examination of any of the Work may be ordered by the Project Manager, and if so ordered, the Work must be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town shall pay the cost of reexamination and replacement by means of a Change Order. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall pay such cost.

Should Contractor fail or refuse to remove or correct any defective or non-compliant Work or to make any necessary repairs in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents within the time indicated in writing by the Town Manager of designee, the Town Manager or designee shall have the authority to cause the defective/non-compliant Work to be removed or corrected, or make such repairs or corrections as may be necessary at Contractor's expense. Any expense incurred by the Town in making such removals, corrections or repairs, shall be paid for out of any monies due or which may become due to Contractor. In the event of failure of Contractor to make all necessary repairs promptly and fully, the Town Manager or designee may declare the Contractor in default.

If, within the warranty period required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract, any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor, after receipt of written notice from Town, shall promptly correct such defective or nonconforming Work within the time specified by Town without cost to Town. Should the Contractor fail to take such action the Town may take any necessary and appropriate action and hold the Contractor liable and responsible for all costs. The Town may take any action allowed under this Contract or in law to recover all such costs. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which Contractor might have under the Contract Documents including but not limited to any claim regarding latent defects.

Failure to reject any defective Work or material shall not in any way prevent later rejection when such defect is discovered, or obligate Town to accept.

3.30 CHANGE ORDERS

The Town reserves the right to order changes which may result in additions to or reductions from the amount, type or value of the Work shown in the Contract and which are within the general scope of the Contract Documents and all such changes shall be authorized only by a Change Order approved in advance, and issued in accordance with provisions of the Town.

Any changes to the Contract must be contained in a written document, executed by the both parties. However, under circumstances determined necessary by Town, Change Orders may be issued unilaterally by Town.

In the event satisfactory adjustment cannot be reached and a Change Order has not been issued, the Town reserves the right, at its sole option to direct the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis or make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the proposed additional Work.

Where the Town directs the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis, Contractor shall maintain detailed records of all labor and material costs for review of the Town. In addition, the Contractor shall be entitled a combined profit and overhead rate that shall not be in excess of ten (10%) percent of the direct labor and material costs, unless the Procurement Manager determines that the complexity and risk of the Change Order Work is such that an additional factor is appropriate. The final amount to be paid to the Contract for Change Order Work shall be subject to negotiation between the Town and the Contractor.

Failure by the Contractor to proceed with Change Order Work when so directed by the Town Manager or designee may result in the Contractor being found in default of the Contract.

3.31 FORCE MAJEURE

Should any failure to perform on the part of Contractor be due to a condition of force majeure as that term is interpreted under Florida law, then, the Town may allow an extension of time reasonably commensurate with the cause of such failure to perform or cure.

If the Contractor is delayed in performing any obligation under the Contract Documents due to a force majeure condition, the Contractor shall request a time extension from the Town within two (2) working days of said force majeure occurrence. Any time extension shall be subject to mutual agreement and shall not be cause for any claim by the Contractor for extra compensation unless additional services are required. **Do Not Include** inclement weather except as permitted by Florida law and may not include the acts or omissions of Subcontractors.

3.32 EXTENSION OF TIME

Any reference in this section to the Contractor shall be deemed to include suppliers, and permitted Subcontractors, whether or not in privities of contract with the Contractor for the purpose of this article.

If the Contractor is delayed at any time during the progress of the Work beyond the Contract Time and/or Notice to Proceed (NTP) by the neglect or failure of the Town or by a Force Majeure, then the Contract Time set forth in the Contract shall be extended by the Town subject to the following conditions:

- The cause of the delay arises after issuance of the NTP and could not have been anticipated by the Contractor by reasonable investigation before proceeding with the Work;
- The Contractor demonstrates that the completion of the Work will be actually and necessarily delayed;

 The effect of such cause cannot be avoided or mitigated by the exercise of all reasonable precautions, efforts and measures whether before or after the occurrence of the cause of delay.

Note: A delay meeting all the conditions of the above, shall be deemed an Excusable Delay.

The Town reserves the right to rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if subsequently, the Project Manager determines that any information provided by the Contractor in support of a request for an extension of time was erroneous; provided however, that such information or facts, if known, would have resulted in a denial of the request for an Excusable Delay. Notwithstanding the above, the Project Manager will not rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if the Contractor acted in reliance upon the granting of such extension and such extension was based on information which, although later found to have been erroneous, was submitted in good faith by the Contractor.

The request for an Excusable Delay shall be made within five (5) calendar days after the time when the Contractor knows or should have known of any cause for which it may claim an extension of time and shall provide any actual or potential basis for an extension of time, identifying such causes and describing, as fully as practicable at that time, the nature and expected duration of the delay and its effect on the completion of that part of the Work identified in the request. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to furnish such additional information or documentation, as the Project Manager shall reasonably deem necessary or helpful in considering the requested extension.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time unless the Contractor affirmatively demonstrates that it is entitled to such extension.

The Project Manager shall endeavor to review and respond to the Contractor's request for Excusable Delays in a reasonable period of time; however, the Contractor shall be obligated to continue to perform the Work required regardless of whether the Project Manager has issued a decision or whether the Contractor agrees or disagrees with that decision.

With regard to an injunction, strike or interference of public origin which may delay the Project, the Contractor shall promptly give the Project Manager a copy of the injunction or other orders and copies of the papers upon which the same shall have been granted. The Town shall be afforded the right to intervene and become a party to any suit or proceeding in which any such injunction shall be obtained and move to dissolve the same or otherwise, as the Town may deem proper.

The permitting of the Contractor to proceed with the Work subsequent to the date specified in the Contract (as such date may have been extended by a change order), the making of any payment to the Contractor, the issuance of any Change Order, shall not waiver the Town's rights under the Contract, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidated damages or declaring Contractor in default.

3.33 EXCUSABLE DELAY, NON-COMPENSABLE

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers and vendors, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its subcontractors, suppliers or vendors and by the Town. Then Contractor shall be entitled only to a time extension and no compensation for the delay.

Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor shall document its claim for any time extension as provided in the Contract.

Failure of Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Contract, as to any particular event of delay shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver, abandonment or relinquishment of any and all claims resulting from that particular event of delay.

3.34 CLAIMS

Any claim for a change in the Contract time for completion of any Work, the Contract Term, or Contract price shall be made by written notice by Contractor to the Town Manager or designee and to within ten (10) business days of the commencement of the event giving rise to the claim and stating the general nature and cause of the claim. Thereafter, within twenty (20) calendar days of the termination of the event giving rise to the claim, written notice of the extent of the claim with supporting information and documentation shall be provided unless the Town Manager or designee allows an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. The written notice must be accompanied by Contractor's written notarized statement that the adjustment(s) claimed is the entire adjustment to which the Contractor has reason to believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. All claims and disputes shall be determined in accordance with the Contract. It is expressly and specifically agreed that any and all claims for changes to to the Contract shall be waived if not submitted in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

The Contract time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost on critical Work items due to delays beyond the control of and through no fault or negligence of Contractor if a claim is made as provided in this Article. Such delays shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by own, fires, floods, labor disputes beyond the control of the Contractor, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions (if applicable), or acts of God.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from the Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by

Contractor for actual delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active interference on the part of Town. Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract time for completion of the Work, as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting excusable delay.

The Contractor agrees to make no claim for damages for delay of any kind in the performance of the Contract Documents whether occasioned by any act or omission of the Town or any of its representatives and the Contractor agrees that any such claim shall be compensated solely by an extension of time to complete performance of the Work due to an excusable delay as defined in this Article. The Contractor alone specifically assumes the risk of such delays, including without limitation: delays in processing or approving any submittals to the Town, or the failure to render determinations, approvals, replies, inspections, in a timely manner. Contractor shall not receive monetary compensation for Town delay(s).

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its Subcontractors, suppliers, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its Subcontractors, suppliers and by the Town. Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor must document its claim for any time extension as provided herein.

Failure of Contractor to comply with this Article as to any particular event of claim shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver of any and all claims resulting from that particular event.

3.35 DISPUTES AND MEDIATION

Contractor understands and agrees that all disputes between it and the Town upon an alleged violation of the terms of this Contract by the Town shall be submitted for resolution in the following manner.

Initial effort(s) should be made by the Contractor to resolve any issues with the Town representative(s) it works within in the coordination and performance of the Work.

Should the initial efforts at resolution not end in a mutual resolution then the Contractor notify in writing the Procurement Manager identified in Article 3.2, Notices, of the claim or dispute

The Contractor shall submit its dispute in writing, with all supporting documentation, to the Procurement Manager, as identified in Article 3.2, Notices. Upon receipt of said notification the Procurement Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Should the Contractor and the Procurement Manager fail to resolve the claim or dispute the Contractor shall submit their dispute in writing within five (5) calendar days of the written finding being issued by the Procurement Manager to the Town Manager. Failure to submit such appeal in the stated timeframe of the written finding shall constitute acceptance of the finding by the Contractor. Upon receipt of said notification

the Town Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Appeal to the Town Manager for his/her resolution, is required prior to Contractor being entitled to seek judicial relief in connection therewith. Should the Contractor be entitled to compensation hereunder, the Town Manager's decision may be subject to approval by the Town Council. Contractor shall not be entitled to seek judicial relief unless:

- (i) it has first received Town Manager's written decision, approved by the Town Council if applicable, or
- (ii) a period of sixty (60) days has expired after submitting to the Town Manager a detailed statement of the dispute, accompanied by all supporting documentation, or a period of (90) days has expired where Town Manager's decision is subject to Town Council for approval; or
- (iii) Town has waived compliance with the procedure set forth in this Article by written instrument(s) signed by the Town Manager.

In the event the determination of a dispute under this Article is unacceptable to either party hereto, the party objecting to the determination must notify the other party in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the written determination. The notice must state the basis of the objection and must be accompanied by a statement that any Contract price or Contract time adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the objecting party has reason to believe it is entitled to as a result of the determination. Within sixty (60) calendar days after completion of the Work or expiration of the Contract Term, the parties shall participate in mediation to address all objections to any determinations hereunder and to attempt to prevent litigation. A certified Mediator, who the parties find mutually acceptable, will conduct any mediation proceedings in Miami-Dade County, State of Florida. The costs of a certified Mediator shall be shared on a 50/50 basis. Should claim or dispute not be resolved in mediation, the parties retain all their legal rights and remedies provided under State law. A party objecting to a determination specifically waives all of its rights provided hereunder, including its rights and remedies under State law, if said party fails to comply in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

3.36 CONTINUING THE WORK

Contractor shall continue to perform all Work under the Contract Documents during all disputes or disagreements with Town, including disputes or disagreements concerning a request for a Change Order and no Work shall not be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements.

3.37 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

The Town may terminate this Contract or any other contracts with the Town with any person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate that attempts to meet its contractual obligations with the Town through fraud, misrepresentation or material misstatement. Such person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate shall be responsible for all direct or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation.

3.38 STOP WORK ORDER

The Town may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop all, or any part, of the Work for a period of up to ninety (90) days (or any lesser period), commencing no sooner than the date the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree. Any such order shall be specifically identified as a "Stop Work Order" issued pursuant to this paragraph. Within the period of ninety (90) days (or the lesser period specified) after a Stop Work Order is delivered to the Contractor, or within any extension to which the parties have agreed the Town shall either:

- Cancel the Stop Work Order; or
- Terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in Article 3.34, Termination for Convenience.

If a Stop Work Order issued under this Article is canceled or the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the Contractor shall resume the Work without compensation to the Contractor for such suspension other than extending the time to complete any Work under the Contract or extending the Contract Term to the extent that, in the opinion of the Town Manager or designee, the Contractor may have been delayed by such suspension. In the event the Town Manger or designee determines that the suspension of Work was necessary due to Contractor's defective or incorrect Work, unsafe Work conditions caused by the Contractor, or any other reason caused by Contractor's fault or omission, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time or Contract Term or (Time) as a result of the issuance of a Stop Work Order.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.39 HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS

During such periods of time as are designated by the United States Weather Bureau as being a hurricane warning, the Contractor, at no cost to the Town, shall take all precautions necessary to secure any Work in response to all threatened storm events, regardless of whether the Contractor has given notice of same.

Compliance with any specific hurricane warning or alert precautions will not constitute additional work.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.40 CLEANING UP; TOWN'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

Contractor shall at all times keep the Work site(s) free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by its operations. At the completion of a Work at a work

site(s), Contractor shall remove all its waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project(s) as well as any tools, equipment, machinery and surplus materials or supplies. If Contractor fails to clean up during the performance of the Work or at the completion of the Work, Town may do so and the cost incurred shall be charged to Contractor. Any combustible waste materials must be removed from the work site(s) at the end of each day.

Should the Contractor leave any open trenches at any time that Work is not being performed the Town may have the open trenches covered and deduct any cost incurred from any outstanding payments due or to become due to the Contractor. The Town may also invoice the Contractor for the incurred costs.

3.41 SET-OFFS, WITHHOLDING, AND DEDUCTIONS

The Town may set-off, deduct or withhold from any payment due the Contractor, such sums as may be specifically allowed in the Contract or by applicable law including, without limitation, the following:

- Any amount of any claim by a third party;
- Any Liquidated Damages, and/or;
- Any unpaid legally enforceable debt owed by the Contractor to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor in writing of any such withholdings.

Any withholding, which is ultimately held to have been wrongful, shall be paid to the Contractor in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act

3.42 CONTRACTOR DEFAULT

a. Event of Default

An event of default shall mean a breach of the Contract by the Contractor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in addition to those instances referred to herein as a breach, an Event of Default, shall include but not limited to, the following:

- · The Contractor has not performed the Work in a timely manner;
- The Contractor has refused or failed to supply properly skilled staff or provided sufficient quantities of staff to perform the Work;
- The Contractor has failed to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or suppliers for any services or materials, or supplies they have provided;
- The Contractor has become insolvent or has assigned the proceeds received for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors, or the Contractor has taken advantage of any insolvency statute or debtor/creditor law or if the Contractor's affairs have been put in the hands of a receiver;
- The Contractor has failed to obtain the approval of the Town where required by the Contract Documents;
- The Contractor has failed in the representation of any warranties stated herein;

 When, in the opinion of the Town, reasonable grounds for uncertainty exist with respect to the Contractor's ability to perform the Work.

b. Notice of Default-Opportunity to Cure

Where an Event of Default ("Default") occur under the Contract, the Town may at its sole discretion notify the Contractor, specifying the basis for such Default, and advising the Contractor that such Default must be cured within a time frame specified by the Town or the Contract with the Town may be terminated. The Town is under no obligation to issue such notification. The Town may grant an extension to the cure period if the Town deems it appropriate and in the best interest of the Town, without waiver of any of the Town's rights hereunder. The Town, at its sole discretion, may have a default corrected by its own forces or another contractor and any such costs incurred will be deducted from any sums due the Contractor under any contract with the Town.

The Town Manager or designee may also suspend any payment or part thereof or order a Work stoppage until such time as the issues concerning compliance are resolved.

c. Termination for Default

Where a Default is not cured within the time specified to cure the Default, the Town Manager in addition to all remedies available by law, may immediately, upon written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract. Contractor understands and agrees that termination of this Contract under this Article shall not release Contractor from any obligation accruing prior to the effective date of termination.

In the event of termination by the Town Manager or designee, the Town Manager or designee may immediately take possession of all applicable documentation and data, material, equipment, and supplies to which it is entitled to under the Contract or by law.

Where the Town erroneously terminates the Contract for default, the terminations shall be converted to a Termination for Convenience, and the Contractor shall have no further recourse of any nature for wrongful termination.

3.43 <u>TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE</u>

In addition to cancellation or termination as otherwise provided for in the Contract, the Town may at any time, in its sole discretion, with or without cause, terminate the Contract by written notice to the Contractor. Such Written Notice shall state the date upon which Contractor shall cease all Work under the Contract, and if applicable vacate the Project(s) site(s).

The Contractor shall, upon receipt of such notice, unless otherwise directed by the Town:

Stop all Work on the date specified in the notice ("the Effective Date");

- Take such action as may be necessary for the protection and preservation of the Town's materials and property;
- Cancel all cancelable orders for materials and equipment; and assign to the Town and deliver to the Town, at a site(s) specified by the Town, any noncancelable orders for materials and equipment that can not otherwise be used by the Contactor on other work;
- Take no action that shall increase the amounts payable by the Town under the Contract Documents; and take reasonable measures to mitigate the Town's liability under the Contract Documents; and
- All documents, including electronic documents, related to Work authorized under the Contract, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Town.
 Failure to timely deliver the documentation shall be cause to withhold any payments due without recourse by Contractor until all documentation is delivered to the Town.

In the event that the Town exercises its right to terminate the Contract pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Town will pay the Contractor:

- For the actual cost or the fair and reasonable value, whichever of any noncancelable material(s) and equipment than cannot be used elsewhere by the Contractor in the performance of its work.
- In no event, shall any payments under this Paragraph exceed the maximum cost set forth in the Contract and the amount due hereunder may be offset by payments made to the Contractor or any claims made against the Contractor.
- Contractor shall not be entitled to lost profits, overhead or consequential damages as a result of a Termination for Convenience.

3.44 TOWN MAY AVAIL ITSELF OF ALL REMEDIES

The Town may avail itself of each and every remedy stated in the Contract Documents or existing at law or in equity. The exercise or the beginning of the exercise, of one remedy shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to exercise, at the same time or thereafter, of any other remedy.

3.45 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Contractor shall comply with the most recent editions and requirements of all applicable laws, rule, regulations, codes, and ordinances of the Federal government, the State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and the Town.

3.46 NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate against any person, shall provide equal opportunities for employment, and comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act in its performance of the Work under the Contact. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules regulations, laws, and ordinance as applicable.

3.47. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The Contractor is engaged as an independent business and agrees to perform Work as an independent contractor. In accordance with the status of an independent contractor, the Contractor covenants and agrees that the Contractor will conduct business in a manner consistent with that status, that the Contractor will not claim to be an officer or employee of the Town for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the Town, including, but not limited to: worker's compensation coverage; unemployment insurance benefits; social security coverage; retirement membership, or credit.

3.48. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Neither Contractor nor Town intends to directly or substantially benefit a third party by this Contract. Therefore, the parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract and that no third party shall be entitled to assert a claim against either of them based upon this Contract.

3.49 ASSIGNMENT OR SALE OF CONTRACT

The performance of this Contract shall not be transferred pledged, sold, delegated or assigned, in whole or in part, by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the Town. It is understood that a sale of the majority of the stock or partnership shares of the Contractor, a merger or bulk sale, an assignment for the benefit of creditors shall each be deemed transactions that would constitute an assignment or sale hereunder. The Town may request any information it deems necessary to review any request for assignment or sale of the Contract.

Any transference without Town approval shall be cause for the Town to terminate this Contract for default and the Contractor shall have no recourse from such termination.

Nothing herein shall either restrict the right of the Contractor to assign monies due to, or to become due or be construed to hinder, prevent or affect any assignment by the Contractor for the benefit of its creditors, made pursuant to applicable law.

3.50 MATERIALITY AND WAIVER OF BREACH

Town and Contractor agree that each requirement, duty, and obligation set forth in the Contract Documents is substantial and important to the formation of the Contract Documents and, therefore, is a material term hereof. The Town's failure to enforce any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of such provision or modification of the Contract Documents. A waiver of any breach of a provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Contract Documents.

3.51 DEFENSE OF CLAIMS

Should any claim be made or any legal action brought in any way relating to the Work under the Contract, the Contractor shall diligently render to the Town any and all assistance which the Town may require of the Contractor.

3.52 FUNDS AVAILABILITY

Funding for this Contract is contingent on the availability of funds and the Contract is subject to amendment or termination due to lack of funds, reduction of funds and/or change in regulations, upon thirty (30) days notice.

3.53 ACCESS TO AND REVIEW OF RECORDS

Town shall have the right to inspect and copy, at Town's expense, the books and records and accounts of Contractor which relate in any way to the Contract. The Contractor agrees to maintain an accounting system that provides for accounting records that are supported with adequate documentation and adequate procedures for determining allowable costs.

The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Town shall have the right to immediately terminate this Contract for the refusal by the Contractor to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall retain all records associated with this Contract for a period of five (5) years from the date of termination.

3.54 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

All fees, royalties, and claims for any invention, or pretended inventions, or patent of any article, material, arrangement, appliance, or method that may be used upon or in any manner be connected with the construction of the Work or appurtenances, are hereby included in the prices stipulated in the Contract for said Work.

3.55 TIME IN WHICH TO BRING ACTION AGAINST THE TOWN

In the event the Contractor may be deemed to have a cause of action against the Town, no action shall lie or be maintained by the Contractor against the Town upon any claim arising out of or based upon the Contract Documents by reason of any act or omission or requirement of the Town or its agents, unless such action shall be commenced within six (6) months after the date of issuance of a final payment under the Contract, or if the Contract is terminated under the provisions of the Contract unless such action is commenced within six (6) months after the date of such termination by the Town.

3.56 CONTRACT EXTENSION

The Town reserves the right to exercise its option to extend the Contract for up to ninety (90) calendar days beyond the original Contract period, inclusive of any Options to Renew exercised by the Town. In such event, the Town will notify the Contractor in writing of such extensions.

3.57 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE OF LITIGATION

This Contract shall be enforceable in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and if legal action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or conditions the sole venue shall be Miami-Dade County, Florida.

3.58 NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

It is the intent of the Town to enter into a Contract with all successful Bidder(s) that will satisfy its needs as described herein. However, the Town reserves the right, as deemed in its best interest, to perform, or cause to be performed, the Work and services, or any portion thereof, as it sees fit, including but not limited to: award of other contracts, use of another contractor, or perform the Work with its own employees.

3.59 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of the Contract Documents is determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then such unenforceable or unlawful provision shall be excised from this Contract, and the remainder of the Contract Documents shall continue in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the result of the deletion of such provision will materially and adversely affect the rights of either party, such party may elect, at its option, to terminate the Contract in its entirety. An election to terminate the Contract based upon this provision shall be made within seven (7) calendar days after the finding by the court becomes final.

3.60 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTAINS ALL TERMS

The Contract Documents and all documents incorporated herein by reference contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of the Contract Documents shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto, or to vary any of the terms contained herein.

3.61 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract Documents, as they may be amended from time to time, represent the entire and integrated Contract between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral. This Contract may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered in any respect, at any time after the execution hereof, except by a written document executed with the same formality and equal dignity herewith. Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 4

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 SCOPE OF WORK

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement, maintenance or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways. Compressors and generators are required equipment and the Town will not pay a rental cost for such equipment. This work may include high and low voltage equipment such as, but is not limited to street lights, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, various types of lighting, welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar work. Maintenance includes in addition to parts replacement, miscellaneous paint touch up and pole ID number stickers. In addition, the contractor will be responsible to occasionally remove small branches/ shrubs that may be blocking the street lights.

4.2 CONTRACT TERM/ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE

This Contract shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue for a term of three (3) years from the date of execution by the Town or until the Contract value has been expended. No Work shall commence until a written Notice to Proceed is issued.

4.3 OPTION(S) TO RENEW

Prior to or upon completion of the initial term of the Contract or the expenditure of available dollar capacity under the Contract the Town, at its sole discretion, shall have an option to renew this Contract upon the same terms and conditions for two (2) additional one (1) year extensions (the "Option"). The Town may at its sole discretion, exercise the Option to renew when the total value of the Contract for the initial term or Option year has been fully expended. Any Option shall be effective upon receipt of a written notice from the Town Manager to the Contractor. The Town may, at its sole discretion allow for price increases during the Option years due to extraordinary changes in market conditions and pricing.

4.4 HOURS FOR PERFORMING WORK

All Work shall be performed in accordance with the hours set forth in the Town's noise Ordinance No. 04-50 unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

Any Work to be performed outside these hours will require the prior written approval of the Town Manager. A Work Order may establish different working hours than those stated herein.

4.5 RESPONSE TIME

Contractors shall respond to request for Work based on the requirements established in Article 4.9, Award of Projects. Contractor must provide and keep current the name(s) and telephone number(s) of the Contractor's staff who can be reached twenty-four hours, seven (7) days a week for Emergency Service.

The maximum timeframe for response shall be as stated below except where the Project Manager determines that a Project requires a shorter timeframe for response.

Emergency Service	2 hours from NTP
Critical Service	1 day from NTP
Routine Service	3 days from NTP

4.6 COMPENSATION

All Work will be issued based on a time and materials basis and the Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. The Price Proposal submitted by the Contractor shall establish the maximum not to exceed cost for the Work to be performed under a Work Order.

Normal working hours for purposes of compensation will be from 8:00 am until 5:00 pm, Monday through Saturday. Overtime rates shall apply to any work performed outside of these hours or on Sunday. The maximum overtime rate the Contractor may charge is 1.5 times the regular hourly rate. No overtime rates are permitted on equipment.

Contractor shall provide the Town with one invoice within thirty (30) days of the date services were rendered. At a minimum the invoice must contain the following information: Multiple invoices will not be accepted and the Town will not make payment based on statements of accounts.

- Name and address of the Contractor
- Contract number
- Date of invoice
- Invoice number (Invoice numbers cannot be repeated)
- Description of Work performed or installed, including location(s) where the Work was performed
- Hours and cost by trade classification
- Cost of materials
- Extended prices
- Total value of the invoice
- Copies of receipts for all materials purchased for the Work

Failure to include the above information will delay payment. Payments will not be made based on statements of accounts.

The Town will take action to pay, reject or make partial payment on an invoice in accordance with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act. No payments shall be

due or payable for Work not performed or materials not furnished or where the Work has not been accepted by the Town. If there is a dispute with regard to an invoice, the Town will pay the amount not in dispute and reject the remainder that is in dispute.

The Contractor shall be compensated based on the hourly rates and mark-up on materials specified in the Proposal/Bid Form of the Contract.

4.7 ESTIMATED HOURS

The hours per trade classification stated on the Bid Form are solely estimates of what the Town anticipated its need to be for the initial term of the Contract. The stated hours do not reflect the actual hours that the Town will actually require and the Town has not established any minimum quantities and no guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to the Contractor. The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make adjustment to the required number of hours. The failure of the Town to order any minimum hours per trade classification shall not form any basis for a claim by the Contractor for lost work or profits.

4.8 LINE ITEM PRICING

Line item pricing shall include all costs, both direct and indirect to perform the Work, except for any costs specifically identified as reimbursable costs under the Contract..

The Bid Form contains line item prices and the Bidder is required to Bid on all lime items. Should a Bidder fail to provide a line item price the Bid will rejected as non-responsive.

Should a Bidder include a line item price that the Town determines is not a fair and unreasonable price the Town, in its sole discretion, may determine that the Bid is an unbalanced Bid and reject the Bid as non-responsive. These types of prices include prices that are too low a price at which to perform the Work or too high a price based on market conditions.

4.9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Certain Project expenses may, or will not be know at the time of award of a Project. The Town shall reimburse the Contractor for such costs, which includes:

- Permits
- Police Officer costs when not provided by the Town

Where a permit or the Town requires the Contractor to use a police officer(s) during the performance of the Work the Town will make every effort to furnish police officers at no cost to the Contractor. Where the Town is not able to provide the required police officers the Town will reimburse the Contractor based on the actual cost to the Contractor and the cost is not include in the unit price per item. To be reimbursed the Contractor must submit a copy of documentation substantiating both the cost as well as proof of payment.

4.10 AWARD OF PROJECTS

Should more than one award be made under this ITB the Primary Contractor will be afforded the first opportunity to be issued a Work Order for a Project. However, the

Project Manager may issue a Work Order to the Secondary Contractor include, but not be limited to the following:

- The Town and the Primary Contractor cannot agree on the cost/scope of the Project.
- The Primary Contractor cannot perform the Work in the specified timeframe.
- The Primary Contractor does not respond to the Work Order Proposal in the stated timeframe.
- The Project Manager determines that the Primary Contractor has too much Work
- There is insufficient capacity remaining in the Primary Contractor's Contract.
- The Primary Contractor has failed to successfully perform on previous Work Orders or under other Contracts with the Town.

The determination on using the Secondary Contractor shall rest solely with the Project Manager and the Town.

The Town will utilize a Work Order process for issuing Work under the Contract. However, where the Project Manager determines that the Work to be performed falls within either the Emergency or Critical Repair categories, as defined by the Contract he Project Manager may issue a Notice To Proceed in writing that the Contractor proceed with the Work. Where an emergency situation exists, which affects life/safety that does not allow time to issue written notice To proceed the Project Manager shall issue a verbal Notice to Proceed and follow-up as soon as possible with written verification.

The Project Manager will provide the Contractor a written work proposal (Proposal) for a Project, which will include the scope of work and, the timeframe for completing the Project, and available drawings (if any), and any additional contract terms and conditions specific to the Project, including but not limited to additional insurance, liquidated damages, etc. The Contractor will also be provided a deadline to respond to the Project Manager concerning the Project.

The Contractor is responsible to visit the site, review any drawings and scope of work, and the site conditions. The Contractor is required to respond to the Project Manager, within the specified timeframe, with its price proposal (Price Proposal) and confirmation that they can perform the Work in the stipulated timeframe. The Price Proposal must include a breakdown of the maximum number of labor hours by trade classification to perform the Work and the maximum estimated cost of materials and equipment required to perform the Work. The Project Manager will review any recommended revisions and in its sole discretion accept or reject, in writing, the proposed revisions. The Contractor will have twenty-four (24) hours to accept or reject the award of the Project.

Upon written acceptance of the Work Order Proposal, the Project Manager will issue a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed for the Project. Where the Contractor rejects the Proposal or where the Contractor fails to respond within the stipulated timeframes the Project Manager may award the Project to another Contractor, or utilize other means

available to the Town. Contractor shall not commence any Work without receiving a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed from the Town.

The Town, in its sole discretion, may terminate for default any Contractor who fails to accept three Projects within a one (1) year period.

4.11 PAYMENTS

Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. Payment for Projects shall be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act, upon Final Completion of a Project.

4.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Town may establish liquidated damages on a Project by Project basis. Where the Town determines that liquidated damages shall apply to a Project the amount established will be set forth in the Work Order.

The Contractor is obligated and guarantees to complete the Project in the time set forth in the Work Order or any approved extension of time the Contractor may be granted by the Town. In the event of a delay in completion beyond the date set forth in the Work Order the Contractor shall pay to the Town for each and every calendar day of unexcused delay, the sum stipulated in the Proposal, which is hereby agreed upon not as a penalty but as liquidated damages. The Contractor will be notified of any exceptions. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the value of the Project.

The Town shall have the right to deduct liquidated damages assessments from any payment due or which may thereafter become due to the Contractor under any contract the Contractor has with the Town. In case the amount, which may become due hereunder, shall be less than the amount of liquidated damages due the Town, the Contractor shall pay the difference upon demand by the Town. Should the Contractor fail to compensate the Town for any liquidated damages, the Town shall consider this as a form of indebtedness and may deny any future Work under the Contract or any other Town contract until such indebtedness is paid in full to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor that it is incurring liquidated damages.

4.13 PURCHASE AND DELIVERY, STORAGE AND INSTALLATION

All materials shall be F.O.B. delivered. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the purchase, delivery, and installation of all equipment and material(s). Contractor shall make all arrangement for delivery. Contractor shall be liable for replacing and damaged equipment or material(s) and filing any and all claims with suppliers. All transportation must comply with all federal, FDOT, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules and regulations.

Contractor is responsible for the protection of all equipment and material(s) from adverse weather conditions, damage, deterioration, and theft until the Work has been accepted by the Town.

4.14 TOWN FURNISHED DRAWINGS

The Town, in its sole discretion, may furnish design drawings. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to bring to the immediate attention of the Project Manager any discrepancies between the drawings and existing conditions, excluding hidden or unforeseen conditions, discovered prior to commencing and during the Work. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for verifying the accuracy of any Town provided drawings prior to commencing the Work, and shall be responsible for any errors or revisions of the Work, which might have been avoided by notifying the Town prior to commencement. This shall also apply to any revisions or omissions identified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit all requests for information entitled Request for Information (RFI).

The Project Manager will clarify in writing the intent of the drawings and the Contractor agrees to abide by the Project Manager's interpretation and perform the Work in accordance with the decision of the Project Manager. In such event, the Contractor will be held to have included in its Contract Price the best materials suitable for the purpose and/or methods of construction.

The Contractor shall have no basis for any claim for additional costs resulting from their failure to identify any required revisions, omissions and/or errors, not identified in writing to the Project Manager prior to commencing the Work.

4.15 SUBSTITUTIONS

The Contractor may request the Town to approve substitution where the specified materials are not available. Such requests must be submitted in writing to the Project Manager in advance with sufficient information to evaluate the substitution. The Contractor must provide the substitute materials plant designation, type, grade, quality, and size. Acceptance of substitutions shall be at the sole discretion of the Town. The Town may require an adjustment in price based on any proposed substitution.

4.16 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

The Contractor shall submit a Request for Information (RFI) where the Contractor believes that the Contract Document's specifications are unclear or conflict. All requests must be submitted in a manner that clearly identifies the specification section or drawing detail, if furnished, where clarification or interpretation is being requested. As part of the RFI, Contractor shall include its recommendation for resolution. The Town shall respond in writing.

4.17 WARRANTY

All Work have a one (1) year warranty on labor from the date of final acceptance and the Contractor shall provide a such written warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment. Contractor shall provide a minimum written warranty of one (1) year on all equipment, parts, or material unless the Work Order specifies a longer warranty. Where the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or material provides a warranty greater than one (1) year or the time frame stipulated in a Work Order, then the manufacturer's warranty term

shall take precedence. Contractor shall be required to provide the Project Manager a copy of the manufacturer's warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment.

Should the Contractor fail to perform any required warranty work the Town, at its sole discretion, may have the work performed by others, an deduct such costs from any monies due the Contractor from the Town. Where such funds are not available the Town will bill the Contractor and Contractor shall reimburse the Town within thirty (30) calendar days. The Town may take any necessary and appropriate action provided under this Contract or with law to collect such payment due the Town.

4.18 ACCESS TO UTILITIES

The Contractor is responsible for providing power required for the performance of the Work, including the use of a generator. The use of a generator may be subject to the prior approval of the Town's representative should the Work be in a primarily residential neighborhood.

The Town may at its sole discretion provide access to Town utilities and/or water should such be available at the Work site. However, the Contractor is responsible to ascertain the location and accessibility of any utilities sources necessary to perform the Work. The ability of the Town to make utilities available to the Contractor shall not form any basis for a change order of claim by the Contractor.

4.19 STAGING SITE

The Contractor is solely responsible for making all arrangements for any staging site(s) that may be necessary for the performance of the Work and the Contractor shall be responsible for all site security and any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Town at its sole discretion may make a staging site available for use by the Contractor. If such site is made available by the Town, the Town assumes no responsibility or liability, and the Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Contractor shall also be responsible for restoring the site to its pre-existing condition prior to the Contractor's use of the site.

4.20 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, PUNCH LIST, & FINAL COMPLETION

Depending on the scope of a Project the Work may require a Substantial Completion inspection. If required the Work shall be substantially complete when the Project Manager, in the reasonable exercise of his/her discretion determines that the Work is complete and there are no material and/or substantial variations from the Contract Documents and the Work is fit for its intended purpose. Upon Substantial Completion, the Project Manager and the Contractor shall sign the Substantial Completion Inspection Form. The signing of this form shall not relieve the Contractor from its obligation to complete the Project.

When the Contractor believes that the Work is substantially complete, the Contractor shall request in writing that the Project Manager inspect the Work to determine if Substantial Completion has been achieved. Where the Work requires the Contractor to obtain a Certificate of Completion no request for Substantial Completion inspection is to be

submitted until the Contractor has obtained the Certificate(s) of Completion. The Project Manager or Consultant shall schedule the date and time for any inspection and notify the Contractor and any other parties deemed necessary. During this inspection, the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form will be completed as necessary. Any remaining Construction Work shall be identified on this form and shall be known as Punch List Work. The Punch List shall be signed by the Project Manager and the Contractor confirming that the Punch List contains the item(s) necessary to complete the Work. The failure or refusal of the Contractor to sign the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form or Punch List shall not relieve the Contractor from complying with the findings of the Project Substantial Completion Inspection and completing the Project to the satisfaction of the Town.

The Project Manager and the Contractor shall agree on the time reasonably required to complete all remaining Work included in the Punch List.

Upon Substantial Completion and the receipt and acceptance of any required documentation, including warranty documents, the Project Manager shall determine that a Project has achieved Final Completion and authorize final payment.

The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by Contractor, except those previously made in strict accordance with the provisions of the Contract and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the application for final payment.

4.21 OWNERSHIP OF THE WORK

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all Work including materials, supplies, and or equipment prior to final written acceptance. Contractor shall be liable for all damage, theft, maintenance, health and safety until such time as the Town issues final acceptance. The Contractor is responsible for the protection, and maintenance of all of its own tools, equipment, and vehicles.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 5 -

BID FORM

Bid submittal of _	Prim	ne Electrical Contractors, Inc.	
		(Name of Bidder)	
	1609 NW, Florida 33016		
		(Address)	
Submitted on:	June 22, 2011		
	(Date)		
to furnish all Work	as stated in the ITB an	d Contract Documents for the	

o raminiman work as stated in the 115 and contract 500aments for t

Miscellaneous Electrical Service Bid No: 2011-08

To: Town of Miami Lakes, Florida

Attn: Town Clerk Town Hall 15150 NW 79th Court

Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only person or persons interested in this Bid, as principal(s) are named herein and that no other person than herein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the Contract to be entered into or which the Work pertains; that this Bid is made without connection with any other person, company, firm, or parties making a Bid; and that the Bid is, in all respects, made fairly and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

The Bidder further declares that it has performed sufficient investigations, and informed itself fully of the suitability of the Work and all conditions pertaining to the place where the Work is to be done; that it has examined the ITB and all of the Contract Documents and all addenda thereto issued prior to Bid opening, as acknowledged in its Bid; and that it has satisfied itself about the Work to be performed; and that it has submitted the Bid Guaranty, if required; and all other required information with the Bid; and that this Bid is submitted voluntarily and willingly.

The Bidder agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to timely execute a contract with the Town, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and to furnish all necessary materials,

equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation, and all labor necessary to complete the Work.

The undersigned further agrees that the Bid guaranty, if required, accompanying the Bid shall be forfeited if Bidder fails to execute said Contract, or fails to furnish the required Performance Bond,

BID FORM: (Page 2 of 6)

Our **BID AMOUNTS** includes the total hourly rates and mark-up for the Work to be performed under this solicitation, including all direct and indirect costs such as supervision, mobilization, overhead, profit, etc. in accordance with the Contract Documents.

if required by the Contract Documents, or fails to furnish the required Certificate(s) of Insurance within fifteen (15) calendar days after being notified of the award of the Contract.

In the event of arithmetical errors, the Bidder agrees that these errors are errors which may be corrected by the Town. In the event of a discrepancy between the price Bid in figures and the price Bid in words, the price in words shall govern. Bidder agrees that any unit price listed in the Bid is to be multiplied by the stated quantity requirements in order to arrive at the extended value and the unit price shall prevail over the extended value.

Trade/Equipment	Hourly Rates
Master Electrician	\$25.00
Journeyman ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$29.00
Journeyman/Supervisor ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$35.00
Apprentice	A STANCE AND
Apprentice 1 st Year	\$18.00
Apprentice 2 nd Year	\$32.00
Apprentice 3 Years or greater	\$34.00
Laborer	\$9.00
Bucket Truck (Daily operations, less than 50 foot)	\$49.00
Bucket Truck (minimum 50 foot, on call, or emergency)	\$49.00
Crane (for 30 & 40 foot light poles)	\$49.00
Emergency Response	\$49.00
	Percentage
Material Mark-up (see notes below)	3%
TOTAL	NY WEST

Notes:

- Bidders are bidding on a lump sum basis for the purpose of determining the lowest responsive and responsible Bidders. However, Contractors will be paid based on the line item breakdown, contained in the Bid Form, with payments based on actual Work performed.
- 2. The percentage mark-up for materials the Town will pay under the Contract shall not exceed 10%. Where a mark-up for materials is submitted that is greater than 10% the Town will automatically reduce the percentage to 10% and shall calculate the extended price to reflect the 10% value. The Town will not pay a mark-up on equipment rentals.
- 3. The number of hours for the Apprentice category covers the total amount to be used by all of the sub-trade categories for the Apprentice trade.
- The Journeyman/Supervisor category will be used where the Journeyman is supervising apprentices or laborers. The Journeyman category will used when a second Journeyman is required for a Project.

Firm's Name:	Prime Electrical Contractors Inc.	
Signature: X	tong A saw	
Printed Name/Title:	Stanley Jones, President	
Town/State/Zip:	Miami Florida 33147	
Telephone No.: 305-693-6800		
Facsimile No.: 305	-693-1963 E-Mail Address: Prime.electrical@Gmail.com	
Social Security No. of I.D.No.: 65-0307		

END OF SECTION

	ADDENDUM	ACKNOWLE	EDGEMENT FORM
Part I: Listed below	are the dates of issu	e for each Ac	dendum received in connection with this Bid:
Ad	dendum No	Dated	
Add	dendum No,	Dated	
Add	dendum No	Dated	
Ado	dendum No	Dated	
Add	dendum No,	Dated	
Ado	dendum No	Dated	
Add	dendum No	Dated	
Add	dendum No	Dated	
Add	dendum No,		MO-1
		No Addendu	m issued for this ITB
Firm's Name: P	rime Electrical	Contractor	s Inc.
Signature: <u>67</u>	only A 10	nos.	
Printed Name/Title:	Stanley Jon	es, Presid	ent

(IF CORPORATION)

I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Prime Electrical Contractors $Inc.$, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Florida held on the 1 day of June 2011, a resolution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) Stanley Jones as (Title) President of the corporation to execute bids on behalf of the corporation and providing that his/her execution thereof, attested by the secretary of the corporation, shall be the official act and deed of the corporation. I further certify that said resolution remains in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 1 day of June 2011. Secretary: Stanley Jones
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF PARTNERSHIP)
I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of, a partnership organized and existing under the laws of the State of, held on theday of, a resolution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) as (Title) of the to execute bids on behalf of the partnership and provides that his/her execution thereof, attested by a partner, shall be the official act and deed of the partnership.
I further certify that said partnership agreement remains in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20 Partner: Print:
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY IF JOINT VENTURE)
Joint ventures must submit their joint venture agreement indicating that the person signing this Bid is authorized to sign Bid documents on behalf of the joint venture and submit the appropriate Certificate of Authority (corporate, partnership, or individual).
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF INDIVIDUAL)
I HEREBY CERTIFY that, I (Name), individually and doing business as (d/b/a) (If Applicable) have executed and am bound by the terms of the
Bid to which this attestation is attached.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20
Signed:
Print:
46

NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC

NOTARIZATION

STATE OF	Florida)						
COUNTY OF	Miami Dade) SS:)						
The	foregoing instrume				this		day d	
June	20_11, by Star	ıley Jo	nes	wh	o is pe	rsonally	known t	0
me or who	nas produced			as identifica	ation ar	nd who	(did / di	d
not) take an	oath.							
SIGNATURE	OF NOTARY PUBLIC							
STATE OF FLO	Notary Public	hetta in DD675761	83252					
PRINTED, ST.	AMPED OR TYPED							

Section 6

Attachments

QUESTIONNAIRE

This Completed Form <u>Must</u> Be Submitted With The Bld, The Town May, At its Sole Discretion, Require That The Bidder Submit <u>Additional</u> Information Not Included In The Submitted Form. Such Information Must Be Submitted Within Seven (7) Calendar Days of the Town's Request. Failure To Submit The Form Or Additional Information Upon Request By The Town Shall Result In The Rejection Of The Bid As Non-Responsive. Additional Pages May Be Used Following The Same Format And Numbering. Some Information May Not Be Applicable Apply. In Such Instances Insert "N/A".

By submitting its Bid the Bidder certifies the truth and accuracy of all information contained herein.

Bı	usiness Information		
Ho	ow many years has your company be	en in business under its current	name and ownership?
a.	Professional Licenses/Certifications	(include name and number)*	Issuance Date
	State Electrical	EC 13003127	07/01/201
200	Miami Dade Oc	268517-1	07/19/201
	* Miami Dade County CSBE	CERT # 1903	12/27/201
	(*include active certifications of small or disadvan	stage business & name of certifying entity)	-
b.	Date company licensed by the State	e of Florida or Miami-Dade Count	ty:07/01/2010
c.	State and Date of Incorporation:	Florida 1991	
C	What is your primary business?	Electrical Street Li	ght Contractor
		(This answer should be specific	
e.	Name of Qualifier, license number, Stanley Jones, President Names of previous Qualifiers duri relationship to company and years as NONE	# EC 13003127 ng the past five (5) years inc	luding, license numb
AI.	ame and Licenses of any prior compa	nies	
145	N	License No. Issuance	S-1-
IVē	Name of Company NONE	License No. Issuance	Date

Type of Comp	Jany.	泛				
	s will be requ	poration LLC Sole				prior t
Company Ow	nership					
a. identify all	owners of the	company				
Name		Title		% of	ownershi	р
Stanley	Jones	President		10	0%	
						_
		3.6%				
-		•				
	•	N/A				
		outhorized to sign for the		ndicating	the level	of thei
Name	Title	Sig	natory Author	ity		
			All	Cost	No-Cost	Other
					П	
NC	ONE					
Explanation fo	or Other:				•	
Employee Info	A-100					
		Number of Manag	erial/Admin. F	mplovee	s: 2	
		and total number per clas		F. 10 To 4 To 5	118,00	
		arately for each classification)	omedica.			

Journey	man level	S. Jones
11	11	A Marchetta
Apprent:	ice#3	B Pryce
Has any owner or emp offense or moral turpi NONE		mpany ever been convicted of a federal ease explain:
Insurance & Bond Info		FSB Agency Inc. Gladys Keith
		gladys.bonds@yahoo.com
		ne,&e-mail: Morene Langer Co 305-8227800: Miami Lakes F1
		Rating (EMR): N7A (if no EMR rating please explain why)
	& address:	See A.
f. Bond Carrier Conta		none, & e-mail:
		1-954-323-3587 Ms.Gladys Keith
g. Number of Bond Cl	aims paid out in	last 5 years & value:none
where your company company. Identify the	has either sett year basis for t	gainst your company in the past 5 years, if yes, identitle or an adverse judgment has been issued against the claim or judgment & settlement unless the value infidentiality agreement.
	1	NONE
To the best of your kn investigation by any la	owledge is your w enforcement	r company or any officers of your company currently agency or public entity. If yes, provide details:
	1	no

10.		No (If yes, provide an attachm nation.					
11.	Has your company been cited for any OSHA violations in the past five (5) years? If yes, please provide an attachment including all details on each citation, Yes 🖫 No						
12.	Provide an attachment listing all of the equipment, with a value of \$3,000 or greater, owned by your company.						
13.		ent listing of all equipment that yow for the performance of the Work		own but plans to			
В.	Project Manageme	nt & Subcontract Details					
1.	Project Manager for	this Project:					
	a. Name: Tony	Marchetta					
	b. Years with Comp	any:					
	c Licenses/Certifica	tions: Master Electrici	ian				
		th the company including role, scope		roject:			
	Existing C	ontract for Miami Lakes Elec	ctrical	\$ 168810 yr			
	Miami Dade	County Street Lighting Co	ontract	\$ 615000			
2.	Subcontractors: Name	Trade/Work to be performed	% of Work Licens	se No.			
		NONE					
	-						
		Work to be performed by your comes not include such items as insurance bonds, of All Except Major Digg	dumpsters, trailers, and other				

- Current Experience Including current under projects or contracts, recently awarded, or pending award (Provide an attachment to this questionnaire that lists all such contracts or projects, including the owner's name, title and value of project, scope of work, projected or actual start date, projected completion date.
- 2. Prior contracts or projects of a similar size, scope, and complexity: Provide an attachment to this Questionnaire that includes contracts or projects the Bidder considers of a similar, size, scope and complexity that the Town should consider in determining the Bidders responsiveness and responsibility. This attachment must include the contracts or projects that meet the minimum number of contracts or projects identified by the bid solicitation. Information provided must include the owner's name, address and contract person, including telephone & e-mail, title of contract or project, location of project, scope, initial value and final cost of the contract or project, projected and final timeframes for completion in calendar days. A reference letter is to be completed by the owner of the Project and submitted as part of the Bid submission.

D. Bidder's References

Bidders are to include a minimum of five (5) references from contracts or projects listed in C.2 above. The attached form is to be used and is to be included with the Bid submission. The Town, at its sole discretion may allow the Bidder to submit the references after the specified date for Bid submission.

Item C #1

Current Miami Lakes E	lectrical Maintenance SCOPE	Contractor. \$ 168,810.00
Mia Dade Public Works Street Light Divisin George Brown, Supervisor 305-592-3470 ex 235	Street Light Maint	615,000.00 Till 2013
Tacolcy Development Corp 675 NW 56 St Suite C Angila Kelly 305:757-3737	100± ·Apts	On going to present Electrical Maint
Urban League housing Covenant Palms 2200 NW 25 Ave Albert/Supervisor 305-696-2322	100± Apts	On going, to present Electrical Maint
Richman Properties 305 945 5222	50±Apts	On Going, to present Electrical Maint
Zenith Property Management George Holstein George@zpmfl.com	50± Condo Parking Lot Lighting	On going, to present Electrical Maint



Town of Miami Lakes

o whom it Ma	Concern
Subject: Refere	nce Letter
Name of Bidder	
the Town. We and by providin following refere	renced contractor is submitting on a bid solicitation that has been issued by require that the Bidder provide written references with their Bid submission g you with this document the Contractor is requesting that you provide the ence information. We would appreciate you providing the information of as well as any other information your feel is pertinent:
Name of Project	:
Scope of work:	
Value of Contra	t \$ Is contract active of expired? Active Expired
Was the work pe	erformed timely: Yes No
Was the work p	erformed to acceptable quality standards? Yes No
Would you ente	r into a contract with the Contractor in the future? Yes No
If not to either o	f the above please provide details:
Comments:	
Thank you for yo	our assistance in helping us in evaluating our bid solicitation.
Name of Individ	ual completing this form: Date:
Signature:	Title:
Telephone:	E-mail:
Sincerely,	
Gary Fabrikant Procurement Ma	anager

ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE	} } SS:	
COUNTY OF WHAMIPDADE		
bid will be paid to any er or its de	mployees of the sign consultants	rn, depose and say that no portion of the sum herein e Town of Miami Lakes, its elected officials, and s, as a commission, kickback, reward or gift, directly m or by an officer of the corporation.
		By: Stank A jones
		Title: President
Sworn and subscribed befor	e this	
22 day of June	20 11	
usy or	<u></u>	
Notary Public State of Florid	da	
Anthon My Cor	Public State of Florida y Marchetta mmission DD675768	- E
(Printed Name) of ros Expires	07/31/2011	
My commission expires:		

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

State of Florida	· } SS:
County of Miami Da	The second secon
Stanley Jones	being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:
Officer, Rethat has sub) He/Proposal and C) Such the representation of the connection person to fany overhed the the other Bidd	/she is the
	or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper and are not any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of
	or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in
interest, in	cluding this affiant.
Signed sealed and	delivered in the presence of:
Dirt of	KICL By: Otal A son
Witness	7.1.1.0
Witness	Stanley_Jones
**************************************	(Printed Name)
	President
	(Title)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

) SS:		
County of Miami Dade)	5	
	reign and another site.	

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared <u>S Jones</u> to me well known and known by me to be the person described herein and who executed the foregoing Affidavit and acknowledged to and before me that <u>he</u> executed said Affidavit for the purpose therein expressed.

WITNESS, my hand and official seal this 22 day of June, 2011.

My Commission Expires:

State of Florida

Notary Public State of Florida Anthony Marchetta My Commission DD675768 Expires 07/31/2011

Notary Public State of Florida at Large

SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

by	This sworn statement is submitted to the Town of Miami Lakes Stanley Jones, President
Uy.	[print individual's name and title]
for	Prime Electrical Contractors Inc.
	[print name of entity submitting sworn statement]
	whose business address is
	1609 N.W. 79 Street
	Miami F1 33147
	and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is 65–03077
(if t	he entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual
sign	ing this sworn statement: Stanley Jones)
Stat	I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)9g), leates, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an ago

- 2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)9g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods and services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction or a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand than an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
 - A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
 - b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.

person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an entity.
- 6. Based on information and belief, the statement that I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.]
- __xx_ Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, not any affiliate of the entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

____ This entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

____ The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order]

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO

UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017,

CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. Signat	ure of Entity Submitting Sworn Statement
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	22 day of <u>June</u> , 20 11.
Personally knownyes	
OR produced identification	Notary Public – State of
*	My commission expires
(type of identification)	Notary Public State of Florida

(Printed, typed or stamped commissioned name notary public)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 7

SPECIFICATIONS

7.1 License

a. Contractor must be licensed by the State of Florida as an electrical contractor and the qualifier must be an owner or employee of the Contractor.

7.2 Work Crew

- The Contractor shall provide work crews on an as needed, when needed basis.
- Employees shall be physically able to perform strenuous labor in the South Florida environment.
- c. At least 1 Journeyman shall be assigned to each Project, whom shall act as the as the crew supervisor. The supervisor must be fluent in English.
- d. At a minimum, one of the Work Crew must possess a valid State of Florida Drivers License for the type of vehicle(s) being driven and used as part of a Project.

7.3 Transportation

- a. Each Work Crew shall have suitable transportation in the form of a one-half ton (minimum size) full size pickup truck and/or other appropriate vehicle(s) necessary to complete the Project. The truck should be capable of transporting items up to eight foot (8') in length.
- b. All vehicles must meet the requirements of the Contract, including but not limited to the truck must be in good working order, with current license, registration, and insurance. The vehicle(s) must also be substantially free of body damaged and must be painted uniformly
- c. All vehicles must include the name of the Contractor, Contractor's license number, business telephone number. Rented or borrowed vehicles should properly identify the name and telephone number of the rental company or company from whom is was obtained.

7.4 Materials

- a. The Town may, at its sole discretion, furnish materials to be used for a Project. Materials may include but not be limited to signs, posts, and mounting brackets.
- b. All materials and equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be new and unused in their original sealer wrapper or container prior to use on a Project. Materials may be subject to inspection prior to use on a Project. Where materials or equipment are, as determined by the Project Manager, not to new, unused, or in their original wrapper, or container, the Project Manager may reject their equipment or materials and requires its replacement prior to use on a Project.

- a. The Contractor shall be available, at the Town's request, to assist the Town and/or its designee at the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) during emergency situations, including but not limited to hurricane preparedness and recovery.
- On a first priority basis Contractor shall be immediately available to clear roadways or access areas in the event of an Act of God, terrorism or other large scale event.

7.6 Utility Coordination

a. As determined by the Town, Contractor shall meet with utility companies prior to their excavation of underground lines to serve as the Town's representative to avoid any potential issue to the Town and damage to exiting power lines.

SECTION 8

CONTRACT EXECUTION FORM

This Contract <u>2011-08EP</u> made this <u>12th</u> day of <u>July</u> in the year <u>2011</u> is for Work to be performed on an as needed basis by and between the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida, hereinafter called the "Town," and Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc. Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc. is one of two secondary Contractors under contract with the Town for the Work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Attest:	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES
By: Marijorie Tejeda, Town Clerk	By: Alex Rey, Town Manager
By: Town Attorney	
Signed, sealed and witnessed in the presence of:	As to the Contractor: Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.
April to 1 Notal Public State of Eletida Anthony Marchetta My Commission DD675768 Expires 07/31/2011	By: Stanley A Jones Name: Stanley Jones Title: President

(*) In the event that the Contractor is a corporation, there shall be attached the original of the corporate resolution in the form contained in this Section, of the board of the corporation, authorizing the officer who signs the Contract to do so in its behalf.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, <u>Prime Electrical Contractors, Inc.</u> desires to enter into a contract with the Town of Miami Lakes for the purpose of performing the work described in the contract to which this resolution is attached; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors at a duly held corporate meeting has considered the matter in accordance with the By-Laws of the corporation;

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS that the President (type title of officer)

Stanley Jones , is hereby authorized (type name of officer)

and instructed to enter into a contract, in the name and on behalf of this corporation, with the Town of Miami Lakes upon the terms contained in the proposed contract to which this resolution is attached and to execute the corresponding performance bond.

DATED this 15 day of July 2011.

(Corporate Seal)

INVITATION TO BID MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE ITB No. 2011-08



The Town of Miami Lakes Council:

Mayor Michael Pizzi
Vice Mayor Nick Perdomo
Councilmember Mary Collins
Councilmember Timothy Daubert
Councilmember Nelson Hernandez
Councilmember Ceasar Mestre
Councilmember Richard Pulido

Alex Rey, Town Manager The Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

DATE ISSUED:

May 19, 2011

CLOSING DATE:

June 22, 2011

Miscellaneous Electrical Service

RFP 2011-08

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION/ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
Section 1Notice To Bidders	s	
Section 2Instructions To B		
2.1Definition of Tern	ns	2
	nents	
	d	
2.4Bid Preparation a	nd Related Costs	4
2.5Pre-Bid Conference	ce	4
2.6 Qualification of Bi	idders	5
2.7Performance of the	ne Work	5
2.8Examination of Co	ontract Documents	5
2.9Interpretations ar	nd Clarifications	5
	Bid Opening Date	
2.11 Acceptance or Rej	jection of Bids	6
2.13Opening of Bids		6
2.14Award of Contract	t	6
2.15Collusion		7
2.16Bidder in Arrears	or Default	7
2.17Public Entity Crime	es Act	7
Section 3 General Terms an		
3.1Time is of the Esse	ence	8
3.2Notices		8
3.3Priority of Provision	ons	9
3.4Indemnification		9
3.5Insurance		10
3.6General Requirem	ents	11
3.7Rules and Regulati	ions	12
3.8Site Investigation	and Representation	12
3.9Method of Perform	ming the Work	13
3.10 Contractor to Chee	ck Plans, Specifications and Data	14
	d Submittals	
3.12 Substitutions		14
3.13 Differing Site Cond	ditions	15

3.14 Protection of Property, Utilities, and the Public	15
3.15 Maintenance of Traffic	15
3.16Coordination of the Work	
3.17 Access to the Project Site(s)	17
3.18 Contractor's Responsibility For Damages and Accidents	17
3.19Safety Precautions	
3.20Labor and Materials	. 18
3.21Vehicles and Equipment	. 18
3.22Supervision of the Work	. 18
3.23Subcontractors	. 19
3.24 Authority of the Project Manager	. 19
3.25Town Licenses, Permits and Fees	. 19
3.26Taxes	20
3.27Removal of Unsatisfactory Personnel	20
3.28Inspection of the Work	. 20
3.29Defective Work	20
3.30 Change Orders	. 21
3.31 Force Majeure	. 22
3.32 Extension of Time	
3.33 Excusable Delay, Non-Compensable	. 23
3.34Claims	. 24
3.35Disputes and Mediation	. 25
3.36Continuing the Work	26
3.37Fraud and Misrepresentation	26
3.38Stop Work Order	. 26
3.39Hurricane Preparedness	27
3.40Cleaning Up; Town's Right To Clean Up	27
3.41Set-Offs, Withholding, and Deductions	. 28
3.42Contractor Default	. 28
3.43Termination for Convenience	. 29
3.44Town May Avail Itself of All Remedies	. 30
3.45Compliance with Applicable Laws	. 30
3.46Nondiscrimination, Equal Employment Opportunity,	
And Americans with Disabilities Act	.30
3.47Independent Contractor	. 30
3.48Third Party Beneficiaries	31
3.49Assignment or Sale of Contract	31
3.50Materiality and Waiver of Breach	.31
3.51Defense of Claims	31
3.52Funds Availability	31
3.53Access To and Review of Records	32
3.54Royalties and Patents	32
3.55Time in Which To Bring Action Against The Town	.32
3.56Contract Extension	32

3.57Applicable Law and Venue of Litigation	. 32
3.58Non-Exclusive Contract	. 32
3.59Severability	. 33
3.60Contract Documents Contains All Terms	33
3.61Entire Agreement	. 33
Section 4Special Terms and Conditions	
4.1Scope of Work	34
4.2Contract Term/Estimated Expenditure	34
4.3Option(s) to Renew	.34
4.4Hours for Performing Work	34
4.5Response Time	.35
4.6Compensation	35
4.7 Estimated Hours	36
4.8 Line Item Pricing	36
4.9 Reimbursable Expenses	
4.10 Award of Projects	36
4.11 Payments	
4.12 Liquidated Damages	38
4.13 Purchase and Delivery, Storage and Installation	. 38
4.14 Town Furnished Drawings	
4.15 Substitutions	39
4.16 Request For Information	39
4.17 Warranty	39
4.18 Access to Water and Utilities	40
4.19 Staging Site	40
4.20 Substantial Completion, Punch List, & Final Completion	
4.21 Ownership of the Work	
Section 5 Bid Form	
Section 6 Attachments	48
Section 8 Specifications	60

SECTION 1

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES

MISCELLANEOUS ELECTRICAL SERVICE

ITB 2011-08

The Town of Miami Lakes (the "Town") will be accepting sealed Bids for the Town's <u>Miscellaneous Electrical Services</u> ("Projects") for Work to be performed on an as needed basis. Bidders are to submit three (3) Bids, with original signatures together with a copy of the Bid on a CD-ROM. Sealed Bids, including the CD-ROM <u>must</u> be received by the Town of Miami Lakes, Town Clerk at 15150 NW 79th Court, Miami Lakes, Florida by 2:00 P.M. on June 22, 2011.

Scope of Work:

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways, which includes but is not limited to poles, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, photocells, various types of lighting (including street lighting), welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar Work.

Minimum Qualification Requirements:

Prospective Bidder shall hold a current certified license as a Electrical Contractor or from the State of Florida, and at a minimum must have a licensed journeyman who will be assigned to the Work Crew. Bidder must also possess a minimum of seven (7) years experience as an electrical contractor. No Work can be subcontracted under the Contract.

The Town will consider a Bid as responsive where a Bidder has less than the stipulated minimum number of years of experience solely where the Bidder has undergone a name change and such change of name has been filed with the State of Florida.

Bid Documents may be obtained by visiting the Town's website at www.miamilakes-fl.gov and selecting "Contractual Opportunities". Any further inquiries regarding the Project may be directed to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov.

All Bids shall be submitted in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. Any Bids received after the specified time and date will not be considered. The responsibility for submitting a Bid before the stated time and date is solely and strictly the responsibility of the Bidder.

Pursuant to subsection (t) "Cone of Silence" of Section 2-11.1 "Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance" of Miami Dade County, public notice is hereby given that a "Cone of Silence" is imposed concerning this purchase.

SECTION 2

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

2.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

Bid means the Submittal tendered by a Bidder in response to this solicitation, which includes the price, authorized signature and all other information or documentation required by the Invitation to Bid ("ITB") at the time of submittal.

Bid Form means the form that contains the goods or services to be purchased and that must be completed and submitted with the Bid.

Bidder means any person, firm or corporation, or its duly authorized representative tendering a Submittal in response to this solicitation.

Change Order means a written document ordering a change in the Contract price or Contract time or a material change in the Work.

Contract means the ITB and the Bid documents that have been executed by the Bidder and the Town subsequent to approval of award by the Town.

Contract Documents means the Contract as may be amended from time to time, any and plans, specification, bonds. addendum, clarifications, directives, Work Orders, Work Order Proposals, change orders, payments and other such documents issued under or relating to the Contract.

Contractor means the person, firm, or corporation with whom the Town has contracted and who will be responsible for the acceptable performance of any Work and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the Work under the Contract.

Critical Service means service that is required to mitigate circumstances that affect the ability of the Town to provide services or perform necessary operations.

Cure means the action taken by the Contractor promptly, after receipt of written notice from the Town of a breach of the Contract Documents, which shall be performed at no cost to the Town, to repair, replace, correct, or remedy all material, equipment, or other elements of the Work or the Contract Documents affected by such breach, or to otherwise make good and eliminate such breach.

Cure Period means the period of time in which the Contractor is required to remedy deficiencies in the Work or compliance with the Contract Documents after receipt of a written Notice to Cure from the Town identifying the deficiencies and the time to Cure.

Days mean calendar days.

Emergency Service means service that involves mitigating circumstances that threatens the health, life, safety, or welfare of the public or employees of the Town.

Final Completion means the date subsequent to the date of Substantial Completion at which time the Contractor has completed all the Work under a Work Order and submitted all documentation required by the Contract Documents.

Inspector means an authorized representative of the Town assigned to make necessary inspections of materials and Work performed by the Contractor.

Materials mean goods or equipment incorporated in a Project, or used or consumed in the performance of the Work.

Notice of Award means the written letter to the Contractor notifying the Contractor that it has been awarded the Contract.

Notice to Proceed means a written letter or directive issued by the Town Manager or designee acknowledging that all conditions precedent to award have been met and directing that the Contractor may begin Work.

Plans Drawings, and/or Sketch means a graphic representation of a Project issued as part of a Work Order.

Project means a task or series of tasks assigned by Town through the issuance of a Work Order that the Contractor must complete in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Project Manager means the individual assigned by the Town Manager to manage a Project issued through a Work Order under the Contract.

Request For Information (RFI) means a request from the Contractor seeking an interpretation or clarification relative to the Contract Documents. The RFI, which shall be clearly marked RFI, shall clearly and concisely set forth the issue(s) or item(s) requiring clarification or interpretation and why the response is required. The RFI must set forth the Contractor's interpretation or understanding of the document(s) in question, along with the reason for such understanding.

Subcontractor means a person, firm or corporation having a direct contract with Contractor, including one who furnishes material worked to a special design according to the Contract Documents, but does not include one who merely furnishes materials not so worked.

Substantial Completion means that point at which the Work is at a level of completion in substantial compliance with the Contract such that the Town can use the completed Work for its intended purpose. Substantial Compliance shall not be deemed to have occurred until any and all governmental entities, which regulate or have jurisdiction over the Work, have inspected, and approved the Work.

Submittal means the documents prepared and submitted by the Bidder in response to this ITB.

Town means the Town Council of the Town of Miami Lakes or the Town Manager, if applicable.

Town Manager means the duly appointed chief administrative officer of the Town of Miami Lakes or his designee.

Work as used herein refers to all reasonably necessary and inferable labor, material, equipment, and services, whether or not specifically stated, required by the Contract Documents for the Contractor to fulfill its obligations, under the Contract Documents.

Work Crew means the employees assigned by the Contractor to perform Work under a Work Order. At least one of the crew must possess an active journeyman's license from the State of Florida.

Work Order means a document issued by the Town awarding a specific Project to a Contractor.

Work Order Proposal means a document prepared by the Contractor, at the request of the Town for Work to be performed on a Project.

2.2 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The ITB and any addendum that may be issued constitute the complete set of specification requirements and Bid forms. The Bid Form page(s), and all forms contained in the ITB shall be completed, signed, and submitted in accordance with the requirements of Section 1. All bids must be typewritten or filled in with pen and ink, and must be signed in blue ink by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm. Errors, corrections, or changes on any document must be initialed by the signatory of the Bid. Bidders shall not be allowed to modify their bids after the opening time and date.

2.3 PREPARATION OF BID

The Bid Form contains multiple line items and the Bidder must provide prices for all line items and must provide the price for the total annual bid amount. Failure to include pricing on all line items as well as the total annual bid amount shall result in the Bid being found non-responsive.

Bidder must use the blank Town forms provided herein. The Bid must be signed and acknowledged by the Bidder in accordance with the directions on the ITB. Failure to utilize the Town's forms, or fully complete said forms will result in a determination that the Bid is non-responsive.

A Bid will be considered non-responsive if it is conditioned on modifications, changes, or revisions to the terms and conditions of the ITB.

The Bid is to include the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment, all overhead/indirect expenses and profit, necessary for the completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided in the Contract Documents.

Joint venture firms must complete and submit with their Bid the Form JV titled "Information for Determining Joint Venture Eligibility", (Form JV) and submit a copy of the signed formal agreement between all joint-venture parties. This joint venture agreement must indicate each of the party's respective roles, responsibilities and levels of participation for the Contract. Failure to timely submit Form JV, along with an attached written copy of the joint venture agreement may result in disqualification of the Bid. All joint venture firms must meet the requirements stipulated in the Florida Statutes.

2.4 BID PREPARATION AND RELATED COSTS

All cost involved with the preparation and submission of Bid to the Town or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder(s). No payment shall be made for any Bid received, or for any other effort required of or made by the Bidder prior to commencement of Work as defined by a contract duly approved by the Town Council or Town Manager, as applicable. The Town shall bear no responsibility for any cost associated with any judicial proceedings resulting from the ITB process.

2.5 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

A pre-bid conference will be held not be held for this ITB.

2.6 QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

Bidder must meet the minimum qualification requirements stated in Section 1 and must be capable of performing the primary trade Work under the Contract. Bidders shall submit a completed Qualification Statement utilizing the form attached.

2.7 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK

Bidder must be capable of self- performing all of the Work under this Contract. By submitting a Bid the Bidder certifies that it will meet this requirement. As part of the Bid the Bidder are to include the form entitled "Questionnaire". Failure to complete and submit this form or to meet this requirement shall result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive. Where the Contractor is deemed to not meeting this requirement during the performance of the Work the Contractor shall be in default of the Contract Documents.

2.8 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

It is the responsibility of each Bidder, before submitting a Bid in response to this ITB to:

- Carefully review the ITB, including any Addendum and notify the Town of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies.
- Take into account federal, state and local (Town and Miami-Dade County) including, without limitation the Town's Code, and Miami-Dade County and the State of Florida's statutes laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may affect a Bidder's ability to perform the Work.
- Study and carefully correlate Contractor's observations with the requirements of the ITB.

The submission of a Bid in response to this solicitation shall constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that it will comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents and that without exception, the Bid is premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required under the Contract Documents and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

2.9 INTERPRETATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the ITB and specifications shall be directed in writing by e-mail to Gary Fabrikant, Procurement Manager, at 15150 NW 79th Court; Miami Lakes, FL 33016, Email: fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov. Interpretation or Clarifications considered necessary by the Town in response to such questions will be issued by means of addenda. All addenda will be posted on the Town's website, www.miamilakes-fl.gov and it is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to obtain all addenda. Written questions must be received no less than ten (10) days prior to bid opening. Only questions answered by written addenda shall be binding. Oral and other interpretation or clarifications shall be without legal effect.

2.10 POSTPONEMENT OF BID OPENING DATE

The Town reserves the right to postpone the date for receipt and opening of Bids and will make a reasonable effort to give at least five (5) calendar days notice prior to the Bid opening date, of any such postponement to prospective Bidders.

2.11 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS

The Town reserves the right to reject any and all Bids or any portion of a Bid, with or without cause, to waive technical errors and informalities, or to cancel or re-issue this solicitation. The Town also reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder who has failed to previously perform under a contract or who is in arrears to the Town.

Reasonable efforts will be made to either award the Contract or reject all Bids within ninety (90) calendar days after Bid opening date. A Bidder may not withdraw its Bid unilaterally nor change its Bid before the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of bid opening.

2.12 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

A Bidder may withdraw its Bid after the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of Bid opening by delivering written notice of withdrawal to the Town's Procurement Manager prior to award of the Contract by the Town Council or Town Manager, applicable. Once the Town makes the award, the Bid cannot be withdrawn under this Article.

2.13 OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the appointed time and place stated in the ITB. Late Bids will not be opened. No responsibility will be attached to any Town Staff for the premature opening of a Bid not properly addressed and identified. Bidders or their authorized agents are invited to be present at the bid opening. The lowest Bid identified at the Bid opening does not establish or determine the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder who may be awarded the Contract.

2.14 AWARD OF CONTRACT(S)

The Town anticipates awarding of the a Contract to the Bidder who is determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. However, the Town may, in its sole discretion makes an award(s) that are determined to be in the best interest of the Town. Should the Town elect to award more than one Contract the lowest responsive and responsible bidder will be designated as the Primary Contractor.

The Town may require demonstration of competency and, at its sole discretion, conduct site visit(s) and inspections of the Bidder's place(s) of business, require the Bidder to furnish documentation and/or require the Bidder to attend a meeting to determine the Bidder's qualifications and ability to meet the terms and conditions of this Contract. The Town shall consider, but not be limited to, such factors as financial capability, labor force, equipment, experience, knowledge of the trade work to be performed, the quantity of Work being performed by the Contractor and past performance on Town and other contracts. In no case will the Award be made until all necessary investigations have been made into the responsibility of the Bidder(s) and the Town Manager is satisfied that the Bidders are qualified to perform the Work.

Any Bidder who, at the time of submission, is involved in an ongoing bankruptcy as a debtor, or in a reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver has been appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of the Bidder under federal bankruptcy law or any state insolvency, the Bid may be declared non-responsive. Any Bidder

who has filed a lawsuit against the Town or where the Town has filed a lawsuit or won a court judgment against a Bidder, such Bidder may be declared non-responsible.

If the Town accepts a Bid, the Town will notify the Bidder that it is the apparent awardee and that award is conditioned upon executing the Contract, and submission and approval of the required insurance certificates. The Town will provide a written notice of award upon the Bidder meeting these requirements.

If the successful Bidder to whom a Contract is proposed to be awarded forfeits the Award by failing to meet the conditions as stated above, the Town may, at the Town's sole option, award the Contract to the next lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder or reject all Bids or readvertise the ITB.

2.15 COLLUSION

Where two (2) or more related parties, as defined in this Article, each submit a response to an ITB, such submissions shall be presumed to be collusive. The foregoing presumption may be rebutted by the presentation of evidence as to the extent of ownership, control and management of such related parties in preparation and submission under such ITB. Related parties shall mean employees, officers or the principals thereof which have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another firm or in which a parent company or the principals thereof of one Bidder have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another Bidder for the same project(s). ITB responses found to be collusive shall be rejected.

2.16 BIDDER IN ARREARS OR DEFAULT

The Bidder represents and warrants that the Bidder is not in arrears to the Town and is not a defaulter as a surety or otherwise upon any obligation to the Town. In addition the Bidder warrants that the Bidder has not been declared "not responsible" or "disqualified" by or debarred from doing business with any state or local government entity in the State of Florida, the Federal Government or any other State/local governmental entity in the United States of America, nor is there any proceeding pending pertaining to the Bidder's responsibility or qualification to receive public agreements. The Bidder considers this warrant as stated in this Article to be a continual obligation and shall inform the Town of any change during the term of the Contract.

2.17 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT

In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, (Section 287.133, Florida Statutes) a person or affiliate who is a contractor, who had been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to the Town, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases or real property to the Town, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with the Town in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.917, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Violation of this section by the Contractor shall result in rejection of the Bid, termination of the contract, and may cause Contractor debarment.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 3

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Contractor will promptly perform its duties under the Contract and will give the Work as much priority as is necessary to cause the Work to be completed on a timely basis in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The date and period of time set forth in the Notice to Proceed for the commencement, commencement and completion of the Work was included because of its importance to the Town.

3.2 NOTICES

Whenever either party desires to give written notice to the other relating to the Contract, such must be addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place specified below; and the place for giving the notice shall remain until it shall have been changed by written notice in compliance with the provisions of this Article. Notice shall be deemed given on the date received or within 3 days of mailing, if mailed through the United States Postal Service. Notice shall be deemed given on the date sent via e-mail or facsimile. Notice shall be deemed given via courier/delivery service upon the initial delivery date by the courier/delivery service. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice:

For Town:

Mr. Alex Rey Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes 15150 NW 79th Court Miami Lakes, Florida 33016 reya@miamilakes-fl.gov

Mr. Gary Fabrikant
Procurement Manager
Town of Miami Lakes
15150 NW 79th Court
Miami Lakes, Florida 33016
fabrikantg@miamilakes-fl.gov

For Contractor:

Mr. Charles M. Floyd, President Electrical Contracting Services, Inc. 2375 West 77th Street Hialeah, Florida 33016 (305) 556-0041

escinc@25@aol.com

During the Work the Contractor shall maintain continuing communications with designated Town representative (s). The Contractor shall keep the Town fully informed as to the progress of the Work under the Contract.

3.3 PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS

If there is a conflict or inconsistency between any term, statement requirement, or provision of any exhibit attached hereto, any document or events referred to herein, or any document incorporated into the Contract Documents by reference and a term, statement, requirement, the specifications or any plans, or provision of the Contract Documents the following order of precedence shall apply:

In the event of conflicts in the Contract Documents the priorities stated below shall govern;

- Revisions and Change Orders to the Contract shall govern over the Contract
- The Contract Documents shall govern over the Contract
- The Special Conditions shall govern over the General Conditions of the Contract
- Addendum to an ITB shall govern over a ITB

In the event that Drawings and specifications are provided with a Work Order the priorities stated below shall govern:

- Scope of Work and Specifications shall govern over plans and drawings
- Schedules, when identified as such shall govern over all other portions of the plans
- Specific notes shall govern over all other notes, and all other portions of the plans, unless specifically stated otherwise
- Larger scale drawings shall govern over smaller scale drawings
- Figured or numerical dimensions shall govern over dimensions obtained by scaling
- Where provisions of codes, manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive or higher quality shall govern

3.4 INDEMNIFICATION-

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, agents and employees from and against all liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs at both trial an appellate levels arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work under this Contract, caused by negligence, recklessness, intentional misconduct, or any act or omission of the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Contract or otherwise provided by Contractor shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Town or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as herein provided.

The Contractor agrees and recognizes that the Town shall not be held liable or responsible for any claims which may result from any actions or omissions of the Contractor in which the Town participated either through review or concurrence of the Contractor's actions. In reviewing, approving or rejecting any submissions by the Contractor or other acts of the Contractor, the Town in no way assumes or shares any responsibility or liability of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor, under this Agreement. The Contractor shall defend the Town or provide for such defense at its own expense, at the Town's option.

This indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

The Town has provided specific consideration for the indemnification of \$10.00 from the sums due to the Contractor under this Contract.

3.5 INSURANCE

Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract, insurance of such type and in such amounts necessary to protect its interest and the interest of the Town against hazards or risks of loss as specified below. The underwriter of such insurance shall be qualified to do business in Florida, be rated B as to management and "Class V" as to strength or better as rated by the latest edition of Best's Insurance Guide, published by A.M. Best Company, Oldwick, New Jersey, or its equivalent, The insurance carrier shall have agents upon whom service of process may be made in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute to the Contractor's insurance. The insurance coverages shall include a minimum of:

- a. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance: Coverage to apply for all employees for statutory limits as required by the State of Florida's Statutory Workers' Compensation Law" and all applicable Federal laws. The policy(ies) must include Employer's Liability with minimum limits of \$500,000.00 each accident and a waiver of subrogation.
- b. Comprehensive Automobile and Vehicle Liability Insurance: This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to property of others arising from the Contractor's use of motor vehicles or any other equipment and shall cover operation with respect to onsite and offsite operations and insurance coverage shall extend to any motor vehicles or other equipment irrespective of whether the same is owned, non-owned, or hired. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive that the latest edition

of the Business Automobile Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsement, as filed by the Insurance Services Office.

- c. Commercial General Liability. This insurance shall be written in comprehensive form and shall protect the Contractor and the Town against claims arising from injuries to members of the public or damage to property of others arising out of any act or omission to act of the Contractor or any of its agents, employees, or subcontractors. The limit of liability shall not be less than \$500,000.00 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a primary and non contributory basis and with a coverage form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Commercial General Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include: (1) Premises and/or Operations; (2) Independent contractors and Products and/or completed Operations; (3) Broad Form Property Damage, Personal Injury and a Contractual Liability Endorsement, including any hold harmless and/or indemnification agreement.
- d. Certificate of Insurance: Contractor shall provide the Town Manager or designee with Certificates of Insurance for all required policies within fifteen (15) days of notification of a conditional award by the Town. The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also shall refer specifically to this Contract and shall state that such insurance is as required by this Contract. The Town reserves the right to require the Contractor to provide a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town. Each policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice shall be provided to the Town before any policy or coverage is cancelled, restricted, or a material change is made. Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the Town Manager or designee.
- e. Additional Insured The Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured for the liability of the Town resulting from operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor in performance of this Contract. Contractor's insurance, including that applicable to the Town as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to Contractor's insurance. Contractor's insurance shall contain a severability of interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each.

All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be approved by the Town Manager. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim.

3.6 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The employee(s) of the Contractor shall be considered to be at all times its employee(s), and not employee(s) or agent(s) of the Town or any of its departments.

The Contractor agrees that the Contractor will at all times employ, maintain and assign to the performance of the Work a sufficient number of competent and qualified personnel to meet the requirements of the Work to be performed.

The Contractor agrees to adjust staffing levels or to replace any staff personnel if so requested by the Town Manager or designee, should the Town Manager or designee make a determination that said staffing is unacceptable or that any individual is not performing in a manner consistent with the requirements for such a position.

The Contractor represents that its staff personnel have the proper skills, training, background, knowledge, experience, rights, authorizations, integrity, character and licenses as necessary to perform the Work, in a competent and professional manner.

The Contractor shall at all times cooperate with the Town and coordinate its respective Work efforts to most effectively and efficiently progress the performance of the Work.

The Town and other agencies authorized by the Town, shall have full access to the Project site at all times.

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only best practices are to prevail and only materials and workmanship of the best quality are to be used in the performance of the Work.

3.7 RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to provision of services specified in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be familiar with all federal, state and local laws that affect the Work.

3.8 SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION

The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the nature and location(s) of the Work under the Contract Documents subsequent to receiving a Work Order and prior to commencement of Work on the site, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing upon availability of installation, transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, and all other matters which can in any way affect the Work or the cost thereof under the Contract Documents.

Work site(s) may have existing utilities, such as, but not limited to, irrigation, phone, water and sewer, CATV, traffic signals, electrical, and storm sewer. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to verify the location of all such utilities, structures, etc., by hand excavation or other appropriate measures before performing any Work. The Contractor shall call Sunshine State One Call and other appropriate agencies, as applicable, to determine the locations of existing utilities prior to the commencement of

any Work. The Contractor is responsible for any and all claims resulting from the damage caused to any utilities, identified or not.

Should the Contractor identify any utilities, structures, etc., which will or may be encountered during the performance of the Work, the Town shall be consulted immediately in order for a decision to be made on the potential relocation or other action(s) to be taken as it relates to the work.

Should the Town direct the Contractor to relocate any utilities that would be impacted by any Work then the Town shall compensate the Contractor for such relocation in accordance with the Chang Order provisions of the Contract.

The Contractor shall not purposefully disrupt or disconnect any type of utility whatsoever without first obtaining the prior written approval of the Town or applicable utility owner. Requests for any disconnection, including those required of other utilities must be in writing and received by the Town at least 72 hours prior to the time of the requested interruption. The Town may require that the Contractor notify in writing any property owners to be impacted by service interruptions to their utilities.

Any failure by the Contractor to familiarize itself with any utilities that may impact the performance of the Work shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for properly estimating the difficulty or cost of performing the Work and shall not entitle the Contractor to any additional compensation.

3.9 METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, and interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be made upon that basis.

The Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's requirements for the handling, deliver and storage of all equipment and materials. Contractor shall inspect all equipment and materials immediately prior to installation and shall not install any damaged or defective materials or equipment.

Contractor shall comply with the manufacturer's applicable instructions and recommendations for the performance of the Work, to the extent that these instructions and recommendations are more explicit or more stringent than requirements indicated in the Contract Documents or applicable Work Order.

The Work to be performed shall be done in such a manner so as not to interfere with the normal Town operations of the Project site. The manner in which the Work is performed shall be subject to the approval of the Project Manager, whom if necessary, shall have the authority to require changes in the manner in which the Work is performed. There shall be no obstruction of Town services without the prior written approval of the Project Manager. All requests for such interruption or obstruction must

be given in writing to the Project Manager 24 hours in advance of the interruption of Town operations.

The Contractor shall familiarize itself with normal Town operations where the Work is to be performed so that it can conduct the Work in the best possible manner to the complete satisfaction of the Project Manager.

Depending on the nature of the Work the Project Manager may require a staging plan be submitted to and approved by the Project Manager prior to the start of construction and issuance of the Notice to Proceed (NTP). Such staging plan shall be revised and resubmitted as necessary during construction.

3.10 CONTRACTOR TO CHECK PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND DATA

Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities and details shown on any plans, drawings, or sketches (if provided), specifications or other data received from Project Manager (if any) and shall notify the Project Manager of all errors, omissions and discrepancies found therein within three (3) calendar days of discovery. Contractor will not be allowed to take advantage of any error, omission or discrepancy, as full instructions will be furnished the Project Manager. Contractor shall not be liable for damages resulting from errors, omissions or discrepancies in the Contract Documents unless Contractor recognized such error, omission or discrepancy and knowingly failed to report it to Project Manager.

3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS

Contractor may be required, based on the Scope of Work of a Project, to submit shop drawings, sketches, samples or product data. A Work Order will state if shop drawings or other submittals are required.

Contractor is responsible to timely submit such documents or samples in a timely manner for review by the Project Manager. Shop Drawings that are to be complete in every detail and reflect clearly identify any deviation from what is required by the Contract Documents. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to submit sufficient information to allow the Project Manager to properly evaluate and approve the submittal or shop drawing.

Where professional calculations and/or certification of performance criteria of materials, systems, and or equipment are required, the Project Manager and/or Consultant are entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications submitted by the Contractor. Calculations, when required, shall be submitted in a neat clear and easy format to follow.

Contractor is solely responsible for the accuracy of all shop drawings and submittals and any approval by Project Manager shall in no way relieve the Contractor from said responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents.

3.12 SUBSTITUTIONS

Substitution of any specified material or equipment shall require the prior written acceptance of the Project Manager. It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to provide sufficient information and documentation to the Project Manager to allow for a thorough review and determination on the acceptability of the substitution. Approval of a substitution does not waive or mitigate the Contractor's sole responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents and a Work Order.

3.13 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

In the event that during the course of the Work on a Project the Contractor encounters subsurface or concealed conditions at the Project site which differ materially from those shown in the Contract Documents or Work Order, and from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character called for in the Contract Documents, Contractor, without disturbing the conditions and before performing any Work affected by such conditions, shall, within twenty-four (24) hours of its discovery, notify the Project Manager and/or Consultant in writing of the existence of the aforesaid conditions. Project Manager or the Consultant shall, within two (2) business days after receipt of Contractor's written notice, investigate the site conditions identified by Contractor. If, in the sole opinion of Project Manager or the Consultant, the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work, whether or not charged as a result of the conditions, Project Manager or Consultant shall recommend an equitable adjustment to cost of the Work or the time to complete the Work, or both. If the Project Manager and Contractor cannot agree on an adjustment in the Contract Price and/or Contract Time, the adjustment shall be referred to the Town's Procurement Manager for determination. Should the Town's Procurement Manager determine that the conditions of the Project site are not so materially different to justify a change in the terms of the Contract Documents, the Director shall so notify the Project Manager, Consultant, and Contractor in writing, stating the reasons, and such determination shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto.

No request by Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the Contract Documents under this provision shall be allowed unless Contractor has given written notice in strict accordance with the provisions of this Article. No request for an equitable adjustment or change to the Contract Price or Contract Time for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after the date certified by Consultant or Project Manager as the date of substantial completion.

3.14 PROTECTION OF PROPERTY, UTILITIES, AND THE PUBLIC

The Contractor shall continuously maintain adequate protection of all its Work from damage and shall protect public and private property, and utilities from injury or loss arising in connection with the Work, and take all necessary precautions to prevent accidents, injuries, or damage to persons or property on or near the Work.

The Contractor shall be completely responsible for, and shall replace and make good all loss, injury, or damage to any property (including landscaping, irrigation, walks, drives, structures or utilities.

3.15 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

Any Work performed in the public right-of-way shall require the prior approval of the appropriate public agencies. These public agencies include, but are not limited to, the Town, Miami-Dade County Public Works Department, and FDOT. Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for Work performed in the public right-of-way, except for the cost of any required use of police officers, which reimbursement is addressed in Article 4.8.

Prior to commencing any Work the Contractor must install warning signs and any other warning and safety devices advising motorist and pedestrians of Work being performed. All signs shall be temporary and shall be removed at the end of the day or at the end of the completion of the Work, whichever is shorter.

The following guidelines must be followed during each maintenance operation:

1. When no lanes are blocked:

- a. All Contractor vehicles must have beacons and flashes on.
- b. "MEN WORKING" signs must be set up before starting operations.
 - On two lane roads: one (1) sign must be posted at each end of site, for each direction of travel (total of two (2) signs).
 - On four lane roads two (2) signs at each end of site (one on median and one on shoulder) for each direction of travel (total of four (4) signs.
 - Orange safety cones shall be set at edges of travel lanes in the immediate area of work.
- c. Vehicles shall be parked next to median at the transition area of left turn lanes. Orange traffic cones must be placed from the start of transition of the left turn lane to the front of vehicle at fifteen feet (15') intervals.

2. When a lane is to be blocked:

- a. No traffic lane shall be blocked for any period between the hours of 7:00 to 10:00 AM and 3:30 to 7:00 PM.
- b. No traffic lanes may be blocked for a period longer than fifteen (15) minutes, unless a Maintenance of Traffic (M.O.T.) Plan has been approved at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
- c. A traffic lane may be blocked for up to fifteen (15) minutes, if absolutely necessary. However, the following M.O.T. must be followed:
 - Flagmen shall be posted at the edge of the travel lane at least five hundred (500) feet prior to start of transition.

 There shall be a minimum of two hundred (200) feet transition with traffic cones, prior to lane closure. It is recommended that vehicle-blocking lane have a flashing arrow board.

Failure by the Contractor to comply with the Maintenance of Traffic requirements will result in the Town issuing a stop work order until corrective action is taken. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional time resulting in any delays due to issuance of a stop work order.

3.16 COORDINATION OF THE WORK

Prior to the commencement of the Work the Project Manager will make every effort, based on available information, to notify the Contractor of any ongoing project(s) or project(s) scheduled to commence during the Work on a Project that may require coordination. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for coordinating the Work with any other project(s) to minimize any potential adverse impact. Contractor shall not be entitled to any days of delay for failure to properly coordinate the Work. The Consultant and the Project Manager may assist the Contractor in coordinating the Work. However, any such assistance, or lack thereof shall form the basis for any claim for delay or increased cost.

If any part of Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any other persons, Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to Project Manager any defects in such work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other person's work as fit and proper for the reception of Contractor's Work, except as to defects which may develop in other contractor's work after the execution of Contractor's Work.

Contractor shall conduct its operations and take all reasonable steps to coordinate the prosecution of the Work so as to create no interference or impact on any other contractor on the site. Should such interference or impact occur, Contractor shall be liable to the affected contractor for the cost of such interference or impact.

To ensure the proper execution of subsequent Work, Contractor shall inspect the Work already in place and shall at once report to Project Manager and Consultant any discrepancy between the executed Work and the requirements of the Contract Documents.

3.17. ACCESS TO THE PROJECT SITE(S)

Town shall provide, as may be indicated in the Contract Documents or Work Order, the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and such other lands as are designated by Town for the use of Contractor.

Contractor shall provide, at Contractor's own expense and without liability to Town, any additional land and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities, or for storage of materials. Contractor shall furnish to the Town copies of written permission obtained by Contractor from the owners of such facilities.

3.18 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES AND ACCIDENTS

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town Manager or designee, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

Contractor shall accept full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town, and shall promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

3.19 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees in the performance of the Work on, about or adjacent to the premises, and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State, and local laws, including, but not limited to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, and amendments thereto, to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the Work is being performed.

The Contractor shall comply with the OSHA "Federal Right to Know' Regulation regarding informing employees of toxic substances in the workplace, providing training, and emergency procedures.

Contractor must adhere to applicable environmental protection guidelines for the duration of the Work. The Contractor shall comply with all codes, ordinances, rules, orders and other legal requirements of public authorities (including OSHA, EPA, DERM, the Town, Miami-Dade County, State of Florida), which bear on the performance of the Work

The Contractor shall provide such equipment and facilities as are necessary or required, in the case of accidents, for first aid service to person who may be injured during the Project(s) duration.

3.20 LABOR AND MATERIALS

Unless otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, water, tools, equipment, light, power, transportation and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work. All materials shall be new unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

3.21 <u>VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT</u>

Contractor shall have on hand at all times clean and in good working order such vehicles, machinery, tools, accessories, and other items necessary to perform the Work under this Contract. The Town may require the repair or replacement of equipment as reasonably necessary.

3.22 SUPERVISION OF THE WORK

Contractor shall have competent English speaking supervisor who shall represent Contractor and all directions given to the supervisor shall be as binding as if given to Contractor. Contractor will provide properly licensed personnel where such personnel are required by any rule, regulations, or law. Contractor shall give efficient supervision to the Work, using its best skill and attention.

3.23 SUBCONTRACTORS

Subcontracting of Work is not permitted under this Contract

3.24 AUTHORITY OF THE PROJECT MANAGER

The Town Manager hereby authorizes the Project Manager designated in the Work Order to determine, all questions of any nature whatsoever arising out of, under or in connection with, or in any way relating to or on account of the Work, and questions as to the interpretation of the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall be bound by all determinations or orders of the Project Manager and shall promptly respond to requests of the Project Manager, including the withdrawal or modification of any previous order, and regardless of whether the Contractor agrees with the Project Manager's determination or requests. Where requests are made orally, the Project Manage will follow up in writing, as soon thereafter as is practicable.

The Project Manager shall have authority to act on behalf of the Town to the extent provided by the Contract, unless otherwise modified in writing by the Town. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued in writing. All instructions to the Contractor shall be issued through the Town Manager or the Project Manager.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, and will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

All interpretations and recommendations of the Project Manager shall be consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.

3.25 TOWN LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES

In accordance with the Public Bid Disclosure Act, 218.80, Florida Statutes, each license, permit, or fee the Contractor will have to pay the Town before or during the Work or the percentage method or unit method of all licenses, permits and fees required by the Town and payable to the Town by virtue of the Work as part of the Contract are as follows:

- Contractor shall have and maintain during the term of this Contract all appropriate Town licenses. Fees for which shall be paid in full in accordance with the Town's Fee structure for such licenses. THERE WILL NOT BE ANY PERCENTAGE REDUCTION OR WAIVING OF TOWN LICENSE FEES.
- 2) During the performance of this Contract there may be times when the Contractor will be required to obtain a Town permit for such Work. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to insure that he has the appropriate Town permits to perform such work as may become necessary during the performance of the Work. Any fees related to Town required permits in connection with this Contract will be the responsibility of the Contractor and will be reimbursed by the Town.

Licenses, permits, and fees that may be required by County, State or Federal entities are not included in the above list.

3.26 TAXES

Contractor shall pay all applicable sales, consumer, use and other taxes required by law. Contractor is responsible for reviewing the pertinent state statutes involving state taxes and complying with all requirements.

3.27 REMOVAL OF UNSATISFACTORY PERSONNEL

The Town may make written request to the Contractor for the prompt removal and replacement of any personnel employed or retained by the Contractor, or any or Subcontractor engaged by the Contractor to provide and perform services or Work pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall respond to the Town within five (5) calendar days of receipt of such request with either the removal and replacement of such personnel or written justification as to why that may not occur. The Town shall make the final determination as to the removal of unsatisfactory personnel from the Work. The Contractor agrees that the removal of any of such individual(s) does not require the termination or demotion of said individual(s).

3.28 INSPECTION OF THE WORK

The Town Manager or designee, other Town representatives, and inspectors representing the Town and other public entities having jurisdiction over the Work shall at all times have access to the Work

Inspectors shall have no authority to permit deviations from, or to relax any of the provisions of the Contract Documents or to delay the Work by failure to inspect the materials and Work with reasonable promptness without the written permission or instruction of Project Manager.

3.29 DEFECTIVE OR NON-COMPLIANT WORK

The Town Manager and Project Manager shall have the authority to reject or disapprove Work that is found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of the Contract. If required Contractor shall promptly either correct all defective or non-compliant Work or remove such defective Work and replace it with non-defective/non-

compliant Work. Contractor shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal or corrections.

Re-examination of any of the Work may be ordered by the Project Manager, and if so ordered, the Work must be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town shall pay the cost of reexamination and replacement by means of a Change Order. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall pay such cost.

Should Contractor fail or refuse to remove or correct any defective or non-compliant Work or to make any necessary repairs in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents within the time indicated in writing by the Town Manager of designee, the Town Manager or designee shall have the authority to cause the defective/non-compliant Work to be removed or corrected, or make such repairs or corrections as may be necessary at Contractor's expense. Any expense incurred by the Town in making such removals, corrections or repairs, shall be paid for out of any monies due or which may become due to Contractor. In the event of failure of Contractor to make all necessary repairs promptly and fully, the Town Manager or designee may declare the Contractor in default.

If, within the warranty period required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract, any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor, after receipt of written notice from Town, shall promptly correct such defective or nonconforming Work within the time specified by Town without cost to Town. Should the Contractor fail to take such action the Town may take any necessary and appropriate action and hold the Contractor liable and responsible for all costs. The Town may take any action allowed under this Contract or in law to recover all such costs. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which Contractor might have under the Contract Documents including but not limited to any claim regarding latent defects.

Failure to reject any defective Work or material shall not in any way prevent later rejection when such defect is discovered, or obligate Town to accept.

3.30 CHANGE ORDERS

The Town reserves the right to order changes which may result in additions to or reductions from the amount, type or value of the Work shown in the Contract and which are within the general scope of the Contract Documents and all such changes shall be authorized only by a Change Order approved in advance, and issued in accordance with provisions of the Town.

Any changes to the Contract must be contained in a written document, executed by the both parties. However, under circumstances determined necessary by Town, Change Orders may be issued unilaterally by Town.

In the event satisfactory adjustment cannot be reached and a Change Order has not been issued, the Town reserves the right, at its sole option to direct the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis or make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the proposed additional Work.

Where the Town directs the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis, Contractor shall maintain detailed records of all labor and material costs for review of the Town. In addition, the Contractor shall be entitled a combined profit and overhead rate that shall not be in excess of ten (10%) percent of the direct labor and material costs, unless the Procurement Manager determines that the complexity and risk of the Change Order Work is such that an additional factor is appropriate. The final amount to be paid to the Contract for Change Order Work shall be subject to negotiation between the Town and the Contractor.

Failure by the Contractor to proceed with Change Order Work when so directed by the Town Manager or designee may result in the Contractor being found in default of the Contract.

3.31 FORCE MAJEURE

Should any failure to perform on the part of Contractor be due to a condition of force majeure as that term is interpreted under Florida law, then, the Town may allow an extension of time reasonably commensurate with the cause of such failure to perform or cure.

If the Contractor is delayed in performing any obligation under the Contract Documents due to a force majeure condition, the Contractor shall request a time extension from the Town within two (2) working days of said force majeure occurrence. Any time extension shall be subject to mutual agreement and shall not be cause for any claim by the Contractor for extra compensation unless additional services are required. **Do Not Include** inclement weather except as permitted by Florida law and may not include the acts or omissions of Subcontractors.

3.32 EXTENSION OF TIME

Any reference in this section to the Contractor shall be deemed to include suppliers, and permitted Subcontractors, whether or not in privities of contract with the Contractor for the purpose of this article.

If the Contractor is delayed at any time during the progress of the Work beyond the Contract Time and/or Notice to Proceed (NTP) by the neglect or failure of the Town or by a Force Majeure, then the Contract Time set forth in the Contract shall be extended by the Town subject to the following conditions:

- The cause of the delay arises after issuance of the NTP and could not have been anticipated by the Contractor by reasonable investigation before proceeding with the Work;
- The Contractor demonstrates that the completion of the Work will be actually and necessarily delayed;

 The effect of such cause cannot be avoided or mitigated by the exercise of all reasonable precautions, efforts and measures whether before or after the occurrence of the cause of delay.

Note: A delay meeting all the conditions of the above, shall be deemed an Excusable Delay.

The Town reserves the right to rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if subsequently, the Project Manager determines that any information provided by the Contractor in support of a request for an extension of time was erroneous; provided however, that such information or facts, if known, would have resulted in a denial of the request for an Excusable Delay. Notwithstanding the above, the Project Manager will not rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if the Contractor acted in reliance upon the granting of such extension and such extension was based on information which, although later found to have been erroneous, was submitted in good faith by the Contractor.

The request for an Excusable Delay shall be made within five (5) calendar days after the time when the Contractor knows or should have known of any cause for which it may claim an extension of time and shall provide any actual or potential basis for an extension of time, identifying such causes and describing, as fully as practicable at that time, the nature and expected duration of the delay and its effect on the completion of that part of the Work identified in the request. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to furnish such additional information or documentation, as the Project Manager shall reasonably deem necessary or helpful in considering the requested extension.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time unless the Contractor affirmatively demonstrates that it is entitled to such extension.

The Project Manager shall endeavor to review and respond to the Contractor's request for Excusable Delays in a reasonable period of time; however, the Contractor shall be obligated to continue to perform the Work required regardless of whether the Project Manager has issued a decision or whether the Contractor agrees or disagrees with that decision.

With regard to an injunction, strike or interference of public origin which may delay the Project, the Contractor shall promptly give the Project Manager a copy of the injunction or other orders and copies of the papers upon which the same shall have been granted. The Town shall be afforded the right to intervene and become a party to any suit or proceeding in which any such injunction shall be obtained and move to dissolve the same or otherwise, as the Town may deem proper.

The permitting of the Contractor to proceed with the Work subsequent to the date specified in the Contract (as such date may have been extended by a change order), the making of any payment to the Contractor, the issuance of any Change Order, shall not waiver the Town's rights under the Contract, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidated damages or declaring Contractor in default.

3.33 EXCUSABLE DELAY, NON-COMPENSABLE

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers and vendors, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its subcontractors, suppliers or vendors and by the Town. Then Contractor shall be entitled only to a time extension and no compensation for the delay.

Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor shall document its claim for any time extension as provided in the Contract.

Failure of Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Contract, as to any particular event of delay shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver, abandonment or relinquishment of any and all claims resulting from that particular event of delay.

3.34 CLAIMS

Any claim for a change in the Contract time for completion of any Work, the Contract Term, or Contract price shall be made by written notice by Contractor to the Town Manager or designee and to within ten (10) business days of the commencement of the event giving rise to the claim and stating the general nature and cause of the claim. Thereafter, within twenty (20) calendar days of the termination of the event giving rise to the claim, written notice of the extent of the claim with supporting information and documentation shall be provided unless the Town Manager or designee allows an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. The written notice must be accompanied by Contractor's written notarized statement that the adjustment(s) claimed is the entire adjustment to which the Contractor has reason to believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. All claims and disputes shall be determined in accordance with the Contract. It is expressly and specifically agreed that any and all claims for changes to to the Contract shall be waived if not submitted in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

The Contract time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost on critical Work items due to delays beyond the control of and through no fault or negligence of Contractor if a claim is made as provided in this Article. Such delays shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by own, fires, floods, labor disputes beyond the control of the Contractor, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions (if applicable), or acts of God.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from the Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by

Contractor for actual delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active interference on the part of Town. Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract time for completion of the Work, as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting excusable delay.

The Contractor agrees to make no claim for damages for delay of any kind in the performance of the Contract Documents whether occasioned by any act or omission of the Town or any of its representatives and the Contractor agrees that any such claim shall be compensated solely by an extension of time to complete performance of the Work due to an excusable delay as defined in this Article. The Contractor alone specifically assumes the risk of such delays, including without limitation: delays in processing or approving any submittals to the Town, or the failure to render determinations, approvals, replies, inspections, in a timely manner. Contractor shall not receive monetary compensation for Town delay(s).

Excusable Delay is (i) caused by circumstances beyond the control of Contractor, its Subcontractors, suppliers, and is also caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Town, or (ii) is caused jointly or concurrently by Contractor or its Subcontractors, suppliers and by the Town. Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor must document its claim for any time extension as provided herein.

Failure of Contractor to comply with this Article as to any particular event of claim shall be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver of any and all claims resulting from that particular event.

3.35 DISPUTES AND MEDIATION

Contractor understands and agrees that all disputes between it and the Town upon an alleged violation of the terms of this Contract by the Town shall be submitted for resolution in the following manner.

Initial effort(s) should be made by the Contractor to resolve any issues with the Town representative(s) it works within in the coordination and performance of the Work.

Should the initial efforts at resolution not end in a mutual resolution then the Contractor notify in writing the Procurement Manager identified in Article 3.2, Notices, of the claim or dispute

The Contractor shall submit its dispute in writing, with all supporting documentation, to the Procurement Manager, as identified in Article 3.2, Notices. Upon receipt of said notification the Procurement Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Should the Contractor and the Procurement Manager fail to resolve the claim or dispute the Contractor shall submit their dispute in writing within five (5) calendar days of the written finding being issued by the Procurement Manager to the Town Manager. Failure to submit such appeal in the stated timeframe of the written finding shall constitute acceptance of the finding by the Contractor. Upon receipt of said notification

the Town Manager shall review the issues relative to the claim or dispute and issue a written finding.

Appeal to the Town Manager for his/her resolution, is required prior to Contractor being entitled to seek judicial relief in connection therewith. Should the Contractor be entitled to compensation hereunder, the Town Manager's decision may be subject to approval by the Town Council. Contractor shall not be entitled to seek judicial relief unless:

- (i) it has first received Town Manager's written decision, approved by the Town Council if applicable, or
- (ii) a period of sixty (60) days has expired after submitting to the Town Manager a detailed statement of the dispute, accompanied by all supporting documentation, or a period of (90) days has expired where Town Manager's decision is subject to Town Council for approval; or
- (iii) Town has waived compliance with the procedure set forth in this Article by written instrument(s) signed by the Town Manager.

In the event the determination of a dispute under this Article is unacceptable to either party hereto, the party objecting to the determination must notify the other party in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the written determination. The notice must state the basis of the objection and must be accompanied by a statement that any Contract price or Contract time adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the objecting party has reason to believe it is entitled to as a result of the determination. Within sixty (60) calendar days after completion of the Work or expiration of the Contract Term, the parties shall participate in mediation to address all objections to any determinations hereunder and to attempt to prevent litigation. A certified Mediator, who the parties find mutually acceptable, will conduct any mediation proceedings in Miami-Dade County, State of Florida. The costs of a certified Mediator shall be shared on a 50/50 basis. Should claim or dispute not be resolved in mediation. the parties retain all their legal rights and remedies provided under State law. A party objecting to a determination specifically waives all of its rights provided hereunder, including its rights and remedies under State law, if said party fails to comply in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

3.36 CONTINUING THE WORK

Contractor shall continue to perform all Work under the Contract Documents during all disputes or disagreements with Town, including disputes or disagreements concerning a request for a Change Order and no Work shall not be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements.

3.37 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

The Town may terminate this Contract or any other contracts with the Town with any person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate that attempts to meet its contractual obligations with the Town through fraud, misrepresentation or material misstatement. Such person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate shall be responsible for all direct or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation.

3.38 STOP WORK ORDER

The Town may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop all, or any part, of the Work for a period of up to ninety (90) days (or any lesser period), commencing no sooner than the date the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree. Any such order shall be specifically identified as a "Stop Work Order" issued pursuant to this paragraph. Within the period of ninety (90) days (or the lesser period specified) after a Stop Work Order is delivered to the Contractor, or within any extension to which the parties have agreed the Town shall either:

- Cancel the Stop Work Order; or
- Terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in Article 3.34, Termination for Convenience.

If a Stop Work Order issued under this Article is canceled or the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the Contractor shall resume the Work without compensation to the Contractor for such suspension other than extending the time to complete any Work under the Contract or extending the Contract Term to the extent that, in the opinion of the Town Manager or designee, the Contractor may have been delayed by such suspension. In the event the Town Manger or designee determines that the suspension of Work was necessary due to Contractor's defective or incorrect Work, unsafe Work conditions caused by the Contractor, or any other reason caused by Contractor's fault or omission, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time or Contract Term or (Time) as a result of the issuance of a Stop Work Order.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.39 HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS

During such periods of time as are designated by the United States Weather Bureau as being a hurricane warning, the Contractor, at no cost to the Town, shall take all precautions necessary to secure any Work in response to all threatened storm events, regardless of whether the Contractor has given notice of same.

Compliance with any specific hurricane warning or alert precautions will not constitute additional work.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, excusable delay, and shall not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

3.40 CLEANING UP; TOWN'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

Contractor shall at all times keep the Work site(s) free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by its operations. At the completion of a Work at a work

site(s), Contractor shall remove all its waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project(s) as well as any tools, equipment, machinery and surplus materials or supplies. If Contractor fails to clean up during the performance of the Work or at the completion of the Work, Town may do so and the cost incurred shall be charged to Contractor. Any combustible waste materials must be removed from the work site(s) at the end of each day.

Should the Contractor leave any open trenches at any time that Work is not being performed the Town may have the open trenches covered and deduct any cost incurred from any outstanding payments due or to become due to the Contractor. The Town may also invoice the Contractor for the incurred costs.

3.41 SET-OFFS, WITHHOLDING, AND DEDUCTIONS

The Town may set-off, deduct or withhold from any payment due the Contractor, such sums as may be specifically allowed in the Contract or by applicable law including, without limitation, the following:

- Any amount of any claim by a third party;
- Any Liquidated Damages, and/or;
- Any unpaid legally enforceable debt owed by the Contractor to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor in writing of any such withholdings.

Any withholding, which is ultimately held to have been wrongful, shall be paid to the Contractor in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act

3.42 CONTRACTOR DEFAULT

a. Event of Default

An event of default shall mean a breach of the Contract by the Contractor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in addition to those instances referred to herein as a breach, an Event of Default, shall include but not limited to, the following:

- The Contractor has not performed the Work in a timely manner;
- The Contractor has refused or failed to supply properly skilled staff or provided sufficient quantities of staff to perform the Work;
- The Contractor has failed to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or suppliers for any services or materials, or supplies they have provided;
- The Contractor has become insolvent or has assigned the proceeds received for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors, or the Contractor has taken advantage of any insolvency statute or debtor/creditor law or if the Contractor's affairs have been put in the hands of a receiver;
- The Contractor has failed to obtain the approval of the Town where required by the Contract Documents;
- The Contractor has failed in the representation of any warranties stated herein;

 When, in the opinion of the Town, reasonable grounds for uncertainty exist with respect to the Contractor's ability to perform the Work.

b. Notice of Default-Opportunity to Cure

Where an Event of Default ("Default") occur under the Contract, the Town may at its sole discretion notify the Contractor, specifying the basis for such Default, and advising the Contractor that such Default must be cured within a time frame specified by the Town or the Contract with the Town may be terminated. The Town is under no obligation to issue such notification. The Town may grant an extension to the cure period if the Town deems it appropriate and in the best interest of the Town, without waiver of any of the Town's rights hereunder. The Town, at its sole discretion, may have a default corrected by its own forces or another contractor and any such costs incurred will be deducted from any sums due the Contractor under any contract with the Town.

The Town Manager or designee may also suspend any payment or part thereof or order a Work stoppage until such time as the issues concerning compliance are resolved.

c. Termination for Default

Where a Default is not cured within the time specified to cure the Default, the Town Manager in addition to all remedies available by law, may immediately, upon written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract. Contractor understands and agrees that termination of this Contract under this Article shall not release Contractor from any obligation accruing prior to the effective date of termination.

In the event of termination by the Town Manager or designee, the Town Manager or designee may immediately take possession of all applicable documentation and data, material, equipment, and supplies to which it is entitled to under the Contract or by law.

Where the Town erroneously terminates the Contract for default, the terminations shall be converted to a Termination for Convenience, and the Contractor shall have no further recourse of any nature for wrongful termination.

3.43 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

In addition to cancellation or termination as otherwise provided for in the Contract, the Town may at any time, in its sole discretion, with or without cause, terminate the Contract by written notice to the Contractor. Such Written Notice shall state the date upon which Contractor shall cease all Work under the Contract, and if applicable vacate the Project(s) site(s).

The Contractor shall, upon receipt of such notice, unless otherwise directed by the Town:

Stop all Work on the date specified in the notice ("the Effective Date");

- Take such action as may be necessary for the protection and preservation of the Town's materials and property;
- Cancel all cancelable orders for materials and equipment; and assign to the Town and deliver to the Town, at a site(s) specified by the Town, any noncancelable orders for materials and equipment that can not otherwise be used by the Contactor on other work;
- Take no action that shall increase the amounts payable by the Town under the Contract Documents; and take reasonable measures to mitigate the Town's liability under the Contract Documents; and
- All documents, including electronic documents, related to Work authorized under the Contract, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Town.
 Failure to timely deliver the documentation shall be cause to withhold any payments due without recourse by Contractor until all documentation is delivered to the Town.

In the event that the Town exercises its right to terminate the Contract pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Town will pay the Contractor:

- For the actual cost or the fair and reasonable value, whichever of any noncancelable material(s) and equipment than cannot be used elsewhere by the Contractor in the performance of its work.
- In no event, shall any payments under this Paragraph exceed the maximum cost set forth in the Contract and the amount due hereunder may be offset by payments made to the Contractor or any claims made against the Contractor.
- Contractor shall not be entitled to lost profits, overhead or consequential damages as a result of a Termination for Convenience.

3.44 TOWN MAY AVAIL ITSELF OF ALL REMEDIES

The Town may avail itself of each and every remedy stated in the Contract Documents or existing at law or in equity. The exercise or the beginning of the exercise, of one remedy shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to exercise, at the same time or thereafter, of any other remedy.

3.45 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Contractor shall comply with the most recent editions and requirements of all applicable laws, rule, regulations, codes, and ordinances of the Federal government, the State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and the Town.

3.46 NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate against any person, shall provide equal opportunities for employment, and comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act in its performance of the Work under the Contact. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules regulations, laws, and ordinance as applicable.

3.47. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The Contractor is engaged as an independent business and agrees to perform Work as an independent contractor. In accordance with the status of an independent contractor, the Contractor covenants and agrees that the Contractor will conduct business in a manner consistent with that status, that the Contractor will not claim to be an officer or employee of the Town for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the Town, including, but not limited to: worker's compensation coverage; unemployment insurance benefits; social security coverage; retirement membership, or credit.

3.48. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Neither Contractor nor Town intends to directly or substantially benefit a third party by this Contract. Therefore, the parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract and that no third party shall be entitled to assert a claim against either of them based upon this Contract.

3.49 ASSIGNMENT OR SALE OF CONTRACT

The performance of this Contract shall not be transferred pledged, sold, delegated or assigned, in whole or in part, by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the Town. It is understood that a sale of the majority of the stock or partnership shares of the Contractor, a merger or bulk sale, an assignment for the benefit of creditors shall each be deemed transactions that would constitute an assignment or sale hereunder. The Town may request any information it deems necessary to review any request for assignment or sale of the Contract.

Any transference without Town approval shall be cause for the Town to terminate this Contract for default and the Contractor shall have no recourse from such termination.

Nothing herein shall either restrict the right of the Contractor to assign monies due to, or to become due or be construed to hinder, prevent or affect any assignment by the Contractor for the benefit of its creditors, made pursuant to applicable law.

3.50 MATERIALITY AND WAIVER OF BREACH

Town and Contractor agree that each requirement, duty, and obligation set forth in the Contract Documents is substantial and important to the formation of the Contract Documents and, therefore, is a material term hereof. The Town's failure to enforce any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of such provision or modification of the Contract Documents. A waiver of any breach of a provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Contract Documents.

3.51 DEFENSE OF CLAIMS

Should any claim be made or any legal action brought in any way relating to the Work under the Contract, the Contractor shall diligently render to the Town any and all assistance which the Town may require of the Contractor.

3.52 FUNDS AVAILABILITY

Funding for this Contract is contingent on the availability of funds and the Contract is subject to amendment or termination due to lack of funds, reduction of funds and/or change in regulations, upon thirty (30) days notice.

3.53 ACCESS TO AND REVIEW OF RECORDS

Town shall have the right to inspect and copy, at Town's expense, the books and records and accounts of Contractor which relate in any way to the Contract. The Contractor agrees to maintain an accounting system that provides for accounting records that are supported with adequate documentation and adequate procedures for determining allowable costs.

The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Town shall have the right to immediately terminate this Contract for the refusal by the Contractor to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall retain all records associated with this Contract for a period of five (5) years from the date of termination.

3.54 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

All fees, royalties, and claims for any invention, or pretended inventions, or patent of any article, material, arrangement, appliance, or method that may be used upon or in any manner be connected with the construction of the Work or appurtenances, are hereby included in the prices stipulated in the Contract for said Work.

3.55 TIME IN WHICH TO BRING ACTION AGAINST THE TOWN

In the event the Contractor may be deemed to have a cause of action against the Town, no action shall lie or be maintained by the Contractor against the Town upon any claim arising out of or based upon the Contract Documents by reason of any act or omission or requirement of the Town or its agents, unless such action shall be commenced within six (6) months after the date of issuance of a final payment under the Contract, or if the Contract is terminated under the provisions of the Contract unless such action is commenced within six (6) months after the date of such termination by the Town.

3.56 CONTRACT EXTENSION

The Town reserves the right to exercise its option to extend the Contract for up to ninety (90) calendar days beyond the original Contract period, inclusive of any Options to Renew exercised by the Town. In such event, the Town will notify the Contractor in writing of such extensions.

3.57 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE OF LITIGATION

This Contract shall be enforceable in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and if legal action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or conditions the sole venue shall be Miami-Dade County, Florida.

3.58 NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

It is the intent of the Town to enter into a Contract with all successful Bidder(s) that will satisfy its needs as described herein. However, the Town reserves the right, as deemed in its best interest, to perform, or cause to be performed, the Work and services, or any portion thereof, as it sees fit, including but not limited to: award of other contracts, use of another contractor, or perform the Work with its own employees.

3.59 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of the Contract Documents is determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then such unenforceable or unlawful provision shall be excised from this Contract, and the remainder of the Contract Documents shall continue in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the result of the deletion of such provision will materially and adversely affect the rights of either party, such party may elect, at its option, to terminate the Contract in its entirety. An election to terminate the Contract based upon this provision shall be made within seven (7) calendar days after the finding by the court becomes final.

3.60 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTAINS ALL TERMS

The Contract Documents and all documents incorporated herein by reference contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of the Contract Documents shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto, or to vary any of the terms contained herein.

3.61 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract Documents, as they may be amended from time to time, represent the entire and integrated Contract between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral. This Contract may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered in any respect, at any time after the execution hereof, except by a written document executed with the same formality and equal dignity herewith. Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 4

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 SCOPE OF WORK

The Work consists of furnishing all labor, materials, machinery, tools, means of transportation, supplies, equipment, and services on an as needed basis necessary for the repair, replacement, maintenance or installation of all electrical service, equipment, and components for the Town buildings, parks, and roadways. Compressors and generators are required equipment and the Town will not pay a rental cost for such equipment. This work may include high and low voltage equipment such as, but is not limited to street lights, decorative landscape lighting, roadway sign lighting, breakers, various types of lighting, welcome signs, breakers, panel boards, photocells, contactors, transformers, outlets, switches, and other similar work. Maintenance includes in addition to parts replacement, miscellaneous paint touch up and pole ID number stickers. In addition, the contractor will be responsible to occasionally remove small branches/ shrubs that may be blocking the street lights.

4.2 CONTRACT TERM/ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE

This Contract shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue for a term of three (3) years from the date of execution by the Town or until the Contract value has been expended. No Work shall commence until a written Notice to Proceed is issued.

4.3 OPTION(S) TO RENEW

Prior to or upon completion of the initial term of the Contract or the expenditure of available dollar capacity under the Contract the Town, at its sole discretion, shall have an option to renew this Contract upon the same terms and conditions for two (2) additional one (1) year extensions (the "Option"). The Town may at its sole discretion, exercise the Option to renew when the total value of the Contract for the initial term or Option year has been fully expended. Any Option shall be effective upon receipt of a written notice from the Town Manager to the Contractor. The Town may, at its sole discretion allow for price increases during the Option years due to extraordinary changes in market conditions and pricing.

4.4 HOURS FOR PERFORMING WORK

All Work shall be performed in accordance with the hours set forth in the Town's noise Ordinance No. 04-50 unless otherwise specified in a Work Order.

Any Work to be performed outside these hours will require the prior written approval of the Town Manager. A Work Order may establish different working hours than those stated herein.

4.5 RESPONSE TIME

Contractors shall respond to request for Work based on the requirements established in Article 4.9, Award of Projects. Contractor must provide and keep current the name(s) and telephone number(s) of the Contractor's staff who can be reached twenty-four hours, seven (7) days a week for Emergency Service.

The maximum timeframe for response shall be as stated below except where the Project Manager determines that a Project requires a shorter timeframe for response.

Emergency Service	2 hours from NTP	
Critical Service	1 day from NTP	
Routine Service	3 days from NTP	

4.6 COMPENSATION

All Work will be issued based on a time and materials basis and the Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. The Price Proposal submitted by the Contractor shall establish the maximum not to exceed cost for the Work to be performed under a Work Order.

Normal working hours for purposes of compensation will be from 8:00 am until 5:00 pm, Monday through Saturday. Overtime rates shall apply to any work performed outside of these hours or on Sunday. The maximum overtime rate the Contractor may charge is 1.5 times the regular hourly rate. No overtime rates are permitted on equipment.

Contractor shall provide the Town with one invoice within thirty (30) days of the date services were rendered. At a minimum the invoice must contain the following information: Multiple invoices will not be accepted and the Town will not make payment based on statements of accounts.

- Name and address of the Contractor
- Contract number
- Date of invoice
- Invoice number (Invoice numbers cannot be repeated)
- Description of Work performed or installed, including location(s) where the Work was performed
- Hours and cost by trade classification
- Cost of materials
- Extended prices
- Total value of the invoice
- Copies of receipts for all materials purchased for the Work

Failure to include the above information will delay payment. Payments will not be made based on statements of accounts.

The Town will take action to pay, reject or make partial payment on an invoice in accordance with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act. No payments shall be due or payable for Work not performed or materials not furnished or where the Work has not been accepted by the Town. If there is a dispute with regard to an invoice, the Town will pay the amount not in dispute and reject the remainder that is in dispute.

The Contractor shall be compensated based on the hourly rates and mark-up on materials specified in the Proposal/Bid Form of the Contract.

4.7 ESTIMATED HOURS

The hours per trade classification stated on the Bid Form are solely estimates of what the Town anticipated its need to be for the initial term of the Contract. The stated hours do not reflect the actual hours that the Town will actually require and the Town has not established any minimum quantities and no guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to the Contractor. The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make adjustment to the required number of hours. The failure of the Town to order any minimum hours per trade classification shall not form any basis for a claim by the Contractor for lost work or profits.

4.8 LINE ITEM PRICING

Line item pricing shall include all costs, both direct and indirect to perform the Work, except for any costs specifically identified as reimbursable costs under the Contract..

The Bid Form contains line item prices and the Bidder is required to Bid on all lime items. Should a Bidder fail to provide a line item price the Bid will rejected as non-responsive.

Should a Bidder include a line item price that the Town determines is not a fair and unreasonable price the Town, in its sole discretion, may determine that the Bid is an unbalanced Bid and reject the Bid as non-responsive. These types of prices include prices that are too low a price at which to perform the Work or too high a price based on market conditions.

4.9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Certain Project expenses may, or will not be know at the time of award of a Project. The Town shall reimburse the Contractor for such costs, which includes:

- Permits
- Police Officer costs when not provided by the Town

Where a permit or the Town requires the Contractor to use a police officer(s) during the performance of the Work the Town will make every effort to furnish police officers at no cost to the Contractor. Where the Town is not able to provide the required police officers the Town will reimburse the Contractor based on the actual cost to the Contractor and the cost is not include in the unit price per item. To be reimbursed the Contractor must submit a copy of documentation substantiating both the cost as well as proof of payment.

4.10 AWARD OF PROJECTS

Should more than one award be made under this ITB the Primary Contractor will be afforded the first opportunity to be issued a Work Order for a Project. However, the Project Manager may issue a Work Order to the Secondary Contractor include, but not be limited to the following:

- The Town and the Primary Contractor cannot agree on the cost/scope of the Project.
- The Primary Contractor cannot perform the Work in the specified timeframe.
- The Primary Contractor does not respond to the Work Order Proposal in the stated timeframe.
- The Project Manager determines that the Primary Contractor has too much Work
- There is insufficient capacity remaining in the Primary Contractor's Contract.

• The Primary Contractor has failed to successfully perform on previous Work Orders or under other Contracts with the Town.

The determination on using the Secondary Contractor shall rest solely with the Project Manager and the Town.

The Town will utilize a Work Order process for issuing Work under the Contract. However, where the Project Manager determines that the Work to be performed falls within either the Emergency or Critical Repair categories, as defined by the Contract he Project Manager may issue a Notice To Proceed in writing that the Contractor proceed with the Work. Where an emergency situation exists, which affects life/safety that does not allow time to issue written notice To proceed the Project Manager shall issue a verbal Notice to Proceed and follow-up as soon as possible with written verification.

The Project Manager will provide the Contractor a written work proposal (Proposal) for a Project, which will include the scope of work and, the timeframe for completing the Project, and available drawings (if any), and any additional contract terms and conditions specific to the Project, including but not limited to additional insurance, liquidated damages, etc. The Contractor will also be provided a deadline to respond to the Project Manager concerning the Project.

The Contractor is responsible to visit the site, review any drawings and scope of work, and the site conditions. The Contractor is required to respond to the Project Manager, within the specified timeframe, with its price proposal (Price Proposal) and confirmation that they can perform the Work in the stipulated timeframe. The Price Proposal must include a breakdown of the maximum number of labor hours by trade classification to perform the Work and the maximum estimated cost of materials and equipment required to perform the Work. The Project Manager will review any recommended revisions and in its sole discretion accept or reject, in writing, the proposed revisions. The Contractor will have twenty-four (24) hours to accept or reject the award of the Project.

Upon written acceptance of the Work Order Proposal, the Project Manager will issue a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed for the Project. Where the Contractor rejects the Proposal or where the Contractor fails to respond within the stipulated timeframes the Project Manager may award the Project to another Contractor, or utilize other means available to the Town. Contractor shall not commence any Work without receiving a written Work Order and Notice to Proceed from the Town.

The Town, in its sole discretion, may terminate for default any Contractor who fails to accept three Projects within a one (1) year period.

4.11 PAYMENTS

Contractor shall be paid for actual Work performed. Payment for Projects shall be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act, upon Final Completion of a Project.

4.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Town may establish liquidated damages on a Project by Project basis. Where the Town determines that liquidated damages shall apply to a Project the amount established will be set forth in the Work Order.

The Contractor is obligated and guarantees to complete the Project in the time set forth in the Work Order or any approved extension of time the Contractor may be granted by the Town. In the event of a delay in completion beyond the date set forth in the Work Order the Contractor shall pay to the Town for each and every calendar day of unexcused delay, the sum stipulated in the Proposal, which is hereby agreed upon not as a penalty but as liquidated damages. The Contractor will be notified of any exceptions. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the value of the Project.

The Town shall have the right to deduct liquidated damages assessments from any payment due or which may thereafter become due to the Contractor under any contract the Contractor has with the Town. In case the amount, which may become due hereunder, shall be less than the amount of liquidated damages due the Town, the Contractor shall pay the difference upon demand by the Town. Should the Contractor fail to compensate the Town for any liquidated damages, the Town shall consider this as a form of indebtedness and may deny any future Work under the Contract or any other Town contract until such indebtedness is paid in full to the Town.

The Town shall notify the Contractor that it is incurring liquidated damages.

4.13 PURCHASE AND DELIVERY, STORAGE AND INSTALLATION

All materials shall be F.O.B. delivered. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the purchase, delivery, and installation of all equipment and material(s). Contractor shall make all arrangement for delivery. Contractor shall be liable for replacing and damaged equipment or material(s) and filing any and all claims with suppliers. All transportation must comply with all federal, FDOT, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules and regulations.

Contractor is responsible for the protection of all equipment and material(s) from adverse weather conditions, damage, deterioration, and theft until the Work has been accepted by the Town.

4.14 TOWN FURNISHED DRAWINGS

The Town, in its sole discretion, may furnish design drawings. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to bring to the immediate attention of the Project Manager any discrepancies between the drawings and existing conditions, excluding hidden or unforeseen conditions, discovered prior to commencing and during the Work. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for verifying the accuracy of any Town provided drawings prior to commencing the Work, and shall be responsible for any errors or revisions of the Work, which might have been avoided by notifying the Town prior to commencement. This shall also apply to any revisions or omissions identified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit all requests for information entitled Request for Information (RFI).

The Project Manager will clarify in writing the intent of the drawings and the Contractor agrees to abide by the Project Manager's interpretation and perform the Work in accordance with the decision of the Project Manager. In such event, the Contractor will be held to have included in its Contract Price the best materials suitable for the purpose and/or methods of construction.

The Contractor shall have no basis for any claim for additional costs resulting from their failure to identify any required revisions, omissions and/or errors, not identified in writing to the Project Manager prior to commencing the Work.

4.15 SUBSTITUTIONS

The Contractor may request the Town to approve substitution where the specified materials are not available. Such requests must be submitted in writing to the Project Manager in advance with sufficient information to evaluate the substitution. The Contractor must provide the substitute materials plant designation, type, grade, quality, and size. Acceptance of substitutions shall be at the sole discretion of the Town. The Town may require an adjustment in price based on any proposed substitution.

4.16 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

The Contractor shall submit a Request for Information (RFI) where the Contractor believes that the Contract Document's specifications are unclear or conflict. All requests must be submitted in a manner that clearly identifies the specification section or drawing detail, if furnished, where clarification or interpretation is being requested. As part of the RFI, Contractor shall include its recommendation for resolution. The Town shall respond in writing.

4.17 WARRANTY

All Work have a one (1) year warranty on labor from the date of final acceptance and the Contractor shall provide a such written warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment. Contractor shall provide a minimum written warranty of one (1) year on all equipment, parts, or material unless the Work Order specifies a longer warranty. Where the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or material provides a warranty greater than one (1) year or the time frame stipulated in a Work Order, then the manufacturer's warranty term shall take precedence. Contractor shall be required to provide the Project Manager a copy of the manufacturer's warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment.

Should the Contractor fail to perform any required warranty work the Town, at its sole discretion, may have the work performed by others, an deduct such costs from any monies due the Contractor from the Town. Where such funds are not available the Town will bill the Contractor and Contractor shall reimburse the Town within thirty (30) calendar days. The Town may take any necessary and appropriate action provided under this Contract or with law to collect such payment due the Town.

4.18 ACCESS TO UTILITIES

The Contractor is responsible for providing power required for the performance of the Work, including the use of a generator. The use of a generator may be subject to the prior approval of the Town's representative should the Work be in a primarily residential neighborhood.

The Town may at its sole discretion provide access to Town utilities and/or water should such be available at the Work site. However, the Contractor is responsible to ascertain the location and accessibility of any utilities sources necessary to perform the Work. The ability of the Town to make utilities available to the Contractor shall not form any basis for a change order of claim by the Contractor.

4.19 STAGING SITE

The Contractor is solely responsible for making all arrangements for any staging site(s) that may be necessary for the performance of the Work and the Contractor shall be responsible for all site security and any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Town at its sole discretion may make a staging site available for use by the Contractor. If such site is made available by the Town, the Town assumes no responsibility or liability, and the Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, damage or theft to its equipment and materials. The Contractor shall also be responsible for restoring the site to its pre-existing condition prior to the Contractor's use of the site.

4.20 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, PUNCH LIST, & FINAL COMPLETION

Depending on the scope of a Project the Work may require a Substantial Completion inspection. If required the Work shall be substantially complete when the Project Manager, in the reasonable exercise of his/her discretion determines that the Work is complete and there are no material and/or substantial variations from the Contract Documents and the Work is fit for its intended purpose. Upon Substantial Completion, the Project Manager and the Contractor shall sign the Substantial Completion Inspection Form. The signing of this form shall not relieve the Contractor from its obligation to complete the Project.

When the Contractor believes that the Work is substantially complete, the Contractor shall request in writing that the Project Manager inspect the Work to determine if Substantial Completion has been achieved. Where the Work requires the Contractor to obtain a Certificate of Completion no request for Substantial Completion inspection is to be submitted until the Contractor has obtained the Certificate(s) of Completion. The Project Manager or Consultant shall schedule the date and time for any inspection and notify the Contractor and any other parties deemed necessary. During this inspection, the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form will be completed as necessary. Any remaining Construction Work shall be identified on this form and shall be known as Punch List Work. The Punch List shall be signed by the Project Manager and the Contractor confirming that the Punch List contains the item(s) necessary to complete the Work. The failure or refusal of the Contractor to sign the Project Substantial Completion Inspection Form or Punch List shall not relieve the Contractor from complying with the findings of the Project Substantial Completion Inspection and completing the Project to the satisfaction of the Town.

The Project Manager and the Contractor shall agree on the time reasonably required to complete all remaining Work included in the Punch List.

Upon Substantial Completion and the receipt and acceptance of any required documentation, including warranty documents, the Project Manager shall determine that a Project has achieved Final Completion and authorize final payment.

The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by Contractor, except those previously made in strict accordance with the provisions of the Contract and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the application for final payment.

4.21 OWNERSHIP OF THE WORK

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all Work including materials, supplies, and or equipment prior to final written acceptance. Contractor shall be liable for all damage, theft, maintenance, health and safety until such time as the Town issues final acceptance. The

Contractor is responsible for the protection, and maintenance of all of its own tools, equipment, and vehicles.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 5-

BID FORM

Bid submittal of	Elec	trical Contracting Services, Inc.	
		(Name of Bidder)	
	2375 West	77 th Street, Hialeah, Florida 3301 6	
_		(Address)	
Submitted on:	June 22, 2011		
	(Date)		

to furnish all Work as stated in the ITB and Contract Documents for the

Miscellaneous Electrical Service Bid No: 2011-08

To: Town of Miami Lakes, Florida

Attn: Town Clerk Town Hall 15150 NW 79th Court

Miami Lakes, Florida 33016

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only person or persons interested in this Bid, as principal(s) are named herein and that no other person than herein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the Contract to be entered into or which the Work pertains; that this Bid is made without connection with any other person, company, firm, or parties making a Bid; and that the Bid is, in all respects, made fairly and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

The Bidder further declares that it has performed sufficient investigations, and informed itself fully of the suitability of the Work and all conditions pertaining to the place where the Work is to be done; that it has examined the ITB and all of the Contract Documents and all addenda thereto issued prior to Bid opening, as acknowledged in its Bid; and that it has satisfied itself about the Work to be performed; and that it has submitted the Bid Guaranty, if required; and all other required information with the Bid; and that this Bid is submitted voluntarily and willingly.

The Bidder agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to timely execute a contract with the Town, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and to furnish all necessary materials,

equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation, and all labor necessary to complete the Work.

The undersigned further agrees that the Bid guaranty, if required, accompanying the Bid shall be forfeited if Bidder fails to execute said Contract, or fails to furnish the required Performance Bond,

BID FORM: (Page 2 of 6)

Our **BID AMOUNTS** includes the total hourly rates and mark-up for the Work to be performed under this solicitation, including all direct and indirect costs such as supervision, mobilization, overhead, profit, etc. in accordance with the Contract Documents.

if required by the Contract Documents, or fails to furnish the required Certificate(s) of Insurance within fifteen (15) calendar days after being notified of the award of the Contract.

In the event of arithmetical errors, the Bidder agrees that these errors are errors which may be corrected by the Town. In the event of a discrepancy between the price Bid in figures and the price Bid in words, the price in words shall govern. Bidder agrees that any unit price listed in the Bid is to be multiplied by the stated quantity requirements in order to arrive at the extended value and the unit price shall prevail over the extended value.

Trade/Equipment	Hourly Rates
Master Electrician	\$25.00
Journeyman ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$35.00
Journeyman/Supervisor ^{4 (see Note #4)}	\$35.00
Apprentice	
Apprentice 1 st Year	\$25.00
Apprentice 2 nd Year	\$25.00
Apprentice 3 Years or greater	\$25.00
Laborer	\$21.00
Bucket Truck (Daily operations, less than 50 foot)	\$40.00
Bucket Truck (minimum 50 foot, on call, or emergency)	\$50.00
Crane (for 30 & 40 foot light poles)	\$40.00
Emergency Response	\$60.00
	Percentage
Material Mark-up (see notes below)	2%
TOTAL	TO SELECT

BID FORM: (Page 3 of 6)

Notes:

- Bidders are bidding on a lump sum basis for the purpose of determining the lowest responsive and responsible Bidders. However, Contractors will be paid based on the line item breakdown, contained in the Bid Form, with payments based on actual Work performed.
- 2. The percentage mark-up for materials the Town will pay under the Contract shall not exceed 10%. Where a mark-up for materials is submitted that is greater than 10% the Town will automatically reduce the percentage to 10% and shall calculate the extended price to reflect the 10% value. The Town will not pay a mark-up on equipment rentals.
- 3. The number of hours for the Apprentice category covers the total amount to be used by all of the sub-trade categories for the Apprentice trade.
- 4. The Journeyman/Supervisor category will be used where the Journeyman is supervising apprentices or laborers. The Journeyman category will used when a second Journeyman is required for a Project.

Firm's Name:	Electrical C	ontracting	Service	, In	ıc.
Signature:	LH.Fel				
Printed Name/Title	e:Charles	H. Floyd	President	t	
Town/State/Zip: 2	2375 West 77t	h Street,	Hialeah,	FL	33016
Telephone No.: _	305-556-00	41			
Facsimile No.: _3	305-820-0553	E-Mail Address	s: <u>ECSINC</u>	25@A	OL.COM
Social Security No I.D.No.: 59-25		Dun and Bradstreet No.	14-41		0715

END OF SECTION

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Addendum No Addendum No Addendum No Addendum No	ر Dat _ Dat	ed ed					
		ed					
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	Dat						
	_,	ed					
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	_, Dat	ed			-		
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	_, Dat	ed					
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	_, Dat	ed					
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	_, Dat	ed					
A <mark>ddendum No</mark>	_, Dat	ed					
	No Adder	ndum iss	ued for thi	s ITB			
m's Name: Electrica	al Contrac	cting	Service	, Inc.			
gnature: Sold FUN	J						

BID FORM: (Page 5 of 6)

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF CORPORATION)

I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Electrical Contracting ServInc, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida held on the 1 day of May 2011 , a resolution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) Charles H. Floyd as (Title) President of the corporation to execute bids on behalf of the corporation and providing that his/her execution thereof, attested by the secretary of the corporation, shall be the official act and deed of the corporation. I further certify that said resolution remains in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this <u>22</u> , day of <u>June</u> , 20 11. Secretary: <u>Charlotte</u> flayd Print: <u>Charlotte</u> Floyd
(IF PARTNERSHIP)
I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
a partnership organized and existing under the laws of the State of, held on theday of, are solution was duly passed and adopted authorizing (Name) as (Title) of the to execute bids on behalf of the partnership and provides that his/her execution thereof, attested by a partner, shall be the official act and deed of the partnership.
I further certify that said partnership agreement remains in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20 Partner: Print:
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY IF JOINT VENTURE)
Joint ventures must submit their joint venture agreement indicating that the person signing this Bid is authorized to sign Bid documents on behalf of the joint venture and submit the appropriate Certificate of Authority (corporate, partnership, or individual).
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY (IF INDIVIDUAL)
I HEREBY CERTIFY that, I (Name), individually and doing business as (d/b/a) (If Applicable) have executed and am bound by the terms of the
Bid to which this attestation is attached.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this, day of, 20
Signed:
Print:

BID FORM: (Page 6 of 6)

NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC

NOTARIZATION

STATE OF Florida)	
COUNTY OF Dade) SS:	
	this <u>22</u> day of
	is personally known to
me or who has produced as identification	ion and who (did / did
not) take an oath.	
SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA JOANN MORALES SASTO MY COMMISSION # DD 98 EXPIRES: August 31, 2 Bonded Thru Notary Public Und	
PRINTED, STAMPED OR TYPED	

Section 6

Attachments

QUESTIONNAIRE

This Completed Form <u>Must</u> Be Submitted With The Bid, The Town May, At Its Sole Discretion, Require That The Bidder Submit <u>Additional</u> Information Not Included In The Submitted Form. Such Information Must Be Submitted Within Seven (7) Calendar Days of the Town's Request. Failure To Submit The Form Or Additional Information Upon Request By The Town Shall Result In The Rejection Of The Bid As Non-Responsive. Additional Pages May Be Used Following The Same Format And Numbering. Some Information May Not Be Applicable Apply. In Such Instances Insert "N/A".

By submitting its Bid the Bidder certifies the truth and accuracy of all information contained herein.

Business Information							
How many years has your company been in business under its current name and ownership							
a. Professional Licenses/Certifications (include name and number)* Twenty Six Issuance D							
State Electrical #EC13001277 6/17/10							
(*include active certifications of small or disadvantage business & name of certifying entity)							
b. Date company licensed by the State of Florida or Miami-Dade County: 7/1983							
c. State and Date of Incorporation: Florida 7/3/1985							
c. What is your primary business? Electrical Contractor							
(This answer should be specific							
Name of Qualifier, license number, and relationship to company:							
Charles H. Floyd EC13001277 Owner/President							
 Names of previous Qualifiers during the past five (5) years including, license num relationship to company and years as qualifier for the company 							
N/A							
Name and Licenses of any prior companies							

(Corp exec	Corporation ** "S" Corporation of porations will be required to uting a contract) pany Ownership entify all owners of the company	☐ LLC ☐ Sole Proprie provide a copy of the	etorship eir cor	o∐ Otł porate	ner: resolution	pr
a. id	entify all owners of the company					
	Na <mark>m</mark> e	Title		% o	f ownershi _l	p
	Charles H. Floyd	President		5	1	
-				4		
_	Charlotte Floyd	Secty/Treasure	<u> </u>	4.		
_						
-						
_						
-	Charlotte Floyd Adva	nced INs	50			
	dentify all individuals authorized			ndicating	g the level	Ιο
	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or		hority)		g the level	l o
aı	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or	ther provide specific levels of aut	hority)		g the level	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or	ther provide specific levels of aut Signatory	hority) Author	ity	•	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or e Title Charles H. Floyd Pr	ther provide specific levels of aut Signatory	hority) Author All	ity	•	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for o	ther provide specific levels of aut Signatory	Author	ity	•	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or e Title Charles H. Floyd Pr	ther provide specific levels of aut Signatory	Author	ity	•	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or e Title Charles H. Floyd Pr	signatory signat	Author All Sk	ity	•	
Name	uthority (check applicable boxes and for or e Title Charles H. Floyd Pr Charlotte Floyd Sect	signatory signat	Author All Sk	ity	•	
	12			ndicating	g the l	eve

Insurance a. Insura 325 b. Insura Jon	Journeyman 2 Apprentice 2 owner or employee of the company ever been convicted of a federal or moral turpitude: If yes, please explain: No se & Bond Information ance Carrier name & address: Advanced Insurance Underwri 50 North 29th Ave., Hollywood, FL 33020 ance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail: JMOYER@ADVANCEDINS.CO
Insurance a. Insura 325 b. Insura Jon	owner or employee of the company ever been convicted of a federal or moral turpitude: If yes, please explain: No ee & Bond Information ance Carrier name & address:Advanced Insurance Underwri No North 29th Ave., Hollywood, FL 33020 ance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:JMOYER@ADVANCEDINS.CO
Insurance a. Insura 325 b. Insura Jon	or moral turpitude: If yes, please explain: No se & Bond Information ance Carrier name & address:Advanced Insurance Underwri 50 North 29th Ave., Hollywood, FL 33020 ance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:JMOYER@ADVANCEDINS.CO
a. Insura 325 b. Insura Jon	ance Carrier name & address:Advanced Insurance Underwri
b. Insura	00 North 29th Ave., Hollywood, FL 33020 ance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:
b. Insura	ance Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:JMOYER@ADVANCEDINS.CO
Jor	
NI -	athon Moyer P 954-416-9658 F 954-416-9659
c. Insura	
	ance Experience Modification Rating (EMR): (if no EMR rating please explain why)
d. Numb	per of Insurance Claims paid out in last 5 years & value:1
e. Bond	Carrier name & address: NGM Insurance Co 800-226-0845
460	1 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, FL 32245
f. Bond	Carrier Contact Name, telephone, & e-mail:cfloyd@advancedins.c
Cha	arlotte Floyd 954-416-9696
g. Numb	er of Bond Claims paid out in last 5 years & value:None
Have any where yo company	v claims lawsuits been file against your company in the past 5 years, If yes, ide our company has either settle or an adverse judgment has been issued against. Identify the year basis for the claim or judgment & settlement unless the valunt is covered by a written confidentiality agreement.

10.	Has your company been assessed liquidated damages or defaulted on a project in the past five (5) years? Yes No (If yes, provide an attachment that provides an explanation of the project and an explanation.
11.	Has your company been cited for any OSHA violations in the past five (5) years? If yes, please provide an attachment including all details on each citation,
12.	Provide an attachment listing all of the equipment, with a value of \$3,000 or greater, owned by your company. Attached
13.	Provide an attachment listing of all equipment that your company does not own but plans to rent, lease, or borrow for the performance of the Work N/A
В.	Project Management & Subcontract Details
1.	Project Manager for this Project:
	a. Name: Chuck Floyd
	b. Years with Company: 16
	c Licenses/Certifications: Master Electrician Electrical Engineer
	d. Last 3 projects with the company including role, scope of work, & value of project: Install_lt poles <
	City Boynton Beach Superintendent 298,644.00
	City Plantation Super All aspects associated w/supply
	& installation of generator. 88,000.00 Vero Beach Super all aspects of electrical wiring, pole
	setting new service etc 634,000.00
2.	Subcontractors:
	Name Trade/Work to % of Work License No. be performed
	N/A
	
	3. Scope of actual Work to be performed by your company and the corresponding percentage
	of the work: (This does not include such items as insurance * bonds, dumpsters, trailers, and other similar non-construction work items)
	100



Master Electrician - Licensed & Insured Residential - Commercial - Industrial

2375 West 77 Street Hialeah, Florida 33016 Tel. (305) 556-0041 Fax. (305) 820-0553

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING SERVICE, INC

EQUIPMENT LIST

TEREX 24 TON CRANE
TEREX 17 TON CRANE
TEREX 14 TON CRANE
TEXOMA 330 AUGER
T30D FORK LIFT
VERMEER RT450 TRENCHER
JOHN DEERE 4X4 GATOR
JOHN DEERE 2X2 GATOR
JOHN DEERE 310G BACKHOE
GENIE 105' LIFT
PETTIBONE T-8044 10,0001b LULL

C. Current and Prior Experience:

- Current Experience including current under projects or contracts, recently awarded, or pending award (Provide an attachment to this questionnaire that lists all such contracts or projects, including the owner's name, title and value of project, scope of work, projected or actual start date, projected completion date.
- 2. Prior contracts or projects of a similar size, scope, and complexity: Provide an attachment to this Questionnaire that includes contracts or projects the Bidder considers of a similar, size, scope and complexity that the Town should consider in determining the Bidders responsiveness and responsibility. This attachment must include the contracts or projects that meet the minimum number of contracts or projects identified by the bid solicitation. Information provided must include the owner's name, address and contract person, including telephone & e-mail, title of contract or project, location of project, scope, initial value and final cost of the contract or project, projected and final timeframes for completion in calendar days. A reference letter is to be completed by the owner of the Project and submitted as part of the Bid submission.

D. Bidder's References

Bidders are to include a minimum of five (5) references from contracts or projects listed in C.2 above. The attached form is to be used and is to be included with the Bid submission. The Town, at its sole discretion may allow the Bidder to submit the references after the specified date for Bid submission.

ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA }	
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE }	
bid will be paid to any employees of the To	a commission, kickback, reward or gift, directly
	By: Dhy Fli
	Title: Prisidal
Sworn and subscribed before this	
22 day of Jue 20 1	
And Sostows Notary Public, State of Florida	_
notary rabile, state or riorida	JOANN MORALES SASTOQUE
(Printed Name)	EXPIRES: August 31, 2014 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters
My commission expires:	

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

NOT COLLEGE TETRAL
State of Florida }
County of Pole }
Charles H. Fland being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:
a) He/she is the President (Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of Electroeal Codoon Sou Jee the Bidder that has submitted the attached Proposal; b) He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Proposal and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Proposal; c) Such Proposal is genuine and is not collusive or a sham Proposal; d) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the Work for which the attached Proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from proposing in connection with such work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by person to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposal or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Proposal price or the Proposal price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed work;
The price or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: By: Witness
Witness (Printed Name)
President (Title)

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT (CONTINUED)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of Flooda)
County of Dale) SS:
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared
My Commission Expires:
JOANN MORALES SASTOQUE MY COMMISSION # DD 987723 EXPIRES: August 31, 2014 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters

SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1.	This sworn statement is submitted to the Town of Miami Lakes				
	by Charles H. Floyd President				
	[print individual's name and title]				
for Electrical Contracting Service, Inc.					
	[print name of entity submitting sworn statement]				
	whose business address is				
	2375 West 77th Street				
		Hialeah, FL 33016			
		and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is _59-2552102			
	(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual				
	sigr	ning this sworn statement:)			

- 2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)9g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods and services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction or a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand than an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
 - a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
 - b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.

The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an entity.
- 6. Based on information and belief, the statement that I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.]

 Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors,

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, not any affiliate of the entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

____ This entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

____ The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order]

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO

UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017,

FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. Signature of I	Entity Submitting Sworn Statement
Sworn to and subscribed before me this 22 da	ay of, 20_//.
Personally known	
OR produced identification	Notary Public - State of Florida
	My commission expires
(type of identification)	
	for no Saston
JOANN MORALES SASTOQUE	(Printed, typed or stamped commissioned
MY COMMISSION # DD 987723 EXPIRES: August 31, 2014 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters	name notary public)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 7

SPECIFICATIONS

7.1 License

a. Contractor must be licensed by the State of Florida as an electrical contractor and the qualifier must be an owner or employee of the Contractor.

7.2 Work Crew

- a. The Contractor shall provide work crews on an as needed, when needed basis.
- Employees shall be physically able to perform strenuous labor in the South Florida environment.
- c. At least 1 Journeyman shall be assigned to each Project, whom shall act as the as the crew supervisor. The supervisor must be fluent in English.
- d. At a minimum, one of the Work Crew must possess a valid State of Florida Drivers License for the type of vehicle(s) being driven and used as part of a Project.

7.3 Transportation

- a. Each Work Crew shall have suitable transportation in the form of a one-half ton (minimum size) full size pickup truck and/or other appropriate vehicle(s) necessary to complete the Project. The truck should be capable of transporting items up to eight foot (8') in length.
- b. All vehicles must meet the requirements of the Contract, including but not limited to the truck must be in good working order, with current license, registration, and insurance. The vehicle(s) must also be substantially free of body damaged and must be painted uniformly
- c. All vehicles must include the name of the Contractor, Contractor's license number, business telephone number. Rented or borrowed vehicles should properly identify the name and telephone number of the rental company or company from whom is was obtained.

7.4 Materials

- The Town may, at its sole discretion, furnish materials to be used for a Project.
 Materials may include but not be limited to signs, posts, and mounting brackets.
- b. All materials and equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be new and unused in their original sealer wrapper or container prior to use on a Project. Materials may be subject to inspection prior to use on a Project. Where materials or equipment are, as determined by the Project Manager, not to new, unused, or in their original wrapper, or container, the Project Manager may reject their equipment or materials and requires its replacement prior to use on a Project.

7.5 Disaster Response

- a. The Contractor shall be available, at the Town's request, to assist the Town and/or its designee at the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) during emergency situations, including but not limited to hurricane preparedness and recovery.
- b. On a first priority basis Contractor shall be immediately available to clear roadways or access areas in the event of an Act of God, terrorism or other large scale event.

7.6 Utility Coordination

As determined by the Town, Contractor shall meet with utility companies prior to their excavation of underground lines to serve as the Town's representative to avoid any potential issue to the Town and damage to exiting power lines.

SECTION 8

CONTRACT EXECUTION FORM

This Contract 2011-08ECS made this 12th day of July in the year 2011 for Work to be performed on an as needed basis by and between the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida, hereinafter called the "Town," and Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Attest:		TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES
By: Marjor(e Tej	Talda eda/Town Clerk	By: Alex Rey, Town Manager
By: Weiss Serot	a Helfman ole & Boniske, P.L.,	
Town Atto	rney	
Signed, sealed as presence of:	nd witnessed in the	As to the Contractor: Electrical Contracting Services, Inc.
MY O	N MORALES SASTOQUE OMMISSION # DD 987723 IRRES: August 31, 2014 Thru Notary Public Hodouritors	Name: Charles H. Floud Title: Prisidest

(*) In the event that the Contractor is a corporation, there shall be attached the original of the corporate resolution in the form contained in this Section, of the board of the corporation, authorizing the officer who signs the Contract to do so in its behalf.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, <u>Electrical Contracting Services</u>, <u>Inc.</u> desires to enter into a contract with the Town of Miami Lakes for the purpose of performing the work described in the contract to which this resolution is attached; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors at a duly held corporate meeting has considered the matter in accordance with the By-Laws of the corporation;

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS that the PRES (type title of officer)

(type title of officer)

and instructed to enter into a contract, in the name and on behalf of this corporation, with the Town of Miami Lakes upon the terms contained in the proposed contract to which this resolution is attached and to execute the corresponding performance bond.

DATED this 19 day of TULY, 2011.

(Corporate Seal)

Charlott Style